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June 4, 2024

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health,
to enter into a Sole Source amendment to an existing contract with Brandeis University
(VC#392871), Waltham, MA to continue to provide the Department technical assistance and
support in the development of Certified Community Behavioral Health Clinic applications and
tools, by increasing the price limitation by $30,000 from $338,296 to $368,296 and by extending
the completion date from June 30, 2024 to September 30, 2025, effective upon Governor and
Council approval. 100% Federal Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on September 7,2022, item
#33, amended on June 14, 2023, item #33, and most recently amended on January 10, 2024,
item #13.

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Years 2024 and 2025 and
are anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2026, upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line items
within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office,
if needed and justified.

05-95-92-922010-23400000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS
DEPT OF. HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEATLH DIV, BUREAU OF MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES.
PROHEALTH NH GRANT

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2023 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
92202340 $53,298 $0 $53,298

Subtotal $53,298 $0 $53,298
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05-95-92-922010-41200000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS
DEPT OF. HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEATLH DIV, BUREAU OF MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES,
MENTAL HEALTH BLOCK GRANT

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2023 074-500589

Grants for

Pub Asst and

Relief

92254120 $44,109 $0 $44,109

2024 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
92254120 $155,891 ($111,353) $44,538

2025 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc 92254120 $0 $89,076 $89,076

2026 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc "92254120 $0 $22,277 $22,277

Subtotal $200,000 $0 $200,000

05-95-092-922010-19090000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVCS DEPT OF, HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEATLH DIV, BUREAU OF MENTAL HEALTH
SERVICES, SAMHSA GRANT

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2023 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc 92201915
$15,454 $0 $15,454

2024 102-500731
Contracts for

.  Prog Svc
92201915

$69,544 $0, ,  $69,544

2025 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
92201915

$0 $30,000 $30,000

Subtotal $84,998 $30,000 $114,998

Total $338,296 $30,000 $368,296

EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because the Department is seeking to extend the contract
beyond the completion date and there are no renewal options available. The Contractor was
originally selected through a competitive bid process using a Request for Proposals. The
Department is adding additional newly available federal funding to enable the Contractor to
continue work to explore the feasibility and pathway to implement the Certified Community
Behavioral Health Clinic (CCBHC) model in New Hampshire.

The Contractor will continue to provide information and technical assistance for the
development of CCBHCs, including assistance in refining financing strategies and stakeholder
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engagement. In partnership with the existing Community Mental Health Centers, the Contractor
will review and assess this national model and make recommendations to the Department at>out
future Implementation In New Hampshire. Additionally, the Contractor will assist the Department
with planning and preparation of the CCBHC Demonstration Project, if chosen, as a part of the
national demonstration.

The Department will continue monitoring Contractor performance through the review of
monthly status report to ensure project deliverables and associated timelines are met and
adhered to.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, the Department will not be
able to continue to work on .the federal CCBHC planning grant activities, which will Impact the
Department's ability to apply for the federal CCBHC Demonstration Project grant designed to
effectively implement the CCBHC model.

Area served: Statewide

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number (ALN) #93.829, FAIN
#H79SM087622: ALN #93.243, FAIN# H79SM080245; ALN #93.958, FAIN #B09SM085371.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

bmltted.llyec

^ Lori A. Weaver
Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in piouiding opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

J  Amendment #3

This Amendment to the Readiness Study for Certified Community Behavioral Health Clinics (CCBHC)
contract Is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services
("State" or "Department") and Brandeis University ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on September 7, 2022 (Item #33), as amended on June 14, 2023 (Item #33), as amended on January 10,
2024 (Item #13) the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions
specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified: and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, the Contract may be amended upon written
agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set.forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

September 30, 2025

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$368,296

3. Modify Exhibit B - Amendment 2, Scope of Services; Section 1.3., to read:

1.3 The Contractor must support the Department's development of a Proposed State Plan
Amendment to the Department's Community Mental Health and SUD sections of the
Medicaid State Plan, herein after referred to as the State Plan, which supports CCBHC
implementation. The Contractor must receive Department input, review, and approval of
the proposed amendment-prior to final amendment draft.

.4. Modify Exhibit B-Amendment 2, Scope of Services; Section 1.4.1., to read:

1.4.1 Identification of key local, state and federal stakeholders including Legislative members;
engaging with the Department and selected state vendors on stakeholder engagement
activities;

5. Modify Exhibit B - Amendment 2, Scope of Services; Section 1.4.3., to read:

1.4.3. Developing tools and content for distribution for external stakeholders and the
Department's webpage.

6. Modify Exhibit B - Amendment 2, Scope of Services; Section 1.10. Reporting, Table 2, Phase 2 -
Implementation Plan Development Reporting, to read:

Table 2; phase 2 - Implementation Plan Development Reporting

Report Pescriptlpn Due Date

Monthly Status
Reports

Progress of activities including:

•  Accomplishments:

•  Current tasks and action items including responsible
parties;

•  Challenges;

•  Resolutions to challenges;

•  Open issues; and

No later than the 20'" dav
of each month

'09

Brandeis University

f=tFP-2023-BMHS-01 -REAOI-01-A03

v7.12.23

A-S-1.3

Page 1 of 4 '

Contractor lnitials_

Date
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• Work plan revision requests and approved changes.

Stakeholder

Engagement
Recommendations

1. Written recommendations on stakeholder

engagement including legislative activities.

2. Provide a written schedule for legislative
activities.

3. Quarterly report out of the legislative activities
outlined in number 2.

4. Tools/content for external stakeholders

1. Quarterly

2. Quarterly

3. Quarterly

4. Quarterly

Guidance

. Document

Written payment manual based on the State
Demonstration Application

Quarterly

Implementation
Report

Written report including recommended timelines and
activities for rule changes and other state-level regulatory
actions.

March 30. 2025

7. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms; Section 1, to read:

1. This Agreement is funded by:

1.1. 31% Federal funds, Certified Community Behavioral Health Clinics (CCBHC)
Expansion Grants, as awarded on 3/15/23, by U.S. DHHS Substance Abuse and
Mental Health Services Administration, ALN# 93.829, FAIN# H79SM087622;

1.2. 15% Federal funds, ProHealth NH: New Hampshire Partnerships to Improve Health
& Wellness for Young People with SED and SMI, as awarded on 8/25/22, by the
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Substance Abuse and Mental
Health Services Administration. ALN# 93.243, FAIN# H79SM080245; and

1.3. 54% Federal funds. Mental Health Block Grant {MHBG), as awarded on 5/17/21,
by the U.S. DHHS Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration,
ALN# 93.958, FAIN# B09SM085371.

8. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 3, to read:

3. Payment shall be made upon.completion and approval by the Department of the deliverables
as specified in Exhibit C-1, Phase 1, Service System Analyses Task Deliverables Budget
Worksheet, Exhibit C-2, Amendment 1, Support and Technical Assistance Budget Worksheet
SFY23, Exhibit C-3, Amendment 1, Support and Technical Assistance Budget Worksheet
SFY24, Exhibit C-4, Amendment 3, Task Deliverable Budget Worksheet - Phase II, Exhibit
C-5, Amendment 3, Support and Technical Assistance Budget Worksheet SFY25, Exhibit C-
6, Amendment 3, Task Deliverable Budget Worksheet - Phase II, and Exhibit C-7,
Amendment 3, Task Deliverable Budget Worksheet - Phase II.

9. Modify Exhibit C-4, Amendment 2, Support and Technical Assistance Budget Worksheet SFY24,
by replacing it in its entirety with Exhibit C-4, Amendment 3, Task Deliverable Budget Worksheet
- Phase II, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

10. Add Exhibit C-5, Amendment 3, Support and Technical Assistance Budget Worksheet "SFY25,
which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

11. Add Exhibit C-6, Amendment 3, Task Deliverable Budget Worksheet - Phase II, which is attached
hereto and incorporated by-reference herein.

12. Add Exhibit C-7, Amendment 3, Task Deliverable Budget Worksheet - Phase II, which is attached
hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

•OS

Brandeis University

RFP-2023-BMHS-01 -READl-01 -AOS

v7.12.23

A-S-1.3

Page 2 of 4

- Contractor Initials
5/30/2024

Date

4-
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective upon Governor and Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

5/31/2024

Date

—DocuStgned by:

S.

■COQOOOOCHOCW
NameiKatja s. fox

Title: Director

Brandeis University

5/30/2024

Date

-OocuSlgned by:

-«13;E<»OOPO««PO . . . ■ ■

Name: samuel Solomon
Title: cfo

Brandeis University

RFP-2023-BMHS-01 -READI-01-A03
V. 7.12.23

A-S-1.3

Page 3 of 4
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

DocuSlpntd by:

5/31/2024

Date' Name: Robyn cuanno

■  Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Brandeis University A-S-1.3

RFP-2023-BMHS-01 -READI-01 ■A03 Page 4 of 4
V. 7.12.23
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Exhibit C-4, Amendment 3

Task Deliverable Budget Worksheet - Phase II

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

COMPLETE ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOD

Contractor Name: Brandeis University

Project Title: State Readiness Assessment for CCBHC

Budget Period: July 1, 2023 through June 30, 2024 {SFY2024)

Task Deliverable

Funded by DHHS contract share

Timeline/Due Date, ,, Arndunt.

Monthly Status Reports
Due no later than the 20th day of

each month
$  2,922.92

Stakeholder Engagement
Recommendations

No later than 210davs after the

approved start date of Phase 2
$  7,394.31

Actuarial Review and

Feedback Report
No later than 240 davs after the

approved start date of Phase 2
$  6,917.70

Draft State Plan Amendment
No later than 270 davs after the

approved start date of Phase 2
$  7,394.31'

Payment Plan Model Proposal
No later than 300 davs after the

approved start date of Phase 2
$  9,848.00

Implementation Report
No later than 330 davs after the

approved start date of Phase 2 $'. 10,060.76
TOTAL $  44,538.00

OS

5/30/2024

RFP-2023-BMHS-01-READI-01-A03
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Exhibit C-5 - Amendment 3

Support and Technical Assistance Budget SFY25

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

COMPLETE ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOD

Contractor Name: Brandeis University
I

Project Title: State Readiness Assessment for CCBHC

Budget Period: July 1, 2024 through March 30, 2025 {SFY2025)

Funded by DHHS

Task Deliverable TImellne/Due Date Amount

Stakeholder Engagement

Recommendations
March 30, 2025

$  25,000.00

Implementation Report March 30, 2025
$  5,000.00

Total • $  30,000.00

V.

DS

A
5/30/2024

RFP-2023-BMHS-01-READI-01-A03
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Exhibit C-6, Amendment 3

Task Deliverable Budget Worksheet - Phase II

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
COMPLETE ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOD

Contractor Name: Brandeis University-

Project Title: state Readiness Assessment for CCBHC

Budget Period: July 1, 2024 through June 30, 2025 (SFY2025)

Task Deliverable

Funded by DHHS contract share

Timeline/Due Date Amount

Monthly Status Reports
Due no later than the 20th day of'

each month
$  26,044.59

Stakeholder Engagement Quarterly

$  22,155.78

Actuarial Review and

Feedback
Quarterly

$  13,818.47

Draft State Plan Amendment Quarterly

$  7,385.26

Payment Plan Model Proposal Quarterly

$  19,671.89

TOTAL $  89,076.00

— 09

5/30/2024

RFP-2023-BMHS-01-READI-01-A03
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Exhibit C-7, Amendment 3

Task Deliverable Budget Worksheet - Phase II

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
COMPLETE ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOD

Contractor Name: Brandeis University

Project Title: state Readiness Assessment for CCBHC

Budget Period: July 1, 2025 through September 30. 2025 (SFY2026)

Task Deliverable

Funded by DHHS contract share

Timeline/Due Date Amount

Monthly Status Reports
Due no later than the 20th day of

each month
$  6,510.88

Stakeholder Engagement September 30, 2025

$  7,389.13

Actuarial Review and

Feedback
September 30, 2025

$  3,456.43

Payment Plan Model Proposal September 30, 2025

$  4,920.56

TOTAL $  22,277.00

— DS

5/30/2024

RFP-2023-BMHS-01-READI-01-A03
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, David M. Scanlan, Secrelarj' of Stale of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that BRANDEIS UNIVERSITY is

a Massachusetts Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on March 17, 2022. 1 further certify that

all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good standing as far as this office is

concerned.

Business ID: 893140

Certificate Number: 0006352035

Ojs

%

u.

%

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal.of the Slate of New Hampshire,

this 1st day of December A.D. 2023.

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of State

0.



DdcuSign Envelope ID: 0F35ED22-B3F5-4479.A62C-AFD91A90949C

Btandeis
universitV

I, CWa C. O'Brien, hereby certify thai I tun du!y nppomtcd Clcrk/Sccrctary/Officerof Bitrideis
Univcrsily. I hereby certify the fplJowinfi is 0 true copy of the Brandeis University current Bylaws or
Articles of Incorporation of the Corporation and that the Bylaws or Articles of the Incorporation
authorize il^ following officers or positions to bind the Corporation for contractual obligations:

Ronald D. Licbowii?^ President

Carol A-Ficrkc, Provost and Executive Vice President of Academic Aflairs ■
Stewart Urctsky, Executive Vice President for Finance and Administration
Samuel Solomon, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer

J further certify that the following individuals currently hold tho office or positions authorized:

Stanley M. Bolotin, Director, Pre-Aword ̂ r>iccs, Officc of Research Administration
Martha Davis, Associate Director, Prc-Award Semces, Office of Research Administration
Christine DiBlasi, Assistant Director, Pre-Award Scrviccs,>Officeof Research Administration
Marissa Hamilton, Assistant Director, Prc-Award Services, Office of Research Administration

I further certify that It is understood that the State of New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as
evidence thai the person listed above currently occupies the position indicated and that they have full
authority to bind the corporation. This authdrity shall remain valid for thirtj' (30) days.from the date of
this certificate.

DATED: May 20,2024

ATTEST: UaJa^

OriaC. O'Brien

Assistant Secretary of the Brandeis University Board of Trustees

I

5

BoardOfTntiMtt 41S5ouUiStr<)et.M5i00 NVldthain.S{A'094S«
7B1-780-4000 tni^pMl}bRtDdeb.edu



jXCORCf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DDAYYY)

6/7/2024

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

BELOW. THIS'CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER{S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such ondorsement(s).

PRODUCER

Arthur J. Gallagher Risk Management Services, LLC
470 Atlantic Avenue
Boston MA 02210

NAMe Diane Gould

[aJc.'no. Extl: 617-531-7744 TAtt-Nol:
Ara^ESS; Diane Gould@aiQ.com

IN5URER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAlCm

INSURER A: Afch Insurance Company 11150

INSURED 8RANUNI-02

Brandeis University
415 South Street
\A/altham. MA 02453

INSURER B; United Educators Ins. a Reciprocal Risk Retention 10020

INSURER C ;

INSURER 0:

INSURER E :

INSURERF;

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 425872097 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFI^ORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

IA0DLI5U8RI
TYPE OF INSURAKCE

POLICY EFF POLICY EXP
LIMITS

INSR
LTR INSD WVD POLICY NUMBER (MM/DDPnrYY> <MM/DD/YYYY)

B COMMERCIAL GENERAL UABIUTY

CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR

G61-61H 6/1/2024 6/1/2025 EACH OCCURRENCE

OAMAGETaRENTED
PREMISES (Ea ccajfreficel

MED EXP (Any one person)

>500.000 SMHn PERSONAL « ADV INJURY

CENL AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

I  I LOCPOLICY I  IJECTPRO-

GENERALAGGREGATE

OTHER:

PRODUCTS • COMP/OP AGG

Retention

> 500,000

S 500,000

>5,000

S Indudsd

>2.000,000

> included

> 500,000

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

ANY AUTO

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
(Ea ecddenO

BODILY INJURY (Per person)

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OWNED

AUTOS ONLY

BODILY INJURY (Per acddent)

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per acddenll

UMBRELLA LIAB

.EXCESS LIAB

DED

(XCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

EACH OCCURRENCE

AGGREGATE

RETENTIONS

OTH
ER

WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS'LIABILITY

ANYPR0PRIET0R4>ARTNER(EXECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory In NH)
K yes. describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

WXWCCOOOSMO 12/14/2023 12/14/2024
y  PER

STATUTE

□ N/A
E.L, EACH ACCIDENT >1,000.000

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE >1,000,000

E.L DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT S 1.000,000
Birfler LlaUlily Excess G61-61H 6/1/2024 6/1/2025 Limit

Retention
2.000,000
500,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS/ LOCATIONS (VEHICLES (ACORD 101. AddlUonal Remarks Schedule, may be attached l( more space Is required)
RFA-2024.DPHS-13-STATE-01 (State Health Improvement Plan Facilitation)
ReaiJiness Study for Certified Community Behavioral Health Clinics
The Liability policy provides $500,000 per occurrence excess of a self-insured retention of $500,000

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street
Concord NH 03301

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25(2016/03)
© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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Brandeis
UNIVERSITY

Office of Research Administration

Mission Statement

Brandeis University is a community of scholars and students united by their commitment to the
pursuit of knowledge and its transmission from generation to generation. As a research
university, Brandeis is dedicated to the advancement of the humanities, arts and social, natural
and physical sciences. As a liberal arts college, Brandeis affirms the importance of a broad and
critical education in enriching the lives of students and preparing them for full participation in a
changing society, capable of promoting their own welfare, yet remaining deeply concerned about
the welfare of others.

In a world of challenging social and technological transformations, Brandeis remains a center of
open inquiry and teaching, cherishing its independence from any doctrine or government. It
strives to reflect the heterogeneity of the United Stales and of the world community whose ideas
and concerns it shares, in the belief that the most important learning derives from the personal
encounter and joint work of teacher and students, Brandeis encourages undergraduates and
postgraduates to participate with distinguished faculty in research, scholarship and artistic
activities.

Brandeis was founded in 1948 as a nonsectarian university under the sponsorship of the
American Jewish community to embody its highest ethical and cultural values and to express its
gratitude to the United States through the traditional Jewish commitment to education. By being
a nonsectarian university that welcomes students, teachers and staff of every nationality, religion
and orientation, Brandeis renews the American heritage of cultural diversity, equal access to
opportunity and freedom of expression.

The university that carries the name of the justice who stood for the rights of individuals must be
distinguished by academic excellence, by truth pursued wherever it may lead and by awareness
of the power and responsibilities that come with knowledge.

OfTicc of Research Adminislrolion 415 South Street. MS 116 Wallham, MA 02453-2728
781-736-2121 f: 781-736-2123 oraawirdsiT/^brandeis.cdu
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BRANDEIS UNIVERSITY

Financial Statements

June 30, 2023

(with summarized comparative information for June 30, 2022)

(With Independent Auditor's Report Thereon)
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Independent Auditor's Report

Board of Trustees

Brandeis University

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Brandeis University (the University), which comprise the
balance sheets as of June 30, 2023 and 2022, the related statements of activities, and cash flows for the
years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the University^as of June 30. 2023 and 2022, and the changes in its net assets and its cash
flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America (GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be
independent of the University and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the
relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the audit evidence-we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements
Management Is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the.financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

I

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the University's ability to continue
as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements are issued or available to
be issued.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance
and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material
if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment
made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

THE POWER OF BEING UNDERSTOOD

AUDIT iTAXi CONSULTING
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In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements.

•  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the University's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting-policies used and the reasonableness of significant
" accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

•  Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that
raise substantial doubt about the University's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable
period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related
matters that we identified during the audit.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information
We have previously audited the University's June 30, 2022 financial statements, and we expressed an
unmodified opinion on those audited financial statements in our report dated October 31, 2022. In our
^opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended June 30,
2022, is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements from which it has been
derived.

PS

Boston, Massachusetts
October 27, 2023
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BRANDEIS UNIVERSITY

Balance Sheet

June 30, 2023

{with comparative information as of June 30, 2022)

(In thousands of dollars)

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net

Notes receivable, net

Contributions receivable, net

Long-term investments

Funds held by bond trustee, restricted .
Funds held in trust by others and other assets
Lease right-of-use assets, net

Property, plant, and equipment, net

Total assets

Liabilities and Net Assets

Liabilities;

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

Sponsored program advances
Student deposits and deferred revenue

Lease obligations
Other long-term liabilities
Long-term debt, net

Total liabilities

Net assets:

Without donor restrictions .

With donor restrictions

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

2023 2022

$ 46,742 $  55,236

20,937 25,004

3,750 4,728

■ 18,651 18,526.

1,236,811 1,228.761

- 1,672

38,483 34,038

10,454 7,896

351,281 351,861

$. 1,729,109 $  1,727,722

$ 31,454 $  /36.867

13,073 13,044

81148 9,5.93

11.994 9,330

17,434 17,353

256,164 268,698

338,267 354,885

196,333 190,662

1,194,509 1,182,175

1,390,842 1,372,837

$ 1,729,109 $  1,727,722
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BRANDEIS UNIVERSITY

Statement of Activities

Year ended June 30, 2023

(with summarized comparative information for the year ended June 30, 2022)

(In thousands of dollars)

Net assets Net assets

without donor with donor

restrictions restrictions 2023 2022

Operating revenues and other support:
Tuition and fees (net of financial aid) $  179,867 $ $  179,867 $  174,692
Residence hall, and dining 50,334 - 50,334 46,341

Net tuition and fees, residence hali, and dining 230,201 ■ 230,201 221,033

Net assets utilized in operations 27,481 27,481 28,048

Sponsored programs - direct 51,905 - 51,905 54,309

Sponsored programs - indirect 16,095 - 16,095 14,767

Other investment income 2,539 - 2,539 623

Investment income from funds held in trust -

by others 328 - 328 348

Endowment return utilized 63,586 - 63,586 59,313

Other auxiliary enterprises 677 - 677 421

Other sources 10,698 - 10,698 9,198

Total operating revenues and
other support 403,510 - 403,510 388,060

Operating expenses:
Compensation 198,022 -  - 198,022 190,803

Employee benefits 46,445 - 46.445 47,741

Utilities and general repairs 20,407 - 20,407 20,504

Depreciation 29,776 -  . 29,776 29,392

Interest 9,747 - 9,747 9,582

Supplies, services, and other 97,263 - 97,263 87,335

Total operating expenses 401,660- - 401,660 385,357

Change in net assets from
operating activities 1,850 - 1,850 2,703

Nonoperating activities:
Net investment return (toss) 5,278 54,407 59,685 (47,347)

Endowment return utilized in operations (6,951) (56,635) (63,586) (59,313)
Net assets utilized in operations (8,568) (18,913) (27,481) (28,048)

Net assets released for capital purposes 486 (486) - -

Contributions 8,590 34,264 42,854 61,843

Other changes 4,986 (303) 4,683 (4,357)

Change in net assets
from nonoperating activities 3,821 12,334. 16,155 (77,222)

Change in net assets 5,671 12,334 18,005 (74,519)

Net assets at beginning of year 190,662 1,182,175 1,372,837 1,447,356

Net assets at end of year $  196,333 $  1,194,509 $  1,390,842 $  1,372,837

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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BRANDEIS UNIVERSITY

Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended June 30, 2023

(with comparative Information for the year ended June 30, 2022)

(I n thousands of dollars)

2023 2022

Cash flows from operating activities:

Change in net assets $  18,005 $  (74,519)
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash

used in operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization, net 28,366 27,982

Donations of securities (5.725) (5,058)

Proceeds from sale of donated securities 1,565 1,938

Net realized and unrealized investment (gain) loss •  (61,115) 45,354

Net change from funds held in trust by others (1,690) 2.182

Loss on disposal of fixed assets - 2

Contributions restricted for long-term investment (19,680) (22,800)

Change in operating assets, net (1.371) (13.197)

Change in operating liabilities, net (5,062) 2,291

Net cash used in operating activities (46,707) (35,825)

Cash flows from investing activities:
Acquisition and construction of property, plant, and equipment (27,748) (22,020)

Purchases of investments (126,247) (220,203)

Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments 177,273 259,668

' Notes receivable issued (102) (75)

Notes receivable repaid 1,080 1,580

Net cash provided by investing activities 24,256 18,950

Cash flows from financing activities:
Principal payments on bonds, notes and leases (11.594) (11,077)

Change in funds held by bond trustee 1,672 15,160

Proceeds from sale of donated securities restricted for long-term purposes 4,199 4,374

Contributions restricted for long-term investment 19,680 22,800

Net cash provided by financing activities .13,957 31,257

Change in cash and cash equivalents (8,494) 14,382

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 55,236 40,854
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $  46.742 $  '55.236

Supplemental data:
Interest paid $  10,553 $  11,087

Increase in accrued liabilities attributable to

property, plant, and equipment 1,448 782

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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BRANDEIS UNIVERSITY

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2023
(with comparative information for June 30, 2022)

(in thousands of dollars)

(1) Organization

Brandeis University (the University) is a private, not-for-profit, nonsectarian, co-educational institution of
higher education with approximately 5,300 full-time equivalent undergraduate and graduate students.
Established in 1948, the University offers educational programs for undergraduates in liberal arts and
sciences, and graduate education and training in the arts and sciences, business, social policy and
management.

(2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(a) Basis of Presentation

The University's financial statements are presented on the accrual basis of accounting in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States (GAAR). The financial statements
have been prepared to focus on the University as a whole and to present balances and transactions
based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions, as follows:

Without donor restrictions: net assets not subject to donor stipulations restricting their use, but may be
designated for specific purposes by the University or may be limited by contractual agreements with
outside parties. Such net assets may be designated by the Board of Trustees (the Board) for specific
purposes, including to function as endowment.

With donor restrictions: net assets subject to donor stipulations that restrict the purpose and usage or
contain a time restriction, which may be perpetual. These net assets are released from restrictions
when the specified time elapses or actions have been taken to meet, the restrictions. As further
described in note 14, the University is subject to the Massachusetts Uniform Prudent Management of
Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA), under which donor-restricted endowment funds may be appropriated
for expenditure by the Board in accordance with the standard of prudence prescribed by UPMIFA. Net
assets of such funds in excess of their historic dollar value are classified as donor restricted until

appropriated by the Board and spent on their intended purpose. In addition, net assets with donor
restrictions includes donor-restricted endowment funds with underwater valuation. Life income trusts

and contributions receivable for which the ultimate use is restricted by the donor or inherently time
restricted are also reported as net assets with donor restrictions.-

For comparison purposes, the 2023 statement of activities has been presented with 2022 surhmarized
comparative information in total but not by net asset class. This summarized 2022 information is not
Intended to and does not include sufficient detail to constitute a complete presentation of changes in
net assets in confonnity with GAAP. Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction with
the University's financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2022, from whjch the summarized
information was derived.

(b) Liquidity Infoimation

In order to provide information about liquidity, assets have been sequenced in the balance sheet
according to their nearness to conversion to cash, and liabilities have been sequenced according to the
nearness of their maturity and resulting use of cash.

(Continued)



DocuSign Envelope ID; 0F35ED22-B3F5-4479-A62C-AFD91A90949C

BRANDEIS UNIVERSITY

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2023

(with comparative information for June 30, 2022)

(In thousands of dollars)

(c) Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents, except those held as
long-term investments, or funds held by bond trustee, consist of bank deposits, certificate of deposits,
money market funds and investments with original maturities of three months or less at the date of

purchase. The University maintains its cash in bank deposit accounts, which, at times may exceed
federally insured limits. The University has not experienced losses in such accounts and does not
believe it is exposed to any significant credit risk on cash and cash equivalents.

(d) Fair Value

Investments and funds held in trust by others are reported at fair value in the University's financial
statements. Fair value represents the price that would be received upon the sale of an asset or paid
upon the transfer of a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants as of the
measurement date. GAAP establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes inputs used to measure fair
value into three levels;

Level 1 - quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets that are accessible at the measurement date for
assets or liabilities;

Level 2 - observable prices that are based on inputs not quoted in active markets, but corroborated by
market data; and

Level 3 - unobservable inputs are used when little or no market data is available.

The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to Level 1 inputs and the lowest priority to Level 3
inputs. In determining fair value, the University utilizes valuation techniques that maximize the use of
observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs to the extent possible. Certain
investments meeting defined criteria are repotted at their net asset value (NAV), which is used as a
practical expedient to estimate their fair values, and these investments are not categorized in the fair
value hierarchy.

(e) Funds Held in Trust by Others and Other Assets

Funds held in trust by others (FHITBO) are perpetual trusts held in perpetuity by external trustees, as
specified by the donors, and are reported by the University at fair value based on the underlying assets
held by the trust, These assets are considered to be Level 3 within the fair value hierarchy. Trust
income is distributed at least annually to the University in accordance with the terms of the trusts and is
recorded as investment income. Changes in the fair value of the trusts are recorded as increases or
decreases to net assets with donor restrictions and are included in net investment return (loss). The
University had $11,372 and $9,683 of FHITBO as of June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively. Other
assets Include prepayments, inventories, and deferral of qualifying cloud computing arrangement
implementation costs.

(f) Leasing

The University determines if an arrangement is a lease at inception. The University has both leases
under which it is obligated as a lessee and leases for.which it is a lessor. Finance leases are included
in property, plant, and equipment, operating leases are included in right of use assets, and the related •
lease obligations in the balance sheet.

7  (Continued)
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BRANDEIS UNIVERSITY

Notes to Financial Statements '

June 30, 2023

(with comparative information for June 30, 2022)

(In thousands of dollars)

Lease right-of-use assets represent the University's right to use an underlying asset for the lease term.
Lease obligations represent the University's liability to make lease payments arising from the lease.
Operating and finance lease right-of-use assets and related obligations are recognized at commencement
date based on the present value of lease payments over-the lease term. To determine the present

value of lease payments, the University made an accounting policy election to utilize a risk-free
borrowing rate, which is aligned with the lease term at the lease commencement date. The value of an
option to extend or terminate a lease is reflected to the extent iFis reasonably certain management will
exercise that option. Lease expense for lease payments is recognized on a straight-line basis over the
lease term. Interest expense is recognized as a component of the lease payment for finance leases.'

Rental income arising from operating leases as a lessor is included in operating revenue in other
sources in the statement of activities. I

(g) Properly, Plant, and Equipment

Property, plant; and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is
computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of land improvements (18 years),
buildings (60 years), building systems and improvements (18-50 years), equipment and furnishings (5-
15 years), software (5 years), and leases (3-5 years).

Costs incurred in connection with construction projects are accumulated in construction in progress
until complete and placed into service at which time the cost is transferred to the respective asset class
and depreciation begins.

Expenses for the repair and maintenance of facilities are recognized during the period incurred,
Betterments, which add to the value of the related assets or materially extend the lives of the assets,
are capitalized.

Long-iived assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that their carrying value may not be' recoverable. When events or changes in circumstances indicate an
asset may not be recoverable, the impairment loss recognized is the amount by which the asset's net
carrying value exceeds its estimated fair value. As of June 30, 2023 and 2022, no impairment
indicators were identified.

(h) Other Long-Term Liabilities

Other long-term liabilities include liabilities associated with asset retirement obligations arising from
regulatory requirements to perform certain asset retirement activities, primarily asbestos removal, at or
prior to disposal of certain property. As of June 30, 2023 and 2022, the estimated liabilities were $6,1.60
and $6,011, respectively. In addition, the University carries a liability related to refundable advances
received under the Federal Perkins Loan Program (the Program) as discussed in note 6. As of
June 30. 2023 and 2022, those liabilities were $1,362 and $1,717, respectively.

Other long-term liabilities also include liabilities associated with gift annuities and charitable remainder
trusts, as discussed in note 2(i).

(Continued)
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BRANDEIS UNIVERSITY

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2023

(with comparative information for June 30, 2022)

(In thousands of dollars)

(i) Charitable Remainder Trusts

The University is the beneficiary of a number of gift annuities and charitable remainder trusts, which are
included in long-term investments on the balance sheet. The University initially recognizes a
contribution as well as an Interest in the underlying investment from which a specified amount, or
percentage, of the fair value of the trusts' assets is paid to the donor or named beneficiary each year.
Actuarial methods are used to calculate-that portion of the investment representing the present value of
the liability to the donor and that portion representing the contribution. Net contribution revenue .
recognized under such agreements was $175 and $392 for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022,
respectively. ^

The fair value of interests in gift annuities and charitable remainder trusts is based on quoted market
prices of underlying investments, which amount to $20,821 and $21,730 for the years ended June 30,
2023 and 2022, respectively.

The fair value of the liability on gift annuities and charitable remainder trusts is based' on present value
techniques and assumptions including life expectancy and estimated rate of return. Liabilities to the
donors are recorded at the present value of the estimated future payments to be distributed over the
life of the donor or named beneficiary, which amount to $9,236 and $9,625 for the years ended
June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively. These liabilities are valued on a recurring basis and are
considered to be Level 2 within the fair.value hierarchy.

•  .' 'a

(j) Revenue Recognition

Revenues are reported as an increase in net assets without donor restrictions, unless they are limited
by donor-imposed restrictions. Expirations of donor-restrictions are reflected in the statement of
activities as net assets utilized in operations or net assets released for capital purposes. Net realized
gains (losses) from the sale or other disposition of investments and the change in unrealized
appreciation (depreciation) of investments are reported as revenue without donor-restrictions, unless
restricted by donor-imposed stipulations or law.

Revenue is recognized when or as the University satisfies performance obligations by rendering
promised goods or services.

Tuition, student fees, residence hall and dining revenues are recorded as revenue when the related
services are rendered during the academic year, which falls within the fiscal year. Payments are
generally required to be received in advance of the academic term and are recorded as student
deposits and deferred revenue. Tuition and student fees received for courses that cross fiscal years are
prorated in accordance with the number of days of instruction. Other auxiliary enterprise revenues are
recognized when the goods or services are provided.

(k) Contributions and Sponsored Programs

Contributions with and without donor restrictions are reported as increases to net assets. Contributions
include unconditional promises (contributions receivable) that are reported at present value of expected
cash flows, net of an allowance for uncollectable contributions receivable. Contributions of noncash

assets are recorded at fair value on the date of the contribution.

(Continued)
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BRANDEIS UNIVERSITY

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2023
(with comparative information for June 30, 2022)

(In thousands of dollars)

Contributions without donor restrictions and contributions with donor restrictions for which time or

purpose restrictions have been met are reclassified to operating activities as net assets utilized in
operations, unless the purpose is capital in nature. For the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, net
assets utilized in operations include $18,913 and $18,556 of net assets released from restrictions,

respectively. Contributions for capital purposes are reported as nonoperating activities and released
from restriction when the related asset is placed into service.

Grants and contracts awarded by federal and other sponsors, which generally are considered
nonexchange transactions restricted by sponsors for certain purposes, are recognized as revenue
when qualifying expenditures are incurred or other conditions under the agreements are met. The
University has elected the simultaneous release policy, which allows a not-for-profit organization to
recognize a restricted contribution directly in net assets without donor restrictions if the restriction is
met in the same period that the revenue is recognized.

Federal and other sponsored grants and contracts may be subject to fiscal funding clauses or annual
appropriations. Conditional awards related to Federal and other sponsored programs of $75,090 and
$67,265 as of June 30, 2023 and June 30, 2022, respectively, are not recorded in the financial
statements.

(I) AUocation of Expenses

The statement of activities presents operating expenses by natural classification. Note 4 displays a
matrix of operating expenses by both natural and functional categories. Depreciation, amortization,
interest, and operation of plant expenses are allocated to functional expense categories on the basis of
square feet utilized.

(m) Fundraising Expenses

Fundraising expense was $11,255 and $12,333 for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022,
respectively, and is classified as institutional support in note 4.

(n) Income Taxes . .

The University is a not-for-profit organization as described in Section 501 (c)(3) of the Internal Revenue
Code, as amended (the Code), and is generally exempt from income taxes pursuant to Section 501(a)
of the Code. The University is required to assess uncertain tax positions and has determined that there
were no such positions that are material to the financial statements.

(o) Collections

Collections at Brandeis University are protected and preserved for public exhibition, education,
research and the furtherance of public service. Collections are not capitalized and contributions of
collections are not recognized as contribution revenue. Sales and purchases of collection items are
reported as nonoperating revenue and expenses in the University's financial statements in the period in
which the items are sold or acquired, respectively. The proceeds from the sale of collection items, if
any, are used for the acquisition of new artwork.

10 (Continued)
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BRANDEIS UNIVERSITY

Notes to Financial Statements v

June 30, 2023
(with comparative information for June 30, 2022)

(In thousands of dollars)

(p) Nonoperating Activities

Nonoperating activities reflect all contributions, transactions of a long-term investment or capital in
nature, investment return net of appropriations for current operational support in accordance with the
University's endowment spending policy, collection of artwork, and other net asset changes resulting
from transactions that do not arise from or currently affect operations, including one-time non-structural
costs.

Other changes in the non-operating section of statement of activities include Federal Emergency
Management Agency (FEMA) reimbursements for COVID-19 costs.

(q) Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets,and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results may differ from those estimates, and
the differences may be material.

(r) Related-Party Transactions

Members of the Board and senior management may, from time to time, be associated either directly or
.  indirectly with companies doing business with the University. The University has a written conflict of

interest policy that requires each individual to certify compliance with such policy on an annual basis as v
well as disclose any potential related-party transactions. When such a relationship exists, measures
are taken to mitigate any actual or perceived conflict. Including requiring that such transactions be
conducted at arms' length, with terms that are fair and reasonable to and for the benefit of the
University. As of June 30, 2023 and 2022, there were no material related party transactions identified.
The University has $1,552 and $1,331 in unsecured related party contributions receivables as of
June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

(s) Subsequent Events

The University evaluates subsequent events for potential recognition or disclosure through
October 27, 2023, the date in which the financial statements were issued.

(3) Tuition and Fees, Residence Hall and Dining Revenues

Revenue from tuition and fees, residence, halls, and dining services is reflected net of reductions from
institutional student aid and is recognized as the services are provided over the academic year, which
generally aligns with the University's fiscal year. Such revenue is determined based on published rates for '
such services, less scholarships and financial aid awarded by the University to qualifying students. Aid in
excess of a student's tuition and fees is reflected as a reduction of residence halj and dining charges.
Generally, disbursements made directly to students for living or other costs are reported as an expense.

11 (Continued)
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BRANDEIS UNIVERSITY

Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2023

{with comparative information for June 30, 2022)

(In thousands of dollars)

As of June 30, such revenue at the published rates and financial aid is as follows:

2023 2022

Tuition and fees

Less scholarships and financial aid
Tuition and fees, net

Residence hall and dining
Tuition and fees, residence hall and dining

revenues

$ 296,830 $ 289,720

(116.963) (115,028)

179,867 174,692
50,334 46,341

230.201 $ 221.033

. Revenues recognized in the year ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, that were included in student deposits
and deferred revenue in prior years are $7,596 and $5,960, respectively.

(4) Analysis of Expenses

Expenses by functional and natural classification for the year ended June 30, 2023 consist of the following:

Sponsored Academic Student Auxiliary Institutional

Instruction Programs Support Services' Enterprises Support Total

Compensation S  85,645 $  29,146 $ 29,626 S  19,163 $  4,488 $  29,954 $ 198,022

Employee benefits 21,357 6,218 7,474 4.448 1,114 5,834 46,445

Utilities and general repairs 4,070 2,741 1,872 2,949 6,337 2,438 20,407

Depreciation 6,080 4,139 2,703 4,325 9,128 3,401 29,776

Interest 1,898 1,292 896 1,350 2,849 1,462 9,747

Supplies, services, and other 16,559 15,876 17.041 8,985 19,310 19,492 97,263

Total S 135.609 S  59.412 $ 59.612 S 41.220 S  43.226 S  62.581 $ 401.660

Expenses by functional and natural classification for the year ended June 30, 2022 consist of the following:

Sponsored Academic Student Auxiliary Institutional

instruction Programs Support Services Enterprises Support Total

Compensation S  84,265 $  27,452 $ 29,452 S  15,895 $  4,006 $  29,733 $ 190,803

Employee benefits 23,122 5,983 7,792 3,786 1,010 6,048 47,741

Utilities and general repairs 4,127 2.767 1.878 2,958 6.324 2,450 20.504

Depreciation 6,009 4,074 2,651 4,249 9.018 3,391 29,392

interest 1,959 1,328 664 1,385 2,940 1,106 9,582

Supplies, services, and other 14,601 21,090 14,850 7,720 20,330 8,744 87,335

Total S 134.083 $  62.694 S 57.487 S 35.993 $  43.628 $  51.472 $ 385.357

The University's primary programs are instruction and-sponsored programs. Expenses reported as
academic support, student services, and auxiliary enterprises are incurred in support of these primary
program activities.
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(5) Accounts Receivable

The composition of accounts receivable as of June 30 is as follows:

Student receivables

Sponsored program receivables
Other ^

Less allowance for doubtful accounts

Accounts receivable, net

2023 2022

$  3,154 $ 2,759

11,818 16,279

6,790 6,958

21,762 25,996

(825) (992)

$  20.937 25.004

Accounts receivable balances are periodically reviewed to estimate an allowance for doubtful accounts.
Management estimates the allowance based on a review of historical experience and specific
characteristics associated with the individual receivables.

(6) Notes Receivable

The composition of notes receivable as of June 30 is as follows:

Federal Perkins loan program

University student loan programs

Less allowance for doubtful loans

Notes receivable, net

2023 2022

$  1,217 $  1,619"
6,557 7,031

7,774 8,650

(4.024) (3,922)

$  3.750 $  4.728

Notes receivable under the Program are funded by the U.S. government and University funds and are
subject to significant restrictions. The Program has ended and a portion of the amounts are generally
refundable to the U.S. government.
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(7) Contributions Receivable

The composition of contributions receivable as of June 30 is as follows:

2023 2022

Amounts due in:

Less than one year

Between one and five years
More than five years

Gross contributions receivable

Less:

Allowance for unfulfilled contributions

Discount, at rates from 0.29% to 4.13%
Contributions receivable, net

$ 8,717 $ 10,093

11,660 10,075

100 400

20,477 20,568

(1.031) (1,822)
(795) (220)

18.651 $ ■ 18.526

(8)

Unconditional promises to give are periodically reviewed to estimate an allowance for doubtful collections.
Management estimates the allowance based on a review of historical experience and a specific review of
collection trends that differ from the plan on individual accounts. Adjustments to the allowance are charged
to contribution revenues. An account is considered uncollectible when all collection efforts have been

exhausted.

As of June 30, 2023, and 2022, over 75% of the University's gross contributions receivable was due from
fifteen and ten donors, respectively.

Long-Term Investments

The investment objective of the University is to invest its assets in a prudent manner to achieve a long-term
rate of return sufficient to fund academic programs and university initiatives in accordance with the Board's
approved spending policy. The University diversifies its investments among asset classes by incorporating
several strategies and managers. Major investment decisions are authorized by the University's Trustee
Investment Committee (Investment Committee) that oversees the University's investments.

In addition to equity and fixed income investments, the University may also hold shares or units in
institutional funds and alternative investment funds involving hedged and private equity strategies. Hedged
strategies involve funds whose managers have the authority to invest in various asset classes at their
discretion, including the ability to invest long and short. Funds with hedged strategies generally hold
securities or other financial instruments for which a ready market exists, and may include stocks, bonds
and securities sold short and often require the estimation of fair values, by the fund managers in the
absence of readiiy determinable market values. Because of the inherent uncertainties of valuation, these
estimated fair values may differ significantly from values that would have been used had a ready market
existed, and the differences could be material, Such valuations are determined by fund managers and
generally consider variables such as operating results, comparable earnings multiples, projected cash
flows, recent sales prices, and other pertinent information, and may reflect discounts for the illiquid nature

. of certain investments held. Long-term investments also include assets associated with gift annuities and
charitable remainder trusts.
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Investments are reported at estimated fair value. If an investment is held directly by the University and an
active market with quoted prices exists, the market price of an identical security is used as the reported fair
value. Reported fair values for shares in registered mutual funds are based on share prices reported by the
funds as of the last business day of the fiscal year. The University's interests in alternative investment

funds are generally reported at NAV reported by fund managers, which are used as a practical expedient to
estimate the fair value of the University's interests therein, unless it is probable that all or a portion of the
investment will be sold for an amount different from NAV. As of June 30, 2023 and 2022, the University had
no plans or intentions to sell investments at amounts different from NAV. Registered mutual funds are
classified in Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy.

The University's long-term investments at June 30, 2023 are sumrnarized in the following table by strategy
and, as applicable, their fair value hierarchy classification;

Investments

measured

at NAV I Other*

.  Investments classified In fair value hierarchy

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Endowment investments:

Global equity $  78.586 $  37 $ S $  78,623

Non-U.S. equity 222,120- 218 - 222,338

Private equity 298,859 • - 298,859

Hedge fund/credit: - ,,

Credit - private 174 -
174

Hedge funds - long/short 174,284 •  ' 174,284

Hedge funds - multi strategy 180,013 - 180,013

Real assets - private 156,575 - 156,575

Cash and cash equivalents* 4,058 - 4,058

Receivable for investments sold* 441 - 441

Treasuries and fixed income - 100,852 - 100,852

Total endowment

investments 1,115,110 101,107 - 1,216,217

Other investments:

Mutual funds . 22,594 - 22,594

Total other investments . 22,594 . 22,594

Total long-term

investments S  1,115,110 $  123,701 S $ $  1,238,811

* Cash and cash equivalents and receivables for investments sold are not fair value measurements and are included in the
above table for reconciliation purposes.
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The University's long-term investments at June 30, 2022 are summarized in the following table by strategy
and, as applicable, their fair value hierarchy classification:

Investments

measured

at NAV / Other*

Investments classified In fair value hierarchy

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Endowment investments:

Global equity

Non-U.S. equity

Private equity

Hedge fund/credit:

Credit - private

Hedge funds - long/short

Hedge funds,- multi strategy
Real assets - private

Cash and cash equivalents*

Treasuries and fixed income

$  79.588

206,506

295.022

305

184.244

174,600

147,431

9,676

$  221 $ • $ -

107,575

S  79.809

206.506

295.022

305

184,244

174,600

147,431

9,676

107.575

Total endowment

investments 1.097,372 107.796 - 1,205.168

Other investments;

Cash and cash equivalents*

Mutual funds

79

23.514

79

23,514

Total other investments 79 23.514 23.593

Total long-term
investments S  1,097.451 $  131.310 •$ - $ - $  1,228,761

* Cash afxi cash equivalents are not fair value measurements and are Included in the above table for reconciliation purposes.
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(a) Investment Liquidity

Hedge funds and global equity are redeemable at NAV under the terms of subscription agreements
and/or partnership agreements. Investments with daily liqujdity generally do not require any notice prior
to withdrawal. Investments with monthly, quarterly or annuil redemption frequency typically require
notice periods ranging from 30 to 180 days. The following tables present the University's long-term
investments by their availability for the next 12 months following June 30:

June 30, 2023

Dally Monthly Quarterly Annual Illiquid Total

Cash equivalents $  4,058 $ $ $ $ $  4,058
Receivable for

investments sold - - 441 - 441

Treasuries, fixed income

and mutual funds 122,551 - - - 895 123,446

Equities 255 33,809 9,111 93,961 462,684 599,820

Hedge funds - - 44,024 123,591 186,856 354,471

Real assets - - - - 156,575 156,575

Total $ 126.864 $ 33.809 $ 53.135 $ 217.993 $ 807.010 $ 1.238.811

June 30, 2022

Daily Monthly Quarterly Annual Illiquid Total '

Cash equivalents $  9,755 $ $ $ $ $  9,755

Treasuries, fixed income

and mutual funds 130,054 - - - 1,035 131,089
Equities 221 33,048 20,519 82,103 445,446 581,337

Hedge funds ■ - 43,038 142,831 173,280 359,149

Real assets - - - - 147,431 147,431

Total $ 140.030 $ 33.048 $ 63.557 $ 224.934 $ 767.192 $ 1.228.761

Investments categorized as illiquid include lock-ups with definite expiration dates, restricted shares,
side pockets, or private equity and real asset funds where the University has no liquidity.
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The University has certain investments with a fair value of $64,277 at June 30, 2023 that have
restricted redemptions for lock-up periods. Some of the investments with redemption restrictions allow
earlier redemption for specified fees. The expiration of redemption lock-up period amounts are
summarized in the table below;

Fiscal year Amount

2024 $ 27,262

2025 7.642

2026 28,408

2027 965

Total $ 64,277

(b) Commitments

Private credit, private equity, and real asset investments are generally made through limited
partnerships. Under the terms of these agreements, the University is obligated to remit additional
funding periodically as capital is called by the manager. These partnerships have a limited existence,
generally between ten and fifteen years, and provide for annual one-year extensions after the initial
contract period for the purpose of systematically liquidating portfolio positions.and returning capital to
the investors. However, depending on market conditions, the inability to execute the fund's strategy,
and other factors, a manager may extend or reduce the term of a fund from that which was originally
anticipated. As a result, the timing and amount of future capital calls expected to be exercised in any
particular future year is uncertain. The aggregate amount of unfunded commitments associated with
global equities, real assets, and private equity investments as of June 30, 2023 was $6,571, $89,318,
and $142,964, respectively.

I

)  (c) Derivatives

The endowment employs certain derivative financial instruments to replicate asset positions more cost
effectively than through purchases or sales of the underlying assets.

As a result of entering into investment derivative agreements, the University is subject to market
volatility consistent with the underlying asset classes. The University has established policies,
procedures, and internal controls governing the use of derivatives.

The purchase and sale of exchange-traded derivatives require collateral deposits with the Futures
Commission Merchant (FCM). Collateral is posted and moved on a daily basis as required by the rules of
the exchange on which the derivatives are traded. In the event of the FCM's insolvency, recovery may be
limited to the University's pro-rata share of segregated customer funds available. It is possible that the
recovery amount could be less than the total cash or other collateral posted. The collateral is generally in
the form of debt obligations issued by the U.S. Treasury or cash. Cash collateral and certain securities
owned by the University were held at counterparty brokers to collateralize these positions and are
included in long-term investments on the balance sheet. As of June 30, 2023 and 2022, the aggregate
notional exposure on long-term assets was ($84,379) and ($76,927), respectively. The associated
unrealized loss on these assets was ($2,678) and ($726), respectively, as of June 30, 2023 and 2022.
The notional amount of these derivatives is not recorded on the University's financial statements.
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(9) Property, Plant, and Equipment

The composition of property, plant, and equipment as of June 30 is as follows:

2023 2022

Land and land improvements
Buildings

Building systems and improvements
Equipment, furnishings, and software

Leased vehicles and other equipment

Less accumulated depreciation

Construction in progress
Property, plant, and equipment, net

$ 49,703 $ 49,400

210,225 210,225

464,487 452,293

162,493 154,219

3,601 3,068

890,509 869,205

(567,201) (540,058)

27,973 22,714

351.281 351,861

(10)

Depreciation expense amounted to $29,776 In 2023 and $29,392 in 2022. Operation and maintenance
expenses amounted to $26,756 In 2023 and $25,566 In 2022.

Financial Assets and Liquidity Resources '

As of June 30, financial assets and other liquidity resources available within one year for general
expenditures as defined by the University and representing operating expenses, scheduled principal •
payments on debt, and capital construction costs, were as follows:

2023 2022

Financial assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts receivable, net, due within one year
Notes receivable, net, due within one year

Scheduled contributions receivable payments, net,
available for operations

Funds held by bond trustee
Subsequent year's Board-approved endowment draw

Total financial assets available within one year

46,742

20,937

656

2,288

67,182

55,236

25,004

703

1,530

1,672

66,170

A 137,805 150,315

The University's.working capital and cash flows have seasonal variations during the year attributable to .
tuition billing and a concentration of contributions received at calendar and fiscal year ends. To manage
liquidity, the University has other liquidity resources including $70,000 in bank lines of credit as described in
note 12. In addition, the quasi endowment of $106,526 can be made available for general expenditures
with approval from the Board, subject to investment liquidity provisions.
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(11) Long-Term Debt

Long term outstanding as of June 30 consists of the following:

2023 2022

MDFA Revenue Bonds, Brandeis University Issue 2018 Series S-1,
at interest rate of 5.00% maturing in annual installments from
October 1,2020 through October 1,2040 $ 95,490 $ 102,820

MDFA Revenue Bonds, Brandeis University Issue 2018 Series S-2,
at interest rate of 5.00% maturing in annual installments from
October 1,2029 through October 1,2034 36,905 36,905

MDFA Revenue Bonds, Brandeis University Issue 2018 Series R,
at interest rate of 5.00% maturing in annual installments from
October 1,2019 through October 1,2039 31,205- 32,360

MDFA Revenue Bonds, Brandeis University Issue, 2017 Series Q,
at interest rate of 2.58% maturing in annual Installments

from October 1, 2017 through April.l, 2032, at which time a
balloon payment of $13,200 will be due. 17,825 18,250

TD Bank note at interest rate of 3.68% maturing in annual
Installments from October 1, 2017 through June 1, 2032,
at which time a balloon payment of $19,125 will be due. 26,325 27,000

MDFA Revenue Bonds, Brandeis University Issue 2013
Series P-2, at interest rates of 2.35%,

maturing In annual installments from October 1, 2013 through
July 1,2033 14,245 15,315

MDFA Revenue Bonds, Brandeis University Issue 2013
Series P-1, at interest rates of 2.72%,

maturing in annual installments from October 1, 2017 through
April1,2043 12,642 13,110

Total

Unamortized premium, net

Unamortized issuance costs

Long-term debt, net

234,637 245,760

23,090 24,610

(1.563) (1.672)
$  256,164. $  268,698
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The University's principal payment obligations as of June 30, 2023 are as follows:

Fiscal Year Amount

2024

2025

2026-

2027

2028

Thereafter

$ 11,656

12,050

12,619

13,213

14,011

171,088

234.637

Interest expense for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 was
were no capitalized interest costs in 2023 and 2022.

1,928 and $9,417, respectively. There

Bond indentures require the maintenance of certain financial covenants which, among other restrictions,
require the University to maintain an annual debt service coverage ratio of not less than 1.2 to 1.0 and a •
liquidity ratio of not less than 50%.

(12) Line of Credit

The University has a $35,000 line of credit with JPMorgan Chase Bank. N.A. at an interest rate of Adjusted
Term Secured Overnight Financing Rate (SOFR) plus 65 basis points. The Adjusted Term SOFR is equal
to the Term SOFR plus 10 basis points. This agreement expires on March 14. 2024. The University also
maintains a $35,000 line of credit with Eastern Bank at an interest rate of Adjusted SOFR plus 95 basis
points. The Adjusted SOFR is equal to SOFR plus 11 basis points.,This agreement expires on May 1,
2025. As of June 30, 2023 and 2022, there were no borrowings against either line of credit.

(13) Net Assets with Donor Restrictions

Net assets with donor restrictions by major category is as follows as of June 30:

Detail of net assets 2023 2022

Restricted contributions

Contributions receivable, net

Endowment

Student loans

Life income and annuity funds

Funds held in trust by others
Physical plant and other

Unexpended endowment income
Total net assets with donor-imposed restrictions

31,571

18,651

1,103,708

2,605

12,941

11,372

515

13,146

33,363

18,526

1,091,275

2,709

12,873

9,683

978

12,768

$  1.194.509 $ 1.182.175

Net assets with donor-imposed restrictions provide support for instruction, scholarships, auxiliary programs,
library, research, capital, and other programmatic purposes. '
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(14) Endowments

The University's endowment Is pooled for investment purposes and consists of approximately 2,000
individual funds established for a variety of.purposes. The endowment consists of both donor-restricted
funds managed in accordance with applicable law and donor intent, as well as funds designated by the
Board to operate as endowment (quasi-endowment).

If the fair value of an individual donor restricted endowment fund balance falls below its corpus, that fund is
considered to be "underwater." As of June 30, 2023 and 2022, funds with a corpus of $31,265 and $16,837
were "underwater" by $1,557 and $1,122, respectively.

The University follows the provisions of UPMIFA. State law allows the Board to appropriate the endowment
funds as is prudent taking into consideration the University's long-term and short-term needs, present and
anticipated financial requirements, expected total return on its investments, price level trends, and general
economic conditions.

The endowment investment objectives are to maximize risk-adjusted returns over a long-term horizon and
to achieve its objectives by having a strategy of Investing in multiple asset classes. In order to meet the
primary investment goals for endowment funds, the average annual net total return over an exterided
period, after adjusting for inflation, is deemed sufficient to support the spending rate as determined by the
Board. To have a reasonable probability of achieving the Fund's primary investment goal at an acceptable
risk level, the Investment'Committee has adopted a long-term asset allocation policy.

Net assets associated with endowment funds are classified and reported based on the existence or
absence of donor-imposed restrictions. Donor-restricted amounts reported below include gifts donated to
the endowment, term endowments and appreciation.
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.Endowment and quasi-endowment funds consist of the following at June 30:

2023

Donor restricted:

Financial aid

Department programs and support

Quasi (board-designated):

Financial aid

Department programs and support
Total

Donor restricted:

Financial aid

Department programs and supF>ort

Quasi (board-designated):

Financial aid

Department programs and support
Total

Net assets at June 30, 2022

Net investment return

Contributions

•  Utilized in operations

Unexpended endowment payout
Transfers

Net assets at June 30, 2023

With donor restrictions Total funds

Without / as of

donor Accumulated June 30,

restrictions Original gift, returns Totai 2023

$ $ 334,288 $ 79,619 .$ 413,907 $  413,907

- 442,180 237,926 680,106 680,106

38,796 . . 38,796

73,713 9,695 - 9,695 83,408

$  112.509 $ 786.163 $ 317.545 $ 1.103.708 $ 1.216.217

2022

With donor restrictions Total funds

Without as of

donor Accumulated June 30,

restrictions Original gift returns Totai 2022

$  . . $ 326,210 $ 83,915 $  410,125 $  410,125

- 429,254 242,201 671,455 671,455

39,231 . - 39,231

74,662 9,695 - 9,695 84,357

$  113.893 $ 765.159 $ 326.116 $ 1.091.275 $ 1.205.168

ndowment funds for the year ended June 30, 2023 are as follows:

Without

donor With donor

restrictions restrictions Total

$  113,893 $  1,091,275 $1  1.205.168

5,310 50,678 55,988

22 , 19,535 19,557

(6,951) (56,635) (63,586)

235 (2,614) (2,379)
- 1,469 1,469

$  112.509 $  1.103.708 $;  1.216.217
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Changes in endowment and quasi-endowment funds for the year ended June 30, 2022 are as follows:

Without

donor

restrictions

With donor

restrictions Total

Net assets at June 30, 2021 $  124,417 $ 1,161,585 $  1,286,002

Net investment (loss) (4,459) (37,559) (42,018)
Contributions 483 22,535 23,018

Utilized in operations (7,853) (51,460) (59,313)

Unexpended endowment payout 1,305 (5,087) (3,782)
Transfers - 1,261 1,261

Net assets at June 30, 2022 $  113.893 1.091.275 $  1.205.168

(15) Retirement Plans

The University participates in defined contribution plans providing retirement benefits for substantially all
full-time and regular part-time employees. Under the programs, the University makes monthly contributions,
currently 6%-10% of the annual eligible wages of participants, up to defined limits. University contributions
are subject to the participants meeting the minimum employee contributions, age, and service
requirements. Additional voluntary contributions by participants are made subject to statutory limits. The
University's contribution to the plans totaled $11,921 and $11,828 in 2023 and 2022, respectively.

(16) Contingencies

The University is involved in legal cases that have arisen in the normal course of its operations.. The
University believes that the outcome of these cases will not have a material adverse effect on the financial
position of the University.

The University participates in a self-insured health insurance captive (the "Captive") in order to manage its
health insurance costs. Claim amounts for any one individual up to $300 are covered within a self-funded
retention and paid for by^the University. Claim amounts exceeding $300 are shared and paid by the
Captive. Management believes that any liability arising from this contingency would not be material to the
University's financial position. As of June 30, 2023 and 2022, the University had estimated liabilities,
included in accounts payable and accrued liabilities on the balance sheet, for claims incurred but not
reported of $1,746 and $1,646, respectively. Total premium and self-funded retention costs under the
program were $16,143 and $19,063 for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively.
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Daniel S. Rueven '09

Carol R. Saivetz '69, P'97, P'DI
Research Affiliate

Security Studies Program, MIT

Barbara Z. Sander

Mindy L. Schneider '75, P'17

Bram Shapiro

Malcolm L Sherman, P'83, H'14*

Todd E. Soloway '88 Partner
and Co-Chair Pryor Cashman, LLP

Mark A. Surchin, '78
Partner

Goodmans LLP

Barton J. Winokur, H'01* Partner
Dechert LLP •

Bing-LeWu, PhD'91,P'22

Lewin 0. Wright '84
Retired. US Navy

Lan Xue '90, MA'91
Founding Partner
Trivest Advisors

Xiru Zhang, MA'90, PhD'91, P'22

*Former Chair

Confidential, July 2023
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Kristen Faughnan, M.P.A., Senior Research Associate

EDUCATION

Cornell University, Ithaca, NY: M.P.A. with Social Policy Concentration

Hobart and William Smith Colleges, Geneva, NY: B.A. Economics and Public Policy

HIGHLIGHTED EXPERIENCE

Kristen Faughnan is a health services researcher specializing in community engagement, health equity,

and delivery system transformation. Her experience includes: '

•  Supporting stakeholder engagement efforts (including listening sessions, focus groups,

interviews, surveys, and learning collaboratives) with a wide range of groups, such as individuals
experiencing homelessness and/or behavioral health challenges, individuals with developmental
and/or intellectual disabilities, medical and behavioral health providers, healthcare
administrators, and policymakers;

•  Using mixed-methods approaches to understand community needs and evaluate program

outcomes, including assisting with qualitative data analysis and collecting/analyzing publicly

available data from the New Hampshire DHHS Data Portal, the American Community Survey,
and other state and federal sources;

•  '^ Drafting and editing a wide range of reports and manuscripts on topics related to community
needs, health equity, delivery system performance, and quality improvement; and

•  Conducting project management for large research studies and evaluation contracts.
\»
\

In addition, Ms. Faughnan is familiar with the state of New Hampshire, having worked with the New

Hampshire Bureau of Mental Health Services to assess the state's readiness for Certified Community

Behavioral Health Clinic (CCBHC) implementation and support the Bureau's work to develop CCBHC
infrastructure. These efforts have included interviewing a wide range of community providers (n=68)

and government officials (n=ll) in the state, developing regional profiles, and reviewing existing New

Hampshire data and reports. ;

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

Senior Research Associate

Brandeis University, Schneider Institutes for Health Policy (2023-Present)

Research Associate

Brandeis University, Schneider Institutes for Health Policy (2016-2023)

Administrative Assistant

Jansen Engineering, PLLC (2015-2016)

Student Consultant

New Orleans Redevelopment Authority (2015)

Policy Intern, Workplace Programs

National Partnership for Women and Families (2014)
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PUBLICATIONS & PRODUCTS

CCBHC Requirement Scoring Tool. (2024). Microsoft Excel workbook submitted to the New Hampshire

Bureau of Mental Health Services.

Rhode Island Statewide Community Needs Assessment: Certified Community Behavioral Health Clinic

Planning. (2024). Report submitted to the Rhode Island Department of Behavioral Healthcare,

Developmental Disabilities, and Hospitals & the Rhode Island Executive Office of Health and Human

Services.

Buell, J., Faughnan, K., Mazel, S., Zisman-llani, Y., Hennig, S., & Nicholson, J. (2023). Virtual Community

Engagement Studio Toolkit: For Researchers and Community Experts Interested in Maternal Behavioral

Health and Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities. Maternal Mental Health Research Collaborative.

https://www.pcori.ore/sites/default/files/V-CES-Toolkit-for-Mothers-with-IDDBH.pdf

Community Needs Assessment 2023 Survey. (2023). Survey tool developed under contract with the

Rhode Island Department of Behavioral Healthcare, Developmental Disabilities, and Hospitals & the

Rhode Island Executive Office of Health and Human Services.

Final Report: New Hampshire CCBHC Readiness Assessment. (2023). Report submitted to the New
Hampshire Bureau of Mental Health Services.

Nicholson, J., Mazel, S., Faughnan, K., & Silverman, A. (2023). Mothers with intellectual/developmental

disabilities and behavioral health conditions and community experts provide recommendations for

treatment/services, systems, and research. InternationalJournal of Environmental Research and Public

Health, 20(10): 5876. https://doi.org/10.3390/iierph2010S876 •

Massachusetts Health Policy Commission &. Heller School for Social Policy and Management. (2022).

SHIFT-Care Challenge: Medication for addiction treatment (MAT) in the emergency deportment.

https;//www.mass.eov/doc/shift-care-challenge-evaluation-flnal-report/down load

Massachusetts Health Policy Commission. (2021). Targeted Cost Challenge Investments Program: Care

coordination case study. httPs://www.mass.gov/doc/tcci-care-coordination-case-$tudv/download

Massachusetts Health Policy Commission. (2021). Targeted Cost Challenge Investments Program:

evaluation report, https://www.mass.gov/doc/tcci-evaluation-report-0/download

Santos, P., Faughnan, K., Prost, C., & TschampI, C. A. (2021). Systemic barriers to care coordination for

marginalized and vulnerable populations. Journal of Social Distress and Homelessness, 32{2): 234-247.

https://doi.Org/10.1080/10530789.2021.2021361

Summary of qualitative findings: SHIFT-Care external evaluation. (2021). Report submitted to the

Massachusetts Health Policy Commission.

I
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Center for Medicare & Medicaid Innovatioh. (2020). Increasing hospice enrollment: OCM Sites with the

greatest improvement: OCM Learning System case study. Published on OCM Connect.

Santos, P., Joglekar, G., Faughnan, K., Garden, J., & Hendrich, A. (2020). Disproportionate preterm

delivery among black women: a state-level analysis. Journal of Racial and Ethnic Health Disparities, 7(2):

290-297. https://doi.ore/10.1007/s40615-019-00657-x

Center for Medicare & Medicaid Innovation. (2019). Assessing and addressing health-related social

needs: OCM Learning System, case study ffll. Published on OCM Connect.

\

Center for Medicare & Medicaid Innovation. (2019). Building and sustaining high-value patient and

family advisory councils: Oncology Care Model Learning System, resource guide #2. Published on OCM

Connect.

Center for Medicare & Medicaid Innovation. (2019). Decreasing CD utilization: OCM-2 high performers:

OCM Learning System case study. Published on OCM Connect.

Center for Medicare & Medicaid Innovation. (2019). End-of-Hfe care planning: barriers and approaches:

Oncology Care Model Learning System, case study tfS. Published on OCM Connect, r

Resonance and relevance in care coordination: final report. (2019). Report presented to the

Massachusetts Health Policy Commission.

Center for Medicare 's Medicaid Innovation. (2018). Caring for the whole patient: Oncology Care Model.
Learning System, resource guide ffl. Published on OCM Connect.

Center for Medicare & Medicaid Innovation. (2018). Engaging physicians and care teams in OCM

transformation: Oncology Care Model Learning System, case study #5. Published on OCM Connect.

Center for Medicare & Medicaid Innovation. (2018). Survivorship care planning: Oncology Care Model

Learning System, case study ff6. Published on OCM Connect.

Center for Medicare & Medicaid Innovation. (2018). Integrating palliative care: Oncology Care Model

Learning System, case study ff7. Published on OCM Connect.

CPC+ practice spotlight 8: Using Data to Reduce Emergency Department Visits. (2018, January 9).

http://files.constantcontact.eom/047fl9f36Ql/38fcl958-7841-4077-a31b-2b95132d8812.pdf

Santos, P., Joglekar, A., Faughnan, K., Garden, J., Masters, L., Hendrich, A., & McCoy, C. K. (2018).

Sustaining and spreading quality improvement: decreasing intrapartum malpractice risk. Journal of

Healthcare Risk Management, 38: 42-50. https://doi.ore/10.1002/ihrm.21329

Center for Medicare & Medicaid Innovation. (2017). OCM case study ffl: Reducing potentially avoidable

hospitalizations and emergency department utilization. Published on OCM Connect.
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Center for Medicare & Medicaid Innovation. (2017). Patient and family engagement & shared decision-

making: Learning System case study ff2. Published on OCM Connect.

Center for Medicare & Medicaid Innovation. (2017). Supporting oral chemotherapy adherence: Learning

System case study tt3. Published on OCM Connect.

CPC+ practice spotlight 6: Improving quality through eCQM checklists and patient outreach. (2017,

November 7). http://files.constantcontact.eom/047fl9f3601/8493d0a5-99cf-4a50-87b6-

2034d434f57c.pdf

CPC+ practice spotlight 7: Implementing behavioral health integration: Care management model. (2017,

December 19). http://files.constantcontact.eom/047fl9f3601/edele43S-bec6-4593-a5b2-

fbl296068922.pdf
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Palmira SantoS; Ph.D.

Scientist Research and Evaluation: Health and Human Services Equity

Abbreviated Curriculum Vitae

EDUCATION

Ph.D., Health Policy Research, Brandeis University, Vi/altham, MA

M.A., Counseling Psychology, Lesley College, Cambridge, MA

B.S., Psychology & Special Education, Lesley College, Cambridge, MA

HIGHLIGHTED EXPERIENCE

Palmira Santos, Ph.D., has specialized expertise in using mixed methods approaches to access, gather;

and synthesize data from multiple sources. She also has over 40 years of experience as an evaluation

scientist and clinician dedicated to individuals facing inequities and social and economic drivers of health

and wellbeing (SDOH). The foundation of her expertise is grounded in lived experience and working

directly in the health and human service fields. Dr. Santos studies and evaluates health, economic, and

social factors on the national, regional, state, and community levels to identify SDOH and their impact
on healthcare utilization, access, quality, cost, and person outcomes. Building on these analytics, she has

completed research on the full continuum of physical, mental health, and substance use care and

treatment services using participatory research methods ensuring individuals with lived and living

experience are partners in all evaluations.

In addition. Dr. Santos evaluates providers, delivery systems, and catchment areas, examining evidence

from many sources and combining it with patient and provider perspectives to evaluate transformation

initiatives. As an example, in her role as the lead evaluator for a CMMI transformation initiative, she

worked with local and regional teams (37 states and 180 catchment areas) to design arid implement a
complex, multifaceted evaluation. This included the complete design, testing, implementation,

modification, and analysis of up to 300 process and outcome measures, with a core focus on population-

level analysis for disparate outcomes and systemic inequities at the state, catchment area, and

community levels. She created analytics to support evaluations on the provider level targeting

improvements for individuals facing inequity caused by structural barriers and SDOH. She collaborates

with Individuals with lived and living experience, providers, policy makers, and other stakeholders to

gain a deeper perspective on what the data reveal and facilitates platforms for information exchange

between peers so they can learn from each other's experience and performance.

Dr. Santos, using her qualitative expertise, conducts structured, semi-structured, and ethnographic

interviews. She designs, evaluates, implements, and completes the analysis of interviews for multiple
complex evaluations. Interviewees include stakeholders, key informants, and—most importantly—

individuals facing formidable inequities, with a consistent 90%+ engagement rate. She is an expert focus

group facilitator and has designed, evaluated, and analyzed focus groups addressing complex content

and dynamics for a full range of evaluations. In addition, to ensure the validity of mixed methods

evaluations, she conducts validation forums to review findings and concerns and discuss modifications

and strategies to achieve transformation goals. She also creates and facilitates learning collaborativeS so
that transformation initiative sites can assess implementation fidelity and explore options to address

challenges.

Palmira Santos
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PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

Mixed Methods Scientist: Health and Human Service Equity

Brandeis University Schneider Institute on Healthcare Systems.

Primary Investigator

Brandeis University Schneider Institute on Healthcare Systems

Director, Health Systems Research & Evaluation

American Cancer Society

Director, Public Health Specialist Chronic Disease
Alaska & Massachusetts Departments of Public Health (CDC-funded)

.Doctorate Program Administrator and Dissertation Advisor

University of La Verne

Senior Policy Analyst

Division of Medical Assistance

Health Care Financing & Administration Region 10

Consultant

Private Health Systems and Tribal Health

Pacific Northwest

Chief Executive Officer

Eastern Aleutian Tribes (Tribal Health System)

H-n

Range of Clinical and Leadership Positions

(2013-present)

(2008-2013)

(2006-2008)

(2002-2006)

(1999-2006)

(1996-1999)

(1994-1996)

(1990-1994)

(1979-1990) "

SELECTED PUBLICATIONS

Rhode Island Statewide Community Needs Assessment: Certified Community Behavioral Health Clinic

Planning. (2024). Report submitted to the Rhode Island Department of Behavioral Healthcare,^ •
Developmental Disabilities, and Hospitals & the Rhode Island Executive Office of Health and Human

Services.

CCBHC Requirement Scoring Tool. (2024). Microsoft Excel workbook submitted to the New Hampshire

Bureau of Mental Health Services.

Santos, P., Vose-O'Neal, A., Lifton, J., Steely, E., Epier, K., Graustein, D., FIckenwirth, E., Small, R.,

Rodrigues, D., Goodman, E., Steiblin, A., Whitty, D., & Stein, L. (2024). CCBHC Evidence-Based Practices &

Fidelity Resource Guide. Report submitted to the Rhode Island Department of Behavioral Healthcare,

Final Report: New Hampshire CCBHC Readiness Assessment. (2023). Report submitted to the New

Hampshire Bureau of Mental Health Services.

Palmira Santos
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Developmental Disabilities, and Hospitals & Rhode Island CCBHC organizations.

Massachusetts Health Policy Commission & Heller School for Social Policy and Management. (2022).

SHIFT-Care Challenge: Medication for addiction treatment (MAT) in the emergency department.

https://www.mass.eov/doc/shift-care-challenee-evaluation-final-report/download

Santos, P., Faughnan, K., Prost, C., &Tschampl, C. A. Systemic barriers to care coordination for

marginalized and vulnerable populations. yourno/o/Soc/o/ Distress and Homelessness (2021)

Massachusetts Health Policy Commission. Targeted Cost Challenge Investments Program: Care

Coordination Case Study. (2021). httDs://www.mass.eov/doc/tcci-care-coordinatlon-case-

studv/download ^

Massachusetts Health Policy Commission. Targeted Cost Challenge Investments Program: Evaluation

Report. (2021). https://www.mass.eov/doc/tcci-evaluation-report-0/download

Center for Medicare & Medicaid Innovation. (2020). Increasing hospice enrollrhent: OCM Sites with the
greatest improvement: OCM Learning System case study. Retrieved from OCM Connect.

Santos, P., Joglekar, G., Faughnan, K., Darden, J., & Hendrich, A. (2020). Disproportionate preterm

delivery among Black women: a state-level analysis. Journal of Racial and Ethnic Health Disparities, 7(2):

290-297. https://doi.ore/10.1007/s40615-019-00657-x

Center for Medicare & Medicaid Innovation. (2019). Assessing and addressing health-related social

needs: OCM Learning System, case study fill. Retrieved from OCM Connect.

Center for Medicare & Medicaid Innovation. (2019). Building and sustaining high-value patient and

family advisory councils: Oncology Care Model Learning System, resource guide HI. Retrieved from OCM

Connect.

Center for Medicare & Medicaid Innovation. (2019). Decreasing ED utilization: OCM-2 high performers:
OCM Learning System case study. Retrieved from OCM Connect.

Center for Medicare & Medicaid Innovation. (2019). End-of-life care planning: barriers and approaches:

Oncology Care Model Learning System, case study ifS. Retrieved from OCM Connect.

Center for Medicare & Medicaid Innovation. (2018). Caring for the whole patient: Oncology Care Model

Learning System, resource guide til. Retrieved from OCM Connect.

Center for Medicare & Medicaid Innovation. (2018). Engaging physicians and care teams in OCM

transformation: Oncology Care Model Learning System, case study ffS. Retrieved from OCM Connect.

Center for Medicare &. Medicaid Innovation. (2018). Survivorship care planning: Oncology Care Model

Learning System, case study ftS. Retrieved from OCM Connect.

Center for Medicare & Medicaid Innovation. (2018). Integrating palliative care: Oncology Care Model

Learning System, case study tf7. Retrieved from OCM Connect.

Palmira Santos
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CPC+ practice spotlight 8: using data to reduce emergency department visits. (2018, January 9).
http://files.constantcontact.eom/047fl9f3601/38fcl958-7841-4077-a31b-2b95132d8812.pdf

Hefele, J. G., Santos, P., Ritter, G., Varma, N., & Hendrich, A. (2018). Risk factors for shoulder dystocia;

the impact of mother's race and ethnicity. Journal of Racial and Ethnic Health Disparities, 5: 333-341.
https://doi.Org/10.1007/s40615-017-0374-9

Santos, P., Hefele, J. G., Ritter, G., Darden, J., Firneno; C., & Hendrich, A. (2018). Population-based risk

factors for shoulder dystocia./ourno/o/Obstetr/c, Gynecologic, and Neonatal Nursing, 47(1), 32-42.

https://doj.org/10.1016/i.jogn.2017.11.011

Santos, P., Joglekar, A., Faughnan, K., Darden, J., Masters, L., Hendrich, A., 8t McCoy, C. K. (2018).

Sustaining and spreading quality improvement: decreasing intrapartum malpractice risk. Journal of

Healthcare Risk Management, 38: 42-50. https://doi.ore/10.1002/jhrm.21329

• Writing Excellence Award: American Society for Healthcare Risk Management

Center for Medicare & Medicaid Innovation. (2017). OCM case study ffl: reducing potentially avoidable

hospitalizations and emergency department utilization. Retrieved from OCM Connect.

Center for Medicare & Medicaid Innovation. (2017). Patient and family engagement 8i shared decision-

making: Learning Systern case study U2. Retrieved from OCM Connect.

Center for Medicare & Medicaid Innovation. (2017). Support/ng oral chemotherapy adherence: Learning

System case study ffS. Retrieved from OCM Connect.

CPC+ practice spotlight 3: timely communication and home visits after hospitalizations improves
readmission rates. (2017, August 15). http://files.constantcbntact.eom/047fl9f3601/bfbf210d-c4bc-
4860-aff8-8be61c75a0dc.pdf

CPC+ practice spotlight 6: improving quality through eCQM checklists and patient outreach. (2017,

November 7). http://files.constantcontact.eom/047fl9f3601/8493d0a5-99cf-4a50-87b6-
2034d434f57c.pdf

CPC+ practice spotlight 7: implementing behavioral health integration: Care management model. (2017,
December 19). http://file5.constantcontact.eom/047fl9f3601/edele435-bec6-4593-a5b2-

fbl296Q68922.pdf
t

Cusick, W., Cox, R. L, Santos, P., Hefele, J. G., & Darden, J. (2017, January). Shoulder dystocia response:

improving neonatal outcomes. Poster session presented at the Pregnancy Meeting of the Society for
Maternal-Fetal Medicine, Las Vegas, NV.

Burstein, P. D., Zaienski, D. M., Edwards, J. L., Rafi, I. Z., Darden, J. F., Firneno, C., & Santos, P. (2016).

Changing labor and delivery practice: focus on achieving practice and documentation standardization
with the goal of improving neonatal outcomes. Health Services Research, 51(53), 2472-2486.
https://doi.ore/10.llll/1475-6773.12589

Palmira Santos
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Santos, P., Ritter, G. A., Hefele, J. L., Hendrich, A., & McCoy, C. K. (2015). Decreasing intrapartum

malpractice: targeting the most injurious neonatal adverse events. Journal of Healthcare Risk

Management, 34(4), 20-27. https://doi.org/10.1002/ihrm.21168

Hacker, K., Santos, P., Thompson, D., Stout, S. S., Bearse, A., & Mechanic, R. (2014). Early experience of a

safety net provider reorganizing into an accountable care organization. Journal of Health Politics, Policy

and Law. 33(41. 901-917. https://doi.org/10.121S/03616878-2744284

Hendrich, A., McCoy, C. K., Gale, J., Sparkman, L, & Santos, P. (2014). Ascension Health's demonstration

of full disclosure protocol for unexpected events during labor and delivery shows promise. Health
Affairs, 33(1), 39-45. https://doi.org/10.1377/hlthaff.2013.1009

Henkel, R., Slosar, J. P., Haydar, Z., Hendrich, A., & Santos, P. (2014, January 7). The moral imperative to
disclose medical error: Doing the right thing. Heaith Affairs Blag.

https://www.healthaffair5.org/do/10.1377/hblog20140107.036302/full/

Santos, P. (2013). Molecular diagnostics and companion therapies: partnerships, payment, and evidence

development. The Health Industry Forum.

Santos, P. (2013). Sfofes' role in health care reform: possibilities to improve access and quality: The 19th

Princeton Conference. Council on Health Care Economics and Policy, https://heller.brandeis.edu/health-
industrv-forum/materials/2012/mav-23-25/princeton-conference-report-mav-2012.pdf

Mechanic, R., Santos, P., Landon, B. E., & Chernew, M. E. (2011). Medical group responses to global

payment: early lessons from the 'Alternative Quality Contract' in Massachusetts. Health Affairs, 30(9),
1734-1742. https://doi.org/10.1377/hlthaff.2011.0264

Santos, P. (2011). Accountable Care Organizations: implications for consumers. The Health Industry

Forum, https://heller.brandeis.edu/health-industrv-forum/materials/2bl0/october-14/cr-2010-oct-

14.pdf

Santos, P. (2011). The evolution of state health insurance exchanges. The Health Industry Forum.
https://heller.brandeis.edu/health-industrv-forum/materials/2011/iulv-13/FINAL-cr.Ddf

Santos, P. (2010). Establishing a national system of health insurance exchanges. The Health Industry

Forum, https://heiler.brandeis.edu/health-industrv-forum/pdfs/policv-briefs/2009-iulv-20-health-

insurance-exchanges.pdf

Santos, P. (2010). Federal Strategies for Promoting Affordable Biologies: Follow-on Biologic Competition
conference report. The Health Industry Forum.

Sussman, J., Santos, P., & Altman, S. (2010). Examining end of life care: creating sensible public policies

for patients, providers, and payers. Council on Heaith Care Economics and Policy / Health Industry
Forum. https://heller.brandeis.edu/council/pdfs/2010/2010%20Prlnceton%20Conference%20v092810-

new%20photos.pdf

Palmira Santos
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List those primarily responsible for meeting the terms and conditions of the agreement.

Job descriptions not required for vacant positions.

Contractor Name: Brandeis University

ANNUAL

AMOUNT PAID ANNUAL

FROM THIS SALARY

CONTRACT

Palmira Santos Scientist Evaluator $41,259.00' $133,095.00

Kristen Faughnan Project Coordinator Data Analyst $40,002.00 $77,900.00

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00
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Lorl A. Weaver

Comnluioaer

Kaija & Fox
Director

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DJVISION FOR BEHA VIORAL HEALTH

129 PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD, NH 03301
603.271-9544 1.800-652.3345 Ext 9344

Frx: 603'27M333 TDD Access; 1-600-735.2964 www.dhhs:nh.gov

December 6, 2023

His Excellency. Governor Christopher J. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

i  ■ Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health,
toj,enter Into,a Sole.Source amendment to an .existing contract with Brandeis.University
{YC#392871), Waltham, MA, to add funding to expand the development of Certified Community
Behavioral Health Clinic related application and tools, by Increasing the price limltalipn. by
$155,891 from $182,405 to $338,296 with no change to the contract completion date of June 30,

• 2024, effective upon Governor and Council approval. 100% Federal Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on September 7,2022, item.
*133 and most recently amended with Governor and Council approval on June 14.2023, i.terh U33.

Funds, are. available In the following accountsfor State Fiscal Year 2024, with the authority
to adjust budget line items within the price limitation through the'Budget Office, if needed'and
justified.

05-95-92-922010-23400000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS
DEPT OF, HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES,
PROHEALTH NH GRANT (100% FEDERAL FUNDS)

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount.

Revised

Budget

2023 Idi2-500731 Contractsfor

Prog Svc
92202340
•/ •

$53,298 $0 ! $.53,298

Subtotat $53,298 $0 . $53;29d
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His ExoeDency. GwelTK>rC^Hstop^lerT. Sunumi
and the Hpnorabia Councfl

-P^e2of3

05.95-92-922010-41200000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN

SVCS DEPT OF HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF MENTAL HEALI^
SERVICES. MENTAL HEALTH BLOCK GRANT (100% FEDERAL FUNDS - ARPA)

State

Fiscal,

Year ,
1

Class/

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)

Amount

Revised,
Budget-

2023^'
1

074-500589

1

Grants for

'public asst

and relief

92254120 $44,109 SO $44,109

2024 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Serv.
92254120

$0 $155,891 $155,891

Subtotal $44,109 $155,891 $200,000

05-95.92-922010-19090000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS
DEPT. HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES,
SAMHSA GRANT (100% Federal Funds)

State

Fiscal

Year.

Class/

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount .

Revised

Budget

2023 102-500731 Contracts for

Program
Svcs

TBD $15,454 $0 $15,454

2024 102-500731 !Contracts for
'Program

Svcs

TBD $69,544 $0 $69,544

.. Subtotal $84,998 $0 $84,998

}

- Total $182,405 $155,891 $338,296

EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because the Department is requesting to add more than 16%
of the doliarampunt of the original contract and add additional scope of work.

The Gontractof was originally selected through a competitive bid process using a Request
for Proposals. This contract enables the department to move into Fliase 2 of Certified Corhmunity
Behavioral Health'Clinic'(CCB^^ exploration work as outlined in the original soiidtation.

The Contractor will, provide targeted support and technical assistance to the Department:
to fulfijl required activities outiined in the CCBHC Planning Grant,.administered through the
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration. This Phase 2 scope of work
indudes working in partnership with the Department's contracted actuarial firm to assist in the
deyelopmenl of a Medicaid Prbspecitive Payment Model proposal for CCBHC implernentation; To
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Hj8 Excellency. Gqy^or Christopher T. Sunurwj f
arKl the Honoirabie Coufvcfl
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provide techiiical asslstancis .tp the Departrnent to draft a proposed State Plan Amendment tp the
Department's community rnental health section of the Medicaid State Plan and develop, a
CCBHC service delivery, implementation .plan; Support implementation of the States'
Stakeholder Engagement Plan; and Assist the Deparpnent with planning and preparation of
the CCBHC pemons^tipn" Project as part of the CCBHC Planning Grant.

This arnendment also allov^ the Departrfient to continue to review the CCBHC model of
Integrated behavioral health-^re through a comprehensive system analysis In partnership with
the existing community marital health centers and substance use disorder treatment providers.

The Department wiil continue monitoring Contractor performance through the review of
monthly status-reports to ensure project .deliverables Br>d associated timelines ere met and
adhered tp.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, the Department may be
unable to apply for the federal CCBHC Demonstration Project grant and effectively implement the
CCBHC rribdel, therefore limiting the quality of integrated community based mental.health and
substance use services.

Area served: Statewide.

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number #93.958, FAIN #B09SM0085371,
Assistance Listing Number" #93.243, FAIN #H79SMb80245, and Assistance Listing Number
,#93.829, FAIN #.H79SM087622.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not-
be.requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Lorl A. Weaver

Commissioner

The DeparC/)ie/it c/,/feaUh and //union ̂ rvices'/ifissi'on is lo Join communiiies and /aniilies
in piyv'ding opportu/tilief (or citizsniio ochieit /italth and independence.
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment U2

This Amendment to the Readiness Study for Certified Community Behavioral Health Clinics (CCBHC)
contract is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Departrnent of Health and Human Services
("State" or "Department") and Brandels University ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, .pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on September 7. 2022 (Item #33), as amended on June 14. 2023 (Item #33), the Contractor agreed to
perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and
in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General'Provisions, the Contract may be amended upon written
agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Llrhitatlon, to read:

$338,296

2. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services by replacing in its entirety with Exhibit B Amendrrient #2.
Scope of Services, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

3. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 1, to read:

1. This Agreement is funded by:

1.1. 25.29% Federal funds, Certified Community Behavioral Health Clinics (CCBHC) Expansion
Grants, as awarded on 3/15/23, by U.S. DHHS Substance Abuse and Mental Health
Services Administration. ALN#,93.829, FAIN# H79SM087622;

1.2. 15.76% Federal funds, ProHealth NH: New Hampshire Partnerships to Improve Health's
Wellness for Young People with SED and SMI, as awarded on 8/10/21, by the U.S.
Department of Health and Human Services, Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services
Administration, ALN#.93.243, FAIN# H79SM080245; and ,

1.3. 58.95% Federal funds, Mental Health Block Grant (MHBG), as awarded on 5/17/21, by the
U.S. DHHS Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration, ALN# 93 958
FAIN#B09SM085371.

■ 4. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 3, to read:

3. Payment shall be rnade upon completion and,approval by the Department of the deliverables
as specified in Exhibit C-1, Phase 1, Service System Analyses Task Deliverables Budget
Worksheet, Exhibit C-2, Amendment 1, Support and Technical Assistance Budget Worksheet
SFY23, Exhibit C-3, Amendment 1, Support and Technical Assistance Budget Worksheet
SFY24, and Exhibit C-4, Amendment 2, Support and Technical Assistance Budget WorkshOet
SFY24,

5. -Modify Exhibit C. Payment Terms, Section 4, to read:

4. The Contractor must submit an invoice with supporting documentation to the Department no
later than 30 days after completing the deliverables as specific in Exhibit C-1, Phase 1, Service
System Analyses Task Deliverables Budget Worksheet through Exhibit C-4, Amendment ̂2.
Support and Technical Assistance Budget SFY24. The Contractor must ensure each invoice:

4.1 Includes the Contractor's Vendor Number issued upon registering New

Brandels University A-S-1.3 Contractor Initials ̂
RFP-2023-BMHS-01-READI-01-A02 Page 1 of 4 Date
v7,12.23 '
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Hampshire Department of Administrative Services.

4.2 Is submitted in a form that Is provided by or otherwise acceptable to the Department.

4.3 Identifies and r^uests payment for allowable costs incurred in the previous month.

4.4 Includes supporting documentation of allowable costs with each Invoice, that may
Include, but are not limited to: timesheets, payroll records, receipts for purchase, and
proof of expenditures, as applicable.

4.5 Is completed, dated, and returned to the Department with the supporting
documentation for allowable expenses to Initiate payment.

4.6 Is assigned an electronic signature, Includes supporting documentation, and is
emailed to dhhs.dbhinvoicesmhs@dhhs.nh.Qov or mailed to:

Financial Manager
Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

6. Add Exhibit 0-4, Amendment 2, Support and Technical Assistance Budget Worksheet SFY24,
which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

Brandeis Unlverslly A-S-1.3 Contractor Initiate
12/8/20?!

RFP-2023-BMHS-01-READI-01-A02 Page 2 of 4 Date _ _ . _
v7.12.23

— OS •
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All terrhs and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective upon Governor and Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the dale written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

12/8/2023

Date

^0«cuS>ei>*d by:

Name;l<^^^a^5rf:i3x
Title: Director

12/8/2023

Date .

Brandeis University
OocoSlgnbd

Name

Title: CFo

Brandeis Universily

iRFP-2023-BMHS.01tREADI-01-A02
eff. 7.12.23

A-S-1.3

Page 3 of 4
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution. . '

Of^FICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

^——OoeuSljftfd by:

12/11/2023

.  ' ■■ ■"' — * ■■TiurauMuwueci...
Date Name: Robyn Guarino

Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendrhent was approved by the Governor and Executive CouncH 'of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date , Name:
Title:

Brandets Universily A-S'-1.3

RFP-2023-BMHS-01 •READI-01-A02 Page 4 of 4
eff. 7.12.23
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Readiness Study for Certified Community Behavioral Health Clinics (CCBHC)

EXHIBIT B - Amendment 2

Scope of Services

1. Statement of Work

1.1. The Contractor must provide consultation and guidance to the Department and
selected state vendor on actuarial work that assesses anticipated costs and
applies financial and statistical theories to and planning for the financial impact
of risk related to a Certified Community Behavioral Health Clinic (CCBHC)
service model Implementation In NH. The Contractor must ensure actuarial
consultation and guidance Includes, but is not limited to:

1.1.1. Providing a framework and recommendations that assist the
Department in identifying, characterizing, and managing costs and
risks associated to CCBHC service model implementation In NH; and

1.1.2. The Contactor must provide.technical assistance and information that
details the review and feedback of the actuarial analysis in the written
Actuarial Revievy and Feedback Report from Phase 1.

1.2. The Contractor must collaborate with the Department to consult on a Payment
• Plan Model Proposal for CCBHC service model Implementation. The
Contractor must ensure the payment plan model proposal Is based on:

1.2.1. CCBHC requirements; and

1.2.2. Department and NH Community Mental Health Center (CMHC) and
Substance Use Disorder (SUD) treatment systems' capacities;
infrastructure, and priorities.

1.3. The Contractor must draft a Proposed State Plan Amendment to the
Department's Community Mental Health aiid SUD sections of the Medlcald
State Plan, herein after referred to as the State Plan," which supports CCBHC
Implementation. The Contractor must receive Department input, review, and
approval of the proposed amendment prior'to final, amendment draft.

1.4. The Contractor must support the current sVa/ceho/cfe/'Engagemenf P/an. The
Contractor's support of the Stakeholder .Engagement Plan must Include, but Is
not limited to:

1.4.1. Identification of key local, state and federal stakeholders engaging
with the Department"and-selected state vendors on stakeholder
engagement activities;

1.4.2. Consultation on engagement.strategy and associated activlties; and

1.4.3. Tools,to be used to execute the Stakeholder Engagement plan.

1.5. The Contractor must attend the monthly Stakeholder Advisory Council to
provide technical assistance on stakeholder engagement activities reviewed by
the council in Implementing the Stakeholder Engagement Plan.

1.6. The Contractor must collaborate with the Department to develop a QC^C

RFP.2023-BMHS-01-READI-01-A02 8-2.0 . Conlractor Iniiials,
Brar)deis Unlver&lty Pago 1 of 5 Date
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Readiness Study for Certified Community Behavloral Health Clinics (CCBHC)

EXHIBIT 8 - Amendment 2

service delivery implementation Plan. The Contractor must ensure the
Implementation Plan Includes, but is not limited to:

1.6.1. Steps necessary to accomplish program goals, including, but not
limited to assignment of proposed responsibilities and tasks; and

1.6.2. Allocation of resources including, but not limited to:

1.6.2.1. Resources currently available;

1.6.2.2. Resources that need to be developed or procured; and

1.6.2.3. Timelines for:

1.6.2.3.1. Role changes .and other state-level
actions that may impact activities with local, state and
federal stakeholders; and

1.6.2.3.2. Project milestones.

1.7. The Contractor must meet with the Department and stakeholders at a
frequency and via a method approved by the Department to ensure project
goals arid contract deliverables are being achieved.

1.8. The Contractor must ensure services under this Agreement are provided in
accordance with:

1.8.1.. Protecting Access to Medicare Act of 2014, H.R.4032,113'^ Congress
(2013-2014); and

1.8.2. CCBHC criteria as defined by the Substance Abuse and Mental
Health Services Administration (SAMHSA).

1.9. CCBHC Planning Grant Support and Technical Assistance

1.9.1. The Contractor must provide targeted support and technical
assistance (TA) to the Department .that assists in the planning and
preparation for the CCBHC Demonstration Project as part of the
CCBHC Planning Grant, administered through the Substance Abuse
and Mental Health ■ Services, Administration (SAMHSA). The
Contractor must ensure support and TA include, but are not limited
to:

1.9.1.1. Developing a CCBHC Certification Tool and associated user
manual to assess and certify CCBHCs in NH.

1.9.1.2. Developing a comprehensive draft application - for
participation in the CCBHC National Demonstration
Program.

1.9.2. The Contactor must provide TA and support to the Department's
CCBHC Certification Workgroup through participation in meetings as
requested by and at a frequency determined by the Departmenhj^j

RFP.20?3-BMHS-01-READI-01-A02 B-2.0 Conlractor Inillals
Brandels University Page 2of 5 ' Date 12/8/^0^3
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Readiness Study for Certified Community Behavioral Health Clinics (CCBHC)

EXHIBIT B - Amendment 2

1.9.3, The Contractor must participate in and report to the Department's
CCBHC Leadership Team meetings, at a minimum of mpnthly basis.

1.9.4. The Contractor must attend the Department's CCBHC Stakeholder
Advisory Committee, as requested by the Department.

1.10. Reporting

1.10.1. Implementation Plan Development Reporting Requirements

1.10.1.1. The Contractor must prepare and submit the following written
reports to the department, in accordance with Table 2, Phase
2 - Implementation Plan Development Reporting, below.

1.10.1.2. The Contractor may be required to provide other key data and
metrics to the Department in a format specified by the
Department.

1.10.1.3. The Contractor must meet with the Department, a minimum of
monthly, to actively and regularly collaborate to enhance
contract management, improve results, and adjust program
delivery and policy based on successful outcomes.

TabIe-2,7,Phase^2;y:^lfnplemeritatl6h Plan. Development Reporting"
pescri^tioriT DiieDate

Monthly Status
Reports

Progress of acllvllies Including:

•  Accomplishments
I

•  Current tasks and action Items Including responsible
parties

•  Challenges

•  Resolutions to challenges

•  Open Issues

• Work plan revision requests and approved changes.

No later than the
20'^ day of

each month

Stakeholder •

Engagement
Recommendations

Written recommendations on stakeholder engagement.

No later than ̂
days after the

approved start
date of Phase 2

Actuarial Review

and Feedback

Report

Presentation of the written report detailing the actuarial
analysis.

No later than 30

days after the

approved start
dale of Phase 2

Draft State Plan

Amendrnent, as
direcied by the
Department.

Written recommendations for state plan amendment that
support CCBHC implementation.

No later than 60

days after the

approved start
date of Phase 2

•pa

RFPr2023-BMHS-p1-READI-01-A02
Brandeis University

B-2,0

Page 3 of 5
Contractor initials

Date
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New Hampshire Department pf Health and Human Services
Readiness Study for Certified Community Behavioral Health Ciinics (CCBHC)

EXHIBIT B - Amendment 2

implementation
Report

Written report including recommended timelines and
activities for rule changes and other state-level regulatory
actions.

No later than 90

days after the

approved start
date of Phase 2

2. Exhibits Incorporated

'2.1. The Contractor must use and disclose Protected Health Information In
compliance with the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Inforniatioh {Privacy Rule) (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164) under the Health
Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1996, and In
accordance with the attached Exhibit I. Business Associate Agreement, which
has been executed by the parties,

2.2. The Contractor must manage all confidential data related to this Agreement in
accordance .with the' terms of Exhibit K. DHHS Information Security
Requirements.

'2.3. The Contractor must comply with all Exhibits D through K. which are attached
hereto.and incorporated by reference herein.

3. Additional Terms

3.1. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes

3.1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future state or federal
legislation or court orders may have an impact on the Services
described herein, the State has the right to modify Service priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve
compliance therewith.

3.2. Credits and Copyright Ownership

3.2.1. All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other
materials prepared during or resulting from the performance of the
services of the Agreement must include the following staternent, "The
preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under an
Contract with the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and
.Hurnan Services, with funds provided in part by the State of New
Harnpshire and/of such other funding sources as were available.or
^required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human
Services." ' . '

3.2.2. All materials produced or purchased under the Agreement must have
prior approval from the Department , before -printing, production,
distribution, of use. ^

3'.2.3.* The. Department must retain copyright ownership for any and all
original materials produced, including, but not limited to:

-OS

RFP-2023-BMHS-pi-READI-01rA02
Brar>deis University

B-2.0

Page 4 of 5
Contractor Initials

Date 12/8/20^3
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Readiness Study for Certified Community Behavioral Health Clinics (CCBHC)

EXHIBIT B - Amendment 2

3.2.3.1. Brochures.

3.2.3.2. Resource directories.

3.2.3.3. Protocols or guidelines.

3.2.3.4. Posters.

3.2.3.5. Reports.

3.2.4. The Contractor must not reproduce any materials produced under the
Agreement without prior written approval from the Department.

4. Records

4.1. The Contractor must keep records that include, but are not limited to:

4.1.1. Books, records, documents and other electronic or physical data
evidencing and reflecting all costs and other expenses incurred by the
Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all income received
or collected by the Contractor. ,

4.1.2. All . records must be maintained in accordance with accounting
procedures and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all such
costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original
evidence of costs such as purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers,
requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of in-kind contributions,
labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by
the Department.

4.2. During the term of this Agreement and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and
any of their designated representatives must have access to all reports and
records maintained pursuant to the Agreement for purposes of audit,
examination, excerpts and transcripts.

4.3. If, upon reyiew of the Final Expenditure Report the Department must disallow
any expenses claimed by the Contractor as costs hereunder, the Department
retains the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such expenses as
are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

RFP-2023-BMHS-01-READI-01*A02 B-2.0 Contractor Initials
Brandels University Page 5 of 5 Dato

•04.
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.  Exhibit C-4-Amendment2

Support and Technical Assistance Budget Worksheet SFY24

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
COMPLETE ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOD

Contractor Name: Brandeis University

Project Title: State Readiness Assessment for CCBHC

Budget Period: G&C Approval through June 30.2024 (SFY2024),

Funded by-DHHS. -  ,

Task Deliverable Amount

Attend monthly meetings
$  . 27,218.37

Support draft of SAMHSA quarterly
reports $ 51,444.23

Draft applications for the planning year
$ 77,228.40

$ 155,891.00

Brandeis University
RFP-2023-BMHS-01-READI-01-A02

Exhibit C-4, Amendment 2. Support and Technical Assistance Budget SFY24
Page 1 of 1

Contractor Initials

— OS

Date
12/8/2023
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STATE OJ' NEW HAMPSHmr.

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR SEHA VJORALHEALTN

J29 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORRNH €3301
603-37i-9544 1-86M52-334SExL95^'

Fm:603-27]4J32 7PD Accei>: 1<800-73349M ^v^,dhhi.ciIt.f»V

May 22. 20^

Hfs Ei^Oeh^, Governor Chrfstopher T. Sununu
'^nd the Honorable Council

State Hou^
Gdhcordl Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

-Authortze the Dei^rtmenl of Health and Human Services, OMslon /of Behavioral H^lth,
to amerKJ.'ari ejdsting contract with'Brandeis UniverBlty (VC<K392871). WalOi^^ ̂ ,'to^^o\^de
tf^e bepa/trnent with technic^ assistance and supports In the continued developm^ of berUfted
Community Behavioral Health Clinic related applications and tools, by ex^clslng-a contract
renewal option by Increasirtg the price lirnltatjon by $84,9M frprn $97,407 to $102,405 end

• e}d8ndlng .the compiellon date from June 30, 2023 to June 30. 2024, eff^ive upon Oovemor
and Council approval. 100% Federal Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Coundi on September 7..2d22.'item
niz,

Fufids are ayallabJe lh ;the. fpltoyring accounts, for State Fiscal , Year 2023 and are
anticipated to be available In State Fiscal Year 2024; upon the availability arid 'cbhUnu^
bppfopflation of funds In'thb future operating budget, with the autiwyity to adjust.buc^ettine items
vi^ih the price iimltation through the Budget Offipe, if needed and justified.

0&-$S-92.S22010-2340 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERViCES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS
DEPT OF; HHS^BEHAV10RAL HEATLH OIV, BUREAU OF MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES,
PROHMltH NH GRANT (100% Federal Funds)

estate
Fisdat
Year

Class /

Account
Class Title Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

<Oocroased)
^bunt'

Revised

Budget

.2(tt3 '102-500731
Contracts for

Program
Services

92202340 $53,298 SO $53,298

Subtotal $53,298

05-S5-92^922bi0^12b0b6b.HEALTH'ANO SOCIALSERVICES. H^TH AND HUMAN SVCS^
OEPT, iHHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF MENTAL HEALTH SERVJCES,
MENtAL HEALTH'eLOCk GRANT (100% Federal Fuhds-ARPA)



' Hh Exceflenqr, Governor Chrt$tophOf T. Sununu
end the Honorsbto'Counct)
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State

Fiscal

Year

Class/

Accourit
Class Title

Job

Number

Currertt

Budget

Irtcreasbd

{Decreased)
Amount

Revl^

Budget

2023 074-500589

Grants for
Pub Asst and

Relief

92254120 $44,109 $0 $44,109

Subtotal $U,109 SO $44,109

05-95^2-922010-1 gOdOOOO HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS
DEPT» HNS; BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV. BUREAU OF MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES,
SAMHSA GRANT <100% Federal Funds)

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /
Account

Class Title
Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revis^
Budget

2023 102-500731

Contracts fa

Program
Svcs

TBD

$0 $15,454 $15,4^

2024 "102-^0731
Contracts for
Program
Svcs

TBD

$0 $69,544 $69,544

Subtotal $0 $84,999

TOTAL $97,407 $84,998 $182,405

J  EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to add funding and scope of work for the Contractor to
provide targeted support and technical assistance to the Oepaitmeni to futfill required activities
putJined in the Certified Community Behavioral Health- Clinic (CCBHC) Planning Grant,
administered through the Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration
(SA^SA). This arriendrrient also allows the Department to continue exploration of the CCBHC
model of Iritegrated behavioral health care through a comprehensive system analysis in
partnership with the. existing community mental health centers and substance use disorder
treatment providers.

The Department will continue monitoring Contractor perforimance through the review of
monthly status reports to ensure project deliverables and associated timelines ere rriet and
adhered to. , .

As r^erenced in Exhibit A. Revisions to Standard Agreement Provisions, of the origlrial
agreement, the parties have the option to extend the agreernent for up to one (1) additional year,
contingerit upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties and
Governor arid Council approval, the Department is exercising its option to renew services for one
(1) year of the one'(1) year available.

Should the Governor arid Council not authorize this request, Department may.lose the
opportunity to understand how to improve quality of integrated comrnunlty based men^l health
and substance use services though potentially implementing the Certified Community Behavioral
Health Clinic'model.



His Ej^ienqr. Opvemor Ciiristo^r T. Sununii
fffx} the ̂ orobto CouncU

PaQe3of3

Area served: Statewide.

Source of Federal Furids: Assistancia Ustir^ Number# 93.958. FAIN B09SM085371 aixl
Assistance Listing Numb^ #93.243. FAIN H79SM080245 and 93.829, FAIN H79SM087622.

In the event that the Federal Funds become ho lortger available. General Funds will not
be requested to support this prograrh.

Respectfully submitted.

Lori A. Weaver

Interim Commissioner

Th« Dtpartmenlp/Hnlth and fiumon Str^^t'MUston u la/oinco/iununiiitt and famUie$
in prouidins oppoftunilieifor ci'lizcfli to ochievt heollh and indcptndtnet.
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendmont.ffl

This Amendment to the- Readiness Study for Certified Community Behavioral Health Clinics (CCBHC)
contract is by and between the State of New Hampshire/ Department of Health and Hurnan Services
("Stale" or "Oepartmenr) arid Brandeis University ("the Coritractor'O:'

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on SeptembeV 7. 2022 (Item #33). the Conlractbr,agreed to perform'cerlain services based upon the terms
and conditions specified In the Contract and in consideraUpn of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37.-GenerarPfovisions, Paragraph 17, and Exhibit A. Revisions to
Standard Agreement Provisions, the" Contract may be amend^ upon vyrittcn agreertient of the parties
and approval from the Governor and Executive Cpuncll; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the.agreement, increase the price limitation, and
support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFdRE. in consideration of the foregoing and the'rhutual covenants arid conditioris contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to arriend as follows:

1. Form P-37 Gerieral Provisions. Block 1.7. Completion Dale, to read:

June 30. 2024

2. Form P-37 General Proyislons. Block 1.8. Price Limiliation. to read:

$182,405

3. -Modify Exhibit 8. Scope of Services by replacing it in its entirety with Exhibit B - Amendment 1.
which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

4. Modify Exhibit C. Payment Terms, Section 1. to read:

1. This Agreement is funded by:

1.1. 47% Federal funds, Certified Community Behavioral Health Clinics (CCBHC) Expansion
- Grants, as awarded on 3/15/23, by DHHS Substance Abuse and Mental Heallh Services

Administration. ALN 93.829, FAIN# H79SM087622;

■1.2. 29% Federal funds, -PrbHealth NH; New Harnpshire Partnerships to Innprove Health &
Wellness for Young People with SED and SMI, as awarded on 8/10/21, by the U.S.
Department of Health and Human Services. Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services
Adrninistration. ALN# 93.243. FAiNfH79SM080245;''and

1.3. 24% Federal funds, Mental Health Block Grant (MHBG), as awarded oh*5/17/21. by the
DHHS Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Admiriistralion. ALN 93.958, FAIN
809SM085371.

5. Modify .Exhibit C. Payment Terms, Section 3. to read:
3. Payment shall be made upon completion-and approval by the Department of the

deliverables as specified in Exhibit C-l, Phase.1. Service System Analyses Task
Deliverables -Budget Worksheet, Exhibit C-2. Amendment 1. Support and Technical
Assistance Budget Worksheet SFY23, and Exhibit C-3, Amendment 1, Support and
Technical Assistance Budget Worksheet SFY24.

6. Modify Exhibit C. Payment Terms. Sectiori 4,lo read:
4. The Contractor must submit an invoice with supporting documentation to the Department

no later than 30 da^ys after completing the deliverable's as specific in Exhibit C-l , Phase 1,
Service System Analyses task Deliverabjes Budget Worksheet throughAmendment 1, Support and Technical Asslslance Budget SFY24. The Contja^^OTUsl-

Brandeis Universiry • A-S-i.3 Contractor tnitials
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ensure each invoice:

4.1. Includes the Contractor's Vendor Number issued: upon registering with New
Hampshire Department of Administrative Services.

4.2/ is submitted In a form that is provided by or otherwise acceptable to the Department.

4.3. Identifies and requests payment for allowable costs incurred In the previous month.

4.4. Includes supporting documentation of allowable costs .with;.each invoice that may
.Include, but are not limited to: timesheets. payroll records, receipts for purchase, and
proof of expenditures.-as applicable.

4.5. Is completed, dated, and returned, to the Departrnent with the supporting
documentation for allowable expenses to initiate payment.

4.6. Is assigned an electronic signature, includes supporting documentatiort, and Is
emailed to dhhs.dbhinvolcesmhs@dhhs.nh.QOv or mailed to:

Rnancial Manager
Department of|Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

7. Add Exhibit C-2. Amendrfient 1, Support and Technical Assistance Budget Worksheet SFY23,^
which' is attached herelo.and incorporated by reference herein.

8. Add Exhibit C-3, Ameridmept 1, Support and Technical Assistance Budget-Worksheet SFY24.
which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

Brahdets Uhi\«fsliv A-S-1.3 Conlractof Initials^
'  TTmUTT
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All terms and condilions of the Cdnlfacl not modified by this Amendment remain In fuU.force.and effect.
This Amendment shall be effective upon Governor arid^Council approval.

IN WITNESS, whereof, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below.

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health* and Human Services

S/9/2023-

Date

•OoevS^fwd ̂r.

Widi S. foy
—asanvMeii'utr -

Title; ei rector

5/9/2023

Date

Brandeis University

I r .ntwiroajiy , .. , ,.

Name:^^®^' sdonpn
Title: CFO

Brandeis Univcrslly.

'RFP-202S-BMHS-0l-REAbl-6l.Adl

A.S-t.2
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The preceding ATieridment, having been reviewed by this office, Is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

5/11/2023 ^^>^0

Date Name: Robyn Guanno

Title: Attorney

i hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: _ ... (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Brandeis Universjiy A-S-i.2

RFP.2023-BMHS-01-READI-01-A01 Page 4 of 4
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services .
Readiness Study for Certified Community Behavioral Health Clinics (CCBHC)

i EXHIBIT B - Amendment 1

Scope of Services

1. Statement of Work

1.1. The Contractor must collaborate with the NH Department of Health and Human
Services (Department) to study the readiness, capability, and cost-
effectiveness of implerhenting a Certified. Gbmmunity Behavioral Health Clinic
(CCBHC) model,of service across the NH Community Mental Health Centers
(CCMHCs) and Substance Use Disorder (SUD) treatment systems.

1.2. The Contractor must ensure sen/ices under this Agreement are provided In
accordance with: "

1.2.1. Protecting Access to Medicare Act of 2014. H.R.4032,11S^'Congress
(2013-2014): and

1.2.2. CCBHC criteria as defined by the Substance Abuse and Mental
- Health Services Administration (SAMHSA).

1.3. Service System Analyses

1.3.1. Comprehensive Analysis: the Contractor must analyze the existing'
stale of CMHCs and SUD treatment provider systems to determine
what steps will need to "be taken in order to meet required SAMHSA
criteria for CCBHCs. the- Contractor must analyze program
requirements,•including, but-nol.limited to:

J.3.1.1. Staffing;

1.3.1.2, Availability and accessibility of services;

1.3.1.3. Care coordination;

.1.3.1.4. Scope,of services:

1.3.1.5. Quality and other reporting; and ^

1.3.1.6. Organizational authority, governance, and accreditation.

1-3.2. Capability Analysis. The Contractor must analyze existing state and
■provider .capabilities feiated to the published CCBHC model. The
Contractor must ensure the. capability analysis includes, but is not
limited tp: "
1.3.2.1. -Self-assessments from three, (3) NH CMHCs, idenlified by

the Departrrient, which represent the array of providers in
■NH.

1.3.2.2. Identification of shortfalls.

1.3.2.3. Recpmrnendations lo address identified shortfalls.

1.3.3. Access Analysis, .the Contractor rnust ' analyze service access
concerns; b.arriers and facilitators. ThesContractor must ensure the "

nFR-2023:OMHS.O1-READl-dl-AOI 6-2.0 Cotiiraclcv inllialj
Brandcls Unl^fslty Page .1 of 7 pale
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Readiness Study for Certified Community Behavioral Health Clinics (CCBHC)

EXHIBIT B-Amendment 1 ^

access analysis includes, but is not limited to;

1.3.3.1. Idenlificalidn'cf gaps In access to care'-among people with
behavioral health conditions" and irnprovement solutions
across the age continuum. i

1.3.3.2. Facilitating an understanding of how CCBHCs can increase
access to behavioral health and primary physical healthcare
for Individuals with behavioral health conditions in areas of

concern'in NH, as detehmined by the Department.

1.3.4. Services Analvsis.-The Contractor must conduct a CCBHC behavioral
health services analysis of the CMHCs and SUD treatment systems.
The Contractor must ensure the services analysis includes, but ismot
limited to:

1.3.4.1. Identification of current and new elements n'edessary for NH
CMHCs to meet CCBHC requirernents.

1.3.4.2. Review of services outlined In NH's behavioral health

administrative rules and managed care contracts.

1.3.4.3.' Review of services and programs; within the NH SUD
Continuum of Care System'.

1.3:5.- Quality Metrics and Monitorlna Analysis, the Contractor must
conduct a quality metrics and monitoring analysis, as required by the
CCBHC.model. The, Coritractdr must ensure the quality metrics and
monitoring arialysis:

1.3.5.1. Incorporates current Department and managed care .quality
monitoring; and

1.3.5.2. 'Identifies current and hew eleriie'nts of quapty mphitohhg'
needed for NH CMHCs and SUD treatmenl.providers to
meet CCBHC requirements.

1.3.6. Data Caoacitv and Information Technology Analysis, the Conlractor
must conduct a data capacity and information technology analysis.
The Coritractor must ensure the analysis Includes, but is not limited
to examination of:

1.3:6.1. Data collection at the, Department ̂ ahd CCBHC , levels
required to support the CCBHC rhodpl.

1:3.6.2. Data reporting at the Department and CCBHC ■ levels'
required .to support the CCBHC rnodel.

•1.3.7. The Contractor must assist (he Departrhenlto estimate the actual cost
of full access, service delivery, and quality monitoring at three (3^
representative CMHCs in order to inform the actuarial analysis and

RFP.2023BMHS-01-RE/*PI-01-A01 8:2,0 Conuaclof
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services '
Readiness Study for Certified Community Behavioral Health Clinics (CCBh6)

EXHIBIT B - Amendment 1

.developrhent of a Slate plan amendment.

Actuarial Analysis, the Contractor must provide guidance to the
pepartrTient. on a plan to conduct an analysis that applies financial
:and statistical theories to determine the costs and Impact of. risk
related to CCBHC service model implementation.in NH.

,1 -3.9. Medlcaid Plan. Statute. Rule and Reoulation Analysis. The Contractor
miust examine which State statutes, rules and regulatloris. require
development or modificatibn to support the Implementation of the
CCBHC model. The Contractor must ensure the analysis includes,
but Is not limilecl to the examination of:

1.3.9;1. Rules and regulations that address service delivery to
Medlcaid beneficiaries.

1.3.9.2. Licensing and certification.

1.3.9.3. Other items as identified by the Department.

1.3.10. The Contractor must compile written reports .for each analysis
detalled above and submit the report to the Department in accordance
with Section 1.6. Reporting Requirements. Table T. Service System
Analyses Reporting, beiow. Upon the completion and submission of
each report, the Contractor must collaborate: with and provide
guidance to the Department to review; identify arid answer questions;
synthesize; and summarize results of each report.

1.3.11. The Contractor must meet with the Department at .a frequency and
via a method approved by the Department to ensure project goals and
timelines are being met and contract deliverables are being achieved.

1.3.12. .Contingent upon outcomes of the Service Sysiem' Analyses,
.indicating the Department's capability and capacity to irriplement and
the. cost-effectiveness of implementirig. a CCBHC model of service "
across the NH community mental health and substance use disorder
treatnhent'systems, the Department may opt to move.forward .with
CCBHC Implemenlatiori Plan Development through a contract
amendment for Phase 2.

1.4. CCBHC Planning Grant Support and Technical Assistance

1.4.1. The, Contractor must-provide targeted support and technical .
,  assistance (TA) to the Department that assists in the plainnlhg'arid'

preparation for the ,CCBHC Demonstration Project-as part of the
CCBHC Planning Grant, administered through the Substance'Abuse
and Mental Health Services Administration (SAMHSA). the
Contractor must ensure support and TA include, but are not limited
to: .

RFP-2O2J-eMHSr.0l:READi.Oi^AOl B-J.O . Coniracior Ifiliials
OratxJcis Unl'i^relly Page 3 ol 7 Dale V°/
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New" Hampshire,Department of Health and Human Services
Readiness Study for Certified Community Behavioral Health Clinics (CCBHC)

EXHIBIT 8 - Amendment 1

Developing a CCBHC Certification Tool and associated,user
manual to assess and certify CCBHCs in NH.

1.4.1:2, Establishing procedures to ensure "compliance with
quarterly reporting and monitoring as required by SAMHSA.

a  comprehensive draft application for.
in the CCBHC National Demonstration:

1.4.2:

1:4:3.

T.4.4.

-1.4.1:3; Developing
participation
Program.

The.'Cbntacto'r must provide TA and support 16 the Department's
CGBHjp'Certification Wor1<grpup through participation in meetings^as'
requested by and at a frequency detenmified by the Department.

The Contractor must participate in and report to the Department's
CCBHC Leadership Team meetings, at a minimum of monthly basis..

The Contractor may attend the Department's CCBHC Stakeholder
Advisory Committee, as requested by the Department.

1.5. Project Outcorhes

1.5.1. The, Department will monitor outcomes of the Contractor through
, regularly scheduled meetings and the' review of monthly status
.reports to ensure the following:

1.5.1.1; Capacity analyses and implementation plans meet specific
CCBHC certification criteria.

1.5.1.2.' Cost assessment, actuarial activities and plans for payment
model are sufficienl to enable state planning.

1.5.1.3., Analyses.and documents support a successful State plan
.  amendment submission or other Department-approved
submission to Centers for Medicare & Medlcaid Services

■ (CMS) to-support CCBHC implernentatipn.

1.6. Reporting

1.6.1. Service Svstem Analyses Reporting Reouifements

1.6.1.1'. The' Contractor must prepare arid submit the followiri'g:
^written reports to the Department, in accordance vyith Tables
'1, Phase 1- Service System Analyses Reporting, below.

Table 1, Phase 1 - Service System Analyses Reporting

Report

Monthly
Status

Reports

.Description..^:"

Progress of activities Iriclu'ding:
•  Acc6rhplishmenl(s)
•  Current tasks and'action items including responsible parties'
•  Chaiianges'
»  Resoluiions'to challenges

Due Date

No later than tho

70^ day of

each month

IDJ.

■RFP;2p23.BMH^1.ReADI-0l-A01
Brandeis Ui^verslty
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Readiness Study for Certified Community Behavioral Health Clinics (CCBHC)

EXHIBIT B - Amendment 1

•  Open issues
• WorH plan revision requests and approved changes

Cfipabitity
Analysis
Report

Analysis of CMHC. substance use disorder treatment provider,
and state setf-assessments wih Hna! report and review of
rccomrriendations.

No later than

120 davs after

Contract

Effective Dale

Access

Analysis.
Rer^

Analysis of acces^s gaps and improyement.solulions, including
the costs for the solutions, with written report of findings and
recommendations.

No later than

ISO davs afler

Contracl
Effectfve Oeto

Service

Analysis
Report

Analysis of required improvements and recommendations for
state requirements for CCBHC model in written report.

No later than

1B0 davs afler

the Contracl

Effective Date

Actuarial

Planning
Report

Guidance on and collaboration with the Department to develop a
plan to conduct an actuarial analysis of CCBHC service model
implementation in NH in written report.

. No later than

180 davs efter

the Contract

Effectivepato

Data Capacity
and IT

Analysis
Report

Analysis of data capacity and IT with recommendations in
written report.

No later than

210 davs after

f/io Contract

Effective Date

Regulatory
Report

Analysis of changes to NH regulations needs with
recommendations in written report.

No later than

240 davs after

' the Contract

Effective Date

Final Phase 1

Service

System
Analyses
Report

Comprehensive analysis of the readiness, capacity, and
capability of implementing a CCBHC model of service delivery
with the NH community mental health system Including
irriplemehtation costs and recornmendations.

Nolaterlhan

270 davs after

the Contract

Effective Date

1.6.2. CCBHC Planning Grant SupDort and Technical Assistance ReDortiriQ

Requirements t

1.6.2,1. The Contractor must submit a draft baseline report to the
Department, no later than June 1, 2023' :

1.6.2.2: The Contractor must submit quarterly reporting to the
Department as required by and within the timeframes
outlined by'SAMHSA below;

1.6.2.2.1. .July 15.-2023:

1.6.Z2.2. October IS'.'2023;

1.6,2.2.3. January 15, 2023; and

1.6.2:2.4. April 15. 2023..

RFP.2023-BMHS4) J •READI.01-AOI
Brandcis.Unlvef^fty
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Readiness Study for Certified Community Behavioral Health Clinics (CCBHC)

EXHIBIT B - Amendment 1

1.6.3. TheContractormay.be/equired to provide other key dMa and metrics
to the Departmenlln a format specified by the Department.

1.6.4. the Contractor'rhust meet with the. Department] a minimum of
monthly, to actively and regularly collatorate. to enhance contract
management, improve results, and adjust program delivery and policy
based on successful outcomes.

2. Exhibits Incorporated

2.1. The Cohtractor must use and disclose Protected Health Information in
compliance with the Standards for Privacy of lndividually'ldentifiable Health
Information (Privacy Rule) (45 CFR Parts 1,60 .and'164) under the. Heafth
Insurance Portability and Accountability, Act (HIPAA) of 1996, .and in
accordance with the attached Exhibit I, Business Associate Agreement, which
has been executed by the parties.

2.2. The Contractor must manage aij confiderilia) data related to this Agreement in
accordance with the terms of Exhibit K. DHHS Information Security
Requirements.

2:3. The^ Contractor must comply with all Exhlbits D through K. which are attached
hereto and incorporated by reference herein. - ^

3. Additional Terms

3.1. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes

3.1.1. The Contractor agrees that. to_ the extent' future, state or federal
legislation or court orders may have-an .irnpact on the Services
described herein, the Stale has the.right to modify Service priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve
compliance therewith.

3.2. Credits and Copyright Ownership

3.2.1. All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other
materials prepared during or resulting from.the performance of the
sefvices of the Agreement shall include the foHowihg statement, "The
preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under an
Contract with the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and
Human Services, with, funds provided in part by the State of New
Harnpshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, eig., .the. United Stales bep.artme.rit of.;Hea!lh and Human
Services." • _

3.2.2. All materials produced or purchased under the Agreement shall have
prior ."approval from the Departrhent before printing,'production,,
distribution or use.

3.2.3. the. Department shall retain .copyright ownersKlp for .any^Skd all

RFP-2023-8MHS:01 -READl-01 -AOI .'B-2.0 CMtfaciy'lnlilals,
bfandcis Untv^rsiiy; Pago 6 of 7 ' Oale^^. "
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New.Hampshlre Department of Health and Human iServlces
Readiness Study for Certified Community Behavioral Health Clinics (CCBHC)

EXHIBIT B-Amendment 1

original materials produced, including, but not limited to:

3.2.3.1. Brochures.

3.2.3.2. Resource directories,

3.2.3.3. Protocols or guidelines

3.2.3.4. Posters.

3.2.3.5. Reports.

3/2.4. The Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the
Agreernent without prior written approval from the Oepartrnent.'

4; Records

4.1. The Contractor shall keep records that include, but are not limited to:

4:1.1. Books, records, documents and other electronic or physical data
evidencing and reflecting all costs and other expenses iricurred by/the
Contractor in the performance of the Contract.-and all income received
or collected by the Contractor.

4:1.2. Ad records must be maintained in accordance with accounting
procedures and practices, which sufficiently and prppeirly reflect all such
costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the pepartmenii and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, .records, and original
evidence of costs such as purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers,
requisifions for materials, inventories, valuations of'in-kind coritributions,
labor lime cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by
the Department.

4.2. During the terrri of this Agreement and the period for retention hereunder. the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and
any of their designated representatives shall have access to all reports and
records maintained pursuant to the Agreement for purposes, of audit,
exarnination, excerpts and transcripts. Upon the purchase by the Department
of the maximum number of units, provided for in the Agreement and upon
payment of the price limitation hereunder, the Agreement and a!) the obligations
of the parties -hereunder (except such obligations as, by the, terms of the
Agreement are to be performed after the end of the term of thlsi Agfeement
and/or survive the termination of the Agreement) shall terminate, provided
however, that if, upon review of the Final Expenditure Report the Department
shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractofias costs hereunder the
■Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the ambuhtpf such
•expenses.as are disallowed or to recover such.suirris from the Coritraclor.-

-09
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Exhibit C«2 •Amondmont i

Support and Tochnical^AssIstanco Budget Woritsheot SFY23

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
COMPLETE ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOD

Gontractor,Nanie: Grandeis University

Project Tlilo: State Readiness Assessment for CCBHC

Budget Period: July 1. 2022 through June 30, 2023 {SFY2023)

-  ■ .iT A- -.| ; Funded by DHHS-.

TasK Oelivorablo . r. ■ i. .  .. .Amount ; ' *

Attend monthly meetings
$ 2;699.00

Support draft of SAMHSA quarterly
reports. $ 5.100.00

Draft applications for-the planning year
$ 7.655.00

$ 15,454.00

toac.; ,

Grandeis University
RFP-2023-BMH^^1-READI-01-AO,1
Exhibit 0-2. ̂ nendmeni 1. Support and Technical Assistance Budget SFY23
Page 1 of i
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Exhibit C-3 -.Amendment 1

Support and Technical A^istance Budget Worksheet SFY24

New Hampshire pepartment of Health and Human Services
COMPLETE ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOD

Contractor Name: Brandeis University

.'Project Title: State.Readiness Assessment for CC8HC

Budget Period: July, 1. 2023 through June 30. 2024 {SFY2024)

•  • Fundediby DHHS ■ ••r-

task Dolivorable , L': ' r. i —*. . V7.;' " Amount

Attend monthly meetings
$ 21,592.00

Support draft of SAf^HSA quarterly
reports $ 17.999.00

Draft applications for the planning year
$ 29,953.00

$ ■
69,544.00

Brandeis University
RFP-2d23-BMHS^'l-READI-01-A01
Exhibil C-3, Amendrne'nl 1. Support and Technical A^istance Budget SFY24
Page 1 of 1
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LeH A. Shiblnrnt

Katja S. y«i
Director

STATt OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH.ANO HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH .

129 PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD. NH 03301
' 603-27J-9544 r-8D04S]-334SEsi.9S44

Fez: 603-27M332 TOO Accczi: )>800-735-2964 trM-w.dhhi.nh.gov

July 6.. 2022

His Exoetlcncy. Governor Christopher T. Sununu_
ar>d the HonorebiD Council

State House
Concord. New Hampshire .03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, -Division for Behavioral Health,
to enter Into a contract with Brandeis University (VC#392871). Waltham, MA, in the amount of-
$97,407 to study the readiness, capability, and cost-effectiveness of implementing a Certified
Community Behavioral Health Clinic (CCBHC) model of service across the NH Community Mental
Healt.h and Substance Use Disorder Treatment Systems, with the option to renew for up to one.
-(1) additional year, effective upon Governor and Council approvalthrough June 30, 2023. 100%
Federal Funds.

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal ,Yeaf-2023 with the authority
to, adjust budget line items within the price limitation through the Budget Office. If ,needed and
justffied. .'

05-95-92.922010-2340 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS
OEPT OF. HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEATLH DiV. BUREAU.OF MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES.
PROHEALTH NH GRANT (100% Federal Funds)

State

FIscol Year

Class /

Account .
Class Title Job Number Total Amount

2023 ■ 074-500589
Grants for Pub Asst and

Relief
92202340

$53,298

Subtotal 553,298

05-95-92-922010-4120 HEALTH :AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH^ AND HUMAN ̂SVCS
DEPT OF. HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH OIV, BUREAU OF MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES,
MENTAL HEALTH BLOCK GRANT (10D%fcderal Funcls-ARPA)

State

Fiscal Year

Class i

Account
Class Title Job Number Total Amount

2023 074-500589
Grants tor Rub Asst arKf

Relief
92254120

$44;109

Grand Total $97,407

The 0<pQHiT\{nl of Heollh ond Human Stfuictt' u lo'foin comniuniliei and fomilies
in providini 6pporiunitU$ foe diitent 10,achieve heotih ohd independence.
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'H]$ ExcaOcftCy. Govomof Ch/fatophw T. Sununu
9rtd the HonorcUe Coundl

.P990 2 of 2

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to study the reedioead, capability, and cosi eiffectiyendss of
Implerrierttinig a Certtfidd Cornmunlty Behavioral Health Cllrtlc (CCBHC) modei of seryit^ across
the New Harhpshire Community Mental Health and Substance UM Oisbrder treatiriem Systems
in accordance with.H.R.4302. Protecting Access to Medicare Act of 2014 (PAMA) and crihsrla as
d^hed by the Substance Abuse and Menta) Health'Services Administrotioh.

the Contractor wtD provide guidance, consultation, and supppd .to the Depaf^ent and
: conduct a comprehensive analysis of the State. Community Montsl Heahh, arid Subetanoe Use,
Disorder treatmerit.provlder systems. The study will Include an actuarial analysts to detenmlne the
costs and impact of risk related to potential CC6HC model implementation. The Contr^ctof will
compile a written report indic^ng the Department's capability and opacity to imi^ementi-and the
cost-implicaUons'of implementing, a CCBHC model of eervicei The Oepartmerit may ofA to imove
fofward with CCBHC Implementation Plan Developmenl through a contract amendment forPhase
2; "■

The Department will monitor Contractor performances through the review .of monthly
status reports to ensure project dethrereMes and associated timelines are met and adhered to;

1 The Department aelected the Contractor through a cbmpet'itive bid process using e'
' Request for Proposals (RFP) that was posted on the Departrhont'a website frorn March 7. 2022
through April 10,222. The Department received two (2) responses that were reviewed arid scored

' by'a team of qualtfiad individuats. The Scoring Sheet is attached.
As referended in Exhibit A. Revisions to Standard Agreement Provisions, of the'attached

agreement, th'o parties have the option to extend the agreemerit for up to one.(1).odditi6ridl year,
contirigertt upon satisfactory delivery of senrices, available funding, ogreement of the parties, and
Goverrior ar^ Council approval.

Should the Governor end Council not authorize this request the Deportment'vviii we.lose,
the opportunity to understand how we may build efTidendes and increase, quality, of Integrated
community based ment^ health and substance use services through potentially impiem.ehting the
CCBHC model.

served: Statewide

/Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number # 93/958. FAIN BOSSMOSiW?! and
Assistarice Listing Number # e'3.243, FAIN HTeSMOSOZiS. '

.in the event that the Federal Funds become no longer avoiloble. General Funds will not
be requested to support this prograrn.

Respectfully submitted,

Lon i. Shibinette
Cornmissioner

■fl
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Now Hampshire popa'rtmenl of Health and Human Services
'. Oivlsion of Finance and Procuremonl

Bureau of Contracts and Procurement
Scoring Sheet -

'Project 10 P. IfVP-TOZa BMHS-Ol REAOt J

Project Title Reedlneee Study for Certiflied Community Behavlorei Hialth Ciinlce (CC6HC),

Maxirnum

Pointt

Available Brondeis University

National Council (or
Mental Weilbelng '

intogreiion At^encemenl

Experiertce (01) •  10 8 1  0

CC8HC Exportonca (02) 50 30 10

Kr^owtedge til System (03) '• 10 9 4

At\atyees Pro^lon (Q4). 30 25 7

AcluaHal lntorpretaliona -
Artoiysis (OS) . *0, 35 21

Stale pbn emendmeni or other
prbposeJ drafting (OS) 40 30 7,

Slakehoidcrider^idicabona -
Engegemeni.(07) 25 ' • 22 6

Irnplerrrenta&on Pbn
Obvelppmeni (08) is- 20 9

Project Management (09) 25 1 21 14

Capacity (QIO)' 30 23 17

WofV Plan (Oil) . . ; 40 33 . 24

Subtotal-Technical 325 256 128

Cost 1 - . ,• •

'lasK Ue.irvorobles Uudgoi Sheel
(AppertdbtO) 70 65 15

Program SlafI Usi (Apponda E) 20 17 15

SutMotai - Cost .90 82 30

-TOTALPOINTS 415 . 338 156

Rovtewer Name

^iKerri Swonson

^.iJamio Power*'

3 AlysM Cohen

'.iRftSecc^MS

^jKyre Loonard

^jMary Ofunblie.

Title

jMentel Healih Syitems Admin,

Director BOAS

Deputy Direcl'or b> MeOkJld

iOlreclbf ChiMrcft'e Bureou

jFinance Adminiairator ■

0MH5 Medical Director

I
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OocuS{gnEnv«lopatD:7eOOOOS4-C91l-47flC-e2CC46tME7lSC5F . 'uocuoHFc form NUMBER P-37 (version 12/11/2019)

SubjKt; Readiness Study for Certified Communiiv Behavioral Health Clinics fCCBHCl fRFP-2023-BMHS-01 -

READI-On

Noiice: This agreement and ail of its aitachmenis shall become public upon submission to Covemor and
Execirtivc Council for approval. Any iriformaiion that is private, conndtniial or proprietary must
be clearly idenlificd to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to sigf^ing the contfaci.

agreement

The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as roUows;

GENERAL provisions

1.1 State Agency Name

New Hampshire Dcpaitmeni of Health and Human Services
^ r

1.2 Slate Agency Address

-129 Pleasant Street
Concord. KM 03301-3857

IJ Contractor Name

Brandeis University

1.4 Contractor Address

415 South Street, MS 116'
Wahharn, MA 02453-2728

1.5 Contractor Phone
Number

781-736.2119

1.6 Account Number

bl0'-092-4l20-074.058"9
JN 92254120

010.092-2340.074.OS89

JN 92202340

1.7 Completion Date

6/30/2023

1.8 Price Limitation

$97,407

1.9 Contracting Oniccr for State Agency

Robert W. Moore, Director

I.IO Stale Agency Telephone Number

(603)271.9631

1.11 Contractor Signature 8/9/2022 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory
Samuel Solomon

CFO

1.13' -State Agency Signature 6/9/2022

1  S-

1.14 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory
Katja s. Fox ;

director

1.15 ApprowKj^theN.H. Deponmcm of Adminisiraiipn. Division of Personnel (i/opphcoblc)
*  * ' f

0y; Director, On:

1.16 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) Of apphcfibU)

1.17 ApprovafSy the dovcmor and Executive Council (i/opp/icobfe.)

G&C Item number: O&C Meeting Date:

Page 1 of 4
Contracior Initials

Date
.wwTurr
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2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The Siftie of New
Hampshire, acting ihroogh the agency idcniified in block 1.1
("State"), engages contractor identified in block 1.3
("Contractor") 10 pciform, and iKe Contractor shall perform, the
work or sale of goods, or both, ideniined and more particularly
described in the attached EXHIBIT B which is incorporated
herein by reference ("Services").

3. effective DATE/COMPLETION,OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agrecmwt to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Coverrmr and
Ejtecullvc Council of the State of New Hampshire, ifapplicablc,

. this Agreement, and all obligaitoiu of the panics hercur>der. shall
become effective on the date the Covcmor and Executive
Council approve this Agreement as indicated in block 1.17,
unless no such approval is required, in which case Ihe Agreement
shall become cfTeciivc on the date the Agreement is signed by
the State Agency as shown in block i. 13 ("Effective Date").
3.2 If the Coittractor'commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior to
the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement docs not become
effective, the State shall have no liability to the Contractor,
Including without limitation, any obligation to pay the
Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must compicie all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block').?.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agrtcmcni .to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability end continued appropriation of
funds affected by any state or federal legislative or executive
action that reduces, eliminates or otherwise modifies the
appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT B. in whole or in
part. In no, event shall the State be liable for any payments
hereunder in excess of such available appropriated fijnds. In the
event of a rc^duction or termination of appropriated funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds
become available, if ever, and shall have the right to reduce,or
terminate the Services under this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Coniractor.noilcc of such reduction or termination.
The State shall hoi be required to transfer funds from any other
account or source to Ihe Account identified in block 1.6 in the
event funds in thai Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The coiitroci price, method of payment, and tcrmsof payment
arc identified and more particularly ditscribcd in EXHIBIT C
which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete'reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expends, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete

compcnssiion to Ihe Contractor for the Services. The Suie shall
have no liability to the ComrMtor other than the contract price.
5.3 The State reserves the right'io offset from'any amounts
otherwise payable to.thc Contractor under this Agreement those
liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA 80:7
through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwiihsunding any provision in this Agreement, to the ,
conirary;-and notwithstanding unexpect^ circumstances, in no
event shall the total of all payments authorixed, or actually made
hereiindcr, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND RECULATCONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In conncciior» with the performance of the Services, the
Coniracior shall comply with all applicable statutes, laws,
regulations, and orders of federal, state, county or municipal
authorities which impose any obligation or duty upon the
Contractor, including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal
employment opponunity taws. In addition, ifihis Agreement is
funded in any pan by monies of the United States, the Contractor
shall comply with alt federal executive orders, rules, regulations
and statutes, and with any rules, regulations and guidelines as the
State or the United Slates issue to implement these regulations.
The Contractor shall also comply with all applicable inielleciual
property laws.
6.2' During the term of this Agreement, the Contf^aclor shall not
discriminate against employees or applicants for erriployment
because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex, handicap, sexual
orientaiion, or national origin and will lake affirmative action to
prevent such discrimination. i
6.3. The Contractor agrees.to permit the State or United States
access to any of the Contractor's books, records and accounts for
i|K purpose of ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulation.^
and orders, and the covenants, terms and conditions of this
Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Comracior shall at Its own expepsc provide all personnel
necessary to perform thc Scrviccs. The Contractor warrants that
all personnel engaged In the Serx-ices shall be qualified to
perform the Services, and shall be properly licensed and
otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable laws.
7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Dote in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire, and
shall not pernnii any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged In s combined effort to
pcrform.ihc Scr\'iccs to hire, any person who is a State employee
or official, who is materially Involved in the procurement,
ad.minisirailon or performance of this Agreement. This
provision shall survive termination of this Agreement.
7.3 The Coninwting Officer specified In block 1.9, br his or her
successor, shall be the Stoic's reprcsenialivc. In the event of any
dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agrccmcni, the
Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the State. v

Page 2 of4
Contractor Initials

Date
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8. eVENT or DEFAULT/REMEDIES.
8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Conincior shall consliluie.ftn evcm of default hcreundcr {"Event

ofOefauii"}:

8.1.1 failure to perform (he Services saiisfaciorily or on
schedule;
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hcreunder; artd/or
8.1.3 faiiure to perform any other covenant,"term or condition of
this Agreement.
8.2 Upon (he occurrence of any Event of Defauli, the State may
taVe any one, or more, or alt, of the following potions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in (he absence of
a greater or lesser spKiflcaiion of time, thirty (30) days from the
date ofthe notice; and if the Event of Oefaull is not timely cured,
terminate this Agreement, effective two (2) days after giving the
Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give (he Contrxtor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the .portion of the conirxt price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contraeior during the
period from (he dale of such notice until such lime as the State
determines that the Contrxior has cured (he Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Dcfauit and set off against any other obligations the State may
owe to the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of
any'Evcnl of Dcfauit; and/or
8.2.4 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default, treat the Agreement as breached, •.terminate the
Agreement and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity, or
both.

8.3. No failure by the State to enforce any provisions hereof after
any Event of Default shall be deemed a waiver of its rights with
regard to thai Event of Default, or any subsequent Event of
Default. No express failure to cnlbrce any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of the right ofthe State to enforce each and
all ofihe provislons hereof upon any further or other Event of
Defauli ph the part of the Conirector.

9. termination.

9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 8, the Slate may, at its sole,
discretion, terminate the Agreement for any reafon, in whole or
in part, by thirty (30) days (vritlcn notice to the Contractor that

• the State is exercising its option to terminate the Agreement.
9.2 In the event of an early termination of this Agreement for
aiiy reason other than the completion of the Services, the
Contractor-shall, at the State's discretion, deliver to the
Contracting Olllcer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date
of termination, a report ("Tcrminatlori Report") describing in
detail all Services perrormed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the dale of lermlnalidn. The form, subject mailer,
content, and number of copies of the Tcrtninalion Report shall
be identical lo those of any Final Report described in the attached
EXHIBIT B; In addition, at the Sintc's discretion, the Contractor
shall, within 15 days of notice of early icrmiriaiion, develop arid

Page 3

submit to the Slate a Transition Plan for services under the

Agreement.

lb. DATA/ACCeSS/CONFIDENTiALITY/
preservation;

10.1 As used in.ihis Agreement, the word "data" shall mean ail
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of. or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions,'drewings, analyses, graphic
representations, computer programs, computer printouts, notes,
letters, memoranda, papers, and documents, all whether
finished or unfinished.

10.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of (he State, and
shall be relumed to the State upon demand or upon termination
of (his Agreement for any reason.
10.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91 'A or other e.tis(ing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the State.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the

perfonnancc of this Agreement the Contractor is in all respects
an independent coitirKlbr, and is neither an agent nor an
employee of the Stale. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
ofTicers, employees, agents or members shall have auihoriiy to
bind the State or receive any bcncnis,.workers' compensation or
Other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. aSSICNMENT/DELECATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
12.1 The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfcr'any
inieresi In this Agreement without the prior written notice, which
^all be provided to the Stale at least fifteen (15) days prior to
the assignment, and a written consent of the Stale. For purposes
of this paragraph, a Change, of Control shall constitute
assignment. "Change of Control" means (a) merger,,
cbnsolidajion, or a transaction or series of related transactions In
which a third party, together with its afTiiiates, becomes (he
direct or indirect owner of fifty percent (50%) or more of the
voting shares or similar equity interests, or combined voting
power of the Contractor, or (b) the sale of all or substantially all
of the assets of the Contractor.

12.2 None of the,Services shall be subcontracted by the
Contractor without prior wTiiien notice and consent of the Stale.
The Staic'isenililed to copies of all subcontracts and assignment
agreements and shall not be bound by any provisions contained
in a subcontract or an assignment agreement to which it is not a
party. '

J3. INDEMNIFICATION. Unl^oth'erwireexempted by law,
(he Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the State, its
officers and employees, from and against arty and all claims,
liabilities and costs for any personal injury or property damages,
patent or copyright infringement, or other claims assc'rted against
the State, its officers or employees, which arise out of (or which
may be cUimed to arise out of) the acts or omii$Ril^rjbc
0f4
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Coniraciof'i or <u^or)trecion, including but noi iimiied id the
negligence, reckless'dr'intentional cbnduci. The Siaie shall ribl
be liflbleTor.any co^s incurred by the Conincior arising under
ihisparegraph 13. Notwiihsiandingihe (brcgoing. nothing herein
contairied shall be deemed tocphstiiutc a waiver of the sovereign
Immuhiiy of the State, which immuriity is hereby reserved to the
Siaic. This'^yenarii in paragraph 13 shall survive the
tcmiinaiioh of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 'the Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
continuously maintain in forec, and shall require ony
subcontractor or,assignee to'obtain and rhaintam in force, the
following irtsurence:

14.1.1 commercial general liability insurance against all claims
of bodily Injury, death or property darhagc, In amounts of hot
less than'SI;000,000'per occuiterice'ahd S2.000.b00 aggregate
orcxcess;nnd

14.1.2 special cau^of ioss.co^ntge.form cover!rig all property
subject to Stibpangntph 10.2 herein, in an amount not less than
iOY* of ihe whole replacement wluc of the property.
l4.2Thepplicics.dc$cribed In subparagraph 14.1 herein shall be
on policy forms and cndorsemenis approved for.use in the Stale
of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of Insurance, and
issued by insurer licensed in the State of New Hampshire.
14.3 The Conlractbr'shall futiiish to the Contraciing OfTiccr
jdcntified in'block 1.9, or hls'or her successor, a cenificatc($) of
insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Conlractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer identified
in block 1.9, or his or her successor, ccnificate(s) of insurance
for all rencwal{s) of insurance required under this Agreement no
later ihan ien (10) days prior< to the expiration date of each
insurance policy. The ccnificalc($), of insurance and any
renewals thereof.<hbll be attMhed and afe incorporated herein by
reference.

15. WORkERS'. COMPENSATION.
15.1 By signing this agrecmeril. ihe Cohtraclor agrees, certifies
and vva'rrantsil^tthc.CohifMior'is In'cornpliance wiihorexcmpt
from, ihcrequiremcms of N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A ("tf'orkcrs'
Comptntoilon'.').
15.2 To the cxtcnrihc Conlractor Is subject to'the requirements
of N.H. RSA chapter 28l?A,- Contracior shall maintain, and
require any subcbntiacior'or assignee to secure and rhainiain,
paymcrii of Workers'• Compensation in connection with
octiviiics which the person proposes to uridcnakc pursuant to this
Agrccmtmt; The Contractor shall furnish the Contraciing Officer
idcniincd in.block 1.9,-or his'or her'successor, proof of Workers'
Compcnsatioh in the manner described in N.H. RSA chapter
281-A and any applicable rcncwal($) thereof, which shall be
attached dnd are incorporated herein by reference. The Stale
shall riqi be "responsible Tor payment '.of any Workers'
Compcnsaiion prerTiiums or for any other claim or benefit for'
Cdniractqr, or any subcbniraclori'or employee of Conlractor,-
which 'iTTtghi arise under applicable State of New Hampshire
Workers' Compensation . lft\« in connection with the
pcrfonnancc of the Services uridcr this Agreement.

16. NOTICE.. Any notice by a party hereto to Ihc'othcr.party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at thest'me
of mailing by certified mail, ponagc prepaid,;i'n a'Uniicd.^taics
Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses given iii
biocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein. ' • ' i,

,17. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may,be amended, waived
. or discharged only by an insirumeht in writing signed by the

parties hereto arid only aflcr approval of-such amcndrticnt,
waiver or diahaxge by the Governor orid'Exccuiivc ,Council of
the Staieof New Hampshire uhldts ho such app'rbviil is requir«J
under the circumstances pursuant to State law,;rule or policy.

18. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM. This Agreement shall
be governed, interpreted arid cortttrucd in accol^hcc with the
laws of the Stale of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective successors
and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is'the wording
chosen by the parlies to express their muitfal intent, and no rule
of construct ion shall be applied against or in favor of any party.
Any actions arising out of this Agreement shall.be broiight and
maintained in New Hampshire Superior Court which shall have
cxclu-sive jurisdiction thereof. ,.

19. CONFLICTING TERMS.' In ihb event of a corillict
between the terms of this P07 form (as modified in EXHrBfT
A) and/or etiachmcnts and omcndmerii thereof, ihc icrms'ofthe
P-37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A)shall conirol.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The panics hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties arid this Agfccrncnl "shall not be.
'construed to confer any such benefit'.

21. HEADINGS. "The headings throughout the Agreenicht are
for reference purposes only. and the twords "contained .therein
shall in no way be held to expiairl, modify, amplify^dr aid in the
inicrprtlaiioo, construction or meaning of the pTOvisiorts of this'
Agfccmcnl.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions Ki forth in the attached EXHIBIT A arc incorporate
herein by reference.

23. SEVERABILITV. In thccvcnt any pfthc provisions of this
Agrecrricnt art"held by a court of com'pctcrit jurisdiction to,be
cciiiniry to any state or federal law,'the remaining provisions of
this Agreement will remain in full force and effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreeincm, which'may be'
executed in a number of cpunierparts; each of .which shall be'
deemed, an original, cbrihliutcs the entire. agreement Vrid
understanding between the parties, and stjfkrsedcs all prior
agreements and uhdcrsiaiidings with rcs'pecHo the subjwi matter
hereof,

Paged of4
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New Hiampshi're popartmont of Health and Human Services
Readiness $tudy foriCertified Community Behavioral Health Clinics (CCBHC)

EXHIBIT A

Revisions to'Standard Agreement Provisions

1. Revisions to Form P-37. General Provisions *

1.1. Parag?aph 3, ',Eff^iive Date/Completion of Services, is amended by. adding
subparagraph 3.3 as follows;

3.3. The parties may.extend the Agreement for up one (1) additional year from
■  the Cbmpletldn Date, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services.

■ available funding, agreement of the parties, and approval of the Governor
•and Executive Council.

1.2.. Paragraph 12, Assignmenl/Delegation/Subcontracts. Is amended by adding
subparagraph 12.3 as follows:

12.3: Subcorilraclors are subject to the same contractual condiUbns as the
Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor
compliance with those conditions. The Contractor shall have written
agreernents with all subcontractors, specifying the wor1< to be performed;
and if apb.iicable,. a Business Associate Agreement in accordance with
the 'Health insurance Portability and Accountability Act. . Written
agreements shall specify how corrective action shall be managed. The
Cdntractdr shall manage the subcontractor's performance on ah ongoing
basis and take corrective action as necessary. The Contractor shall

■ annually provide the State with a list of all subcontractors provided for
.under 'this Agreement and notify..the Stale • of any inadequate
subcontraciofperformance.

RFP-2023-bMHS-O«:ft6AOH)» A-1.2 , : Conlrdctof
SfftntJeiiUrWofxlty; 1 oH . OaioSnZHil



DocuSifln Envelopo ID: C0696B04.026>43AS-Afi05-OAE0660DD02B

DocuSign Em^Op« ID:'«E^>A0O^B3P-^M3-eCDF-WfCAA3B82A7

Now Hampshire Department of HeaUh and Hurtion Services
Readiness Study for Certified Community Behavioral Health Clinics (CCBHC)

EXHIBIT B

Scope of Services

1. Statement of Work

1.1. The Conlractor.shairobllaborate'with lhe NH Departrhent of Health an.d Human
Services .(Department)' to /study the readiness, capability, and cpst-

' effectiveness of implemienllng a Certified Cornmunity Behavioral HeaUh Clinic-
(CCBHC) model of"service across the NH Community "Mental Health Centers
(CCMHCs) and Substance" Use Disorder (SUD) treatment systerns.

1.2. The Contractor shall ensure services" under this Agreement are provided in
accordance with:

1.2.1. Protecting Access to Medicare Act of 2014. H.R.4032,113*^ Congress
.(2013-2014); and .

1.2.2. CCBHC criteria as defined by the Substance Abuse and Mental
Health Services Administration (SAMHSA).

.1.3. Service System Analyses

1.3.1. ComDrehenslve Analysis. The Contractor shall analyze the existing
.stale CMHCs and SUD treatment provider systems to determine what
steps will need to be taken In order to meet required SAMHSA criteria

;  for CCBHCs. The Contractor shall analyze program requirements,
including, biit not limited to: .

1.3.1.1. Staffing;

1.3.1.2. Availability and accessibility of services;

1.3.1.3. Care coordination;

1.3.1.4. Scope of services;-

1.3.1.5. Quality and other reporting; and ^

■  1.3,1.6. Orgariizaliorial authority, governance, and accreditation,

1.3.2. Caoabiiitv Ariaivsis. The Contractor shall analyze existing state and
provider capabilities related ,to the published CCBHC model. The
Cbntractor shall.ensure the capability analysis includes, but Is not
limited to;

1.3.2.1. Setf-assessments from three (3) NH CMHCs.'Identified by
the, Department, which represent the array of providers in
nh'. ■

■1.3.2.2. Identification of shortfalls.
1.3.2.3. Recommendaiions to address identified shortfalls.

1.3.3. Access Analysis. The Contractor shall analyze .service access
concerns, barriers and facilitators. The Contractor shall

g.2.0 Conlractor iniUals.RFP-202>OMHS-O1-REAO<t01 . 8/3/2022
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access analysis includes, but is riot limited fo:-

1.3.3.1. Ideniificalion of gaps In access to care among people with
behavioral health conditions 'and Improvemen) .solutions

r, across the age continuum.

1.3.3.2. Facilitating an understanding of how.CCBHCs can increase
access to behavioral health and primary physical healthcare
for individuais.^th behavioral health conditions in areas of
concern in NH. as delerrnined by the Department.

1.3.4. Services Analvsis. The Contractor shall "conduct a GCBHC behavioral
health services analysis of the CMHCs and SUD treatment systems,
The Contractor shall ensure the services analysis includes, but is not
limited to: . . ■ ■

1.3.4.1. • Idehlification of current and new elements necessary for NH
CMHCs to meet CCBHC reguiremenls:

1.3.4.2. Reyiew of services outlined in'.NH.'s behavioral .health
adm|histralive rules and managed care contracts.

1.3.4.3. Review of services and programs within the.NH SUD
Continuum of Care System..

1.3.5. Quality Metrics and Monitorinci Analysis, the Contractor shall conduct
a quality'metrtcs and monitoring analysis, as required by.lhe CCBHC
model. The Contractor shall ensure the quality metrics and monitoring
analysis:

1.3.5.1. . Incorporates current Departmenl and managed care quality,
monitoring; and

1.3.5.2, identifies current end new elements of quali^ monitoring
'■ needed for NH CMHCs and SUD treatment' providers to

meet CCBHC requirements.

1.3.6. Data Cabacitv and Information Technoloov Analysis. The Contractor
shall conduct, a data capacity and infonmailon technology analysis.
The Contractor shall ensure the analysis includes, but is hot limited to
e_xami.nalion of: •

1.3;6.'1. Data collection at the pepartrrient and CCBHC levels
required to support the GCBHC model.

1.3.6:2. Data reporting at the Departmenl and CCBHC levels
required to support the CCBHC model.

1.3.7. The Contractor shall assist the Departmenl to, estimate the-actual cost
of full access, service delivery, and quality'monitoring at thre9,(3)
representative CMHCs in order ,lo'inform the.actuarial analj^^f®

RFP.202WJMHS^)1-REAOt-0l 8:2.0 Coflin)cu>f InlUab'
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development of a slate plan amendment.

1.3.8. Actuarial Analysis. The Contraclor shall prdvidie guidance to the
Department, on a plan to conduct an analysis that applies financial
.arid stalisllcal theories to determine the costs and impact of risk
related to CCBHC service model imipIementation in NH.

1.3.9. 'Medicaid Plan. Statute. Rule and Regulation Analysis. The Contractor
shaj.l examine which state statutes, rules and regulations require
>deve!opment or modiftcalion to support the irnplementation of the
CCBHC model. The Contractor shall ensure the analysis includes, but
Is not limited to the examination of:

1.3.9.1, Rules and regulations that address service delivery to
Medicaid benericiarles.

1.3.9.2. Licensing and certification. .

1.-3.9.3. Other items as identified by the Department.

'1.3.10. ■ The Contractor shall compile written reporis for each analysis detailed
.above and submit the report to the Department In accordance with
Section 1.5. Reporting Requirements, Table 1. Service System

'• Analyses Reporting, below. Upon the ocmplelion and submission of
each report, the Contractor shall collaborate with and provide
guidance to the Department to review; identify and answer questions;,
synthesize; and summarize results of each report.

.1.3.11. TheiConlractor shall meet with the Department at a frequency and via
a method approved by the Department to ensure project goals and
•limeliiies are being met and contract deliverables are being achieved.

;1.3.12. .Contingent upon outcomes, of the Service System Analyses,
Indicating the Department's capability and capacity to Irnpjerrient and
the cost-effectiveness of implementing, a CCBHC rnpdel of service
.across the NH community mental health and substance use disorder
treatment systems, tho Dopartmenl rr>ay opt to move forward Avith
CCBHC Implementation Plan Development through a 'contract
amendment for Phase. 2.

1.4. Project Outcomes

i.4.1. The Department will monitor outcomes of the Contractor through
•  regularly scheduled meetings arid the review, of monthly status-
reports to ensure the following:

1.4.1.1. Capacity analyses and.-impietrieniation plans meet specific
CCBHC certification criteria.

'1.4.1.2. Cost assessment, actuarial activities and plans for payment
u

model are sufficient to enable state planning. '

RFP-2023-eMHS-Ol-n6ADI-01 B-2.0' Comraaof Inltlaii
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1.4.1.3. Analyses and documents support a successful state plan
amendment submission or other Department-approved
submission to Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services
(CMS) to support CCBHC implementation.

1.5. Reporting

I.S.'l. Service System Analyses Reporting Requirements

1.5:1.1. The Contractor shall'prepare and submit the foiiowing
written reports to the Department, in accordance with Table
1. Phase 1- Service System Analyses Reportihg. below..

Table i;-Phase 1 • Sorvlce Syslbm Analyses Reporting

Report •: Description Ouo.Dato

MoolTily
Status

Reports.

. Prog/ess of activilies Including:

•  Accomplishment(8). "
•  "^Current tasks end action iterps includir^ responsible parties ■
•  .Challenges
•  Rosdiulions lochallooQes

• ppen issues
• Work olan revision reduests and aoProved changes

No later than iho
20^ day of' '•
oach month

Capabiiily
Analysis
'Report

Analysis of CMHC. substance use disorder treatment provider,
and sbie self-assessments wth final report and review of
recommehdaUohs.

No loierttion

120 davs oUar

Controc!

Effacih/a Oa/e.

Access

Analysis
Report

Arwiysis of access gaps and Improvement solutions, including
thc!cosls.for the solutions, with written report of findings and
rccorriiTiendalions..

■No later than
150 davs after

Conlroci
Effeclhra Date

Service
Analysis.
Report

Anal^is of required improvennenis and recommendations for
slate requlrernents for CCBHC model in written report.

No later than
160 davs after
the Contract

Effective Dole

Acluarla)
Planning .
Report

Guidance on and collaboration with the Department lo.dovolop 0
plan to conduct.on ectuarial analysis of CCBHC service model
implemenialion'in NH in written report.

Nolalerlhan
180 davs afler

the Contract
Effective Dole

Data Capacity
■  .and IT

Analysis
•Report ■

Analysis of data capacity and IT with recommendations in .,
written report.

■No, later than
210 davs after
theConlfOCt

Effective Date]

RdguiaiofV
Report

Analysis of changes to NH fcgulations needs with
rocprnmendations In written report.

No later than
240 davs after
the Contract

Effective Dole
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Final Phase 1'

ScMce
System
Analyses
Report

Comprehensive enalysis of the readiness, cepsdly,' and
capability,of imptementing o CCBHC model of service delivery
with the NK'corfimuhity rnenlal health s^tem including
Implernentalion costs and recommendations.

Noletdrthsn

270 dtivs aftdr
the Contract.
Bffactivd Dale

1.5.2. the Contractor may be required to provide other key data and metrics
to the Department in a formal specified by the Department.

1.5.3. the Contractor shall meet with the Department, a minimum of
monthly, to actively and regularly collaborate to enhance contract
management, Irhprove result^ and adjust program delivery and policy
based on successful outcomes.

2. Exhibits Incorporated

2.1.

2:2.

2.3.

The Contractor shall use and disclose Protected Health Information i.n
compliance with (he Standards for Privacy of Individually IdentiHable Health
Information (Privacy Rule) (45 GpR Parts 160 and 164) under the'Health
Insurarice Portability .and Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1996. and In
accordance with the attached Exhibit t, Business Aswciate Agreement', which
has been executed by the parties.

The Contractor shall manage all confidential data related to this Agreement In
accordance with the . terms of Exhibit K, OHHS Information Security
Requirements."

The Contractor shall conriply with all Exhibits D through K, which are attached
hereto and incorporated by.reference herein.

3. Additional forms

.  3.1. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes

3.1.1: The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future state, or federal
legislation or court orders may have an Impact on the Services
described herein, .the Slate has the right to modify Service priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve
conhpjia'nce therewith.

3.2. Credits and Copyright Ownership

3.2.T.' All documents, nollces, press releases, research reports and other
materials prGpared-during.or resulting" from the perfonnance .of the
services of the Agreement shall include the following statement. "The
preparation of this (report; document etc.) .was financed under an
Contract with the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and
Human.Services. vyith funds provided.in part by. the State.of New
Hampshire and/or such other funding-sources as were ava
required, e.g.. the United Stales Department of Health and
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• Services."

3.2.2. All materials produced or,purchased under the Agreerhenl shall have
prior approval from the Pepartm^t-before printlng/product^^^^
distribution or use.

3.2.3. The Department shall retain copyright, ownership for any and all
original rnaterials produced, including.•but not-limited to:

3.2.3.1. Brochures.

3.2.3.2. Resource directories. .

3.2.3.3. Protocols or guidelines.

3.2.3.4. Posters..

3.2.3.5. Reports.

3.2.4.' The Contractor shall not reproduce any materials prod.uc^ under the
Agreement without prior wriltep.approval froni the Department.

4. Records

4.1. The Contractor shall keep records that include, but are not limited to;

il.1. Books, records, documents and other elecironic or physical data
evidencing and reflecting all cosls and other expenses incurred by the
Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all income received

• or collected by the Contractor.

4 1 2 All records must be maintained in accordance with accountingprocedures and practices, which sufficiently,and properly reflect all such
costs and expenses, and which are acceplat>le to the Department, and
'to include, without ■|irnitatlon. all ledgers, books, records; and original
evidence oif costs-such as purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers,
requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of in-kind cohtribulions.
ijaboi' time cards, payrolls; and other records requested or required by
the Department.

4.2. During the term of this Agreement and the period for retention hereunder, the
Departrnent. the United Stales Departnieht of Health arid Human Services, arid
any of their designated representatives, shall have access to all reports and
records maintained pursuant to the Agreement for purposes of audit,
examinalipn. excerpts and transcripts. Upon the purchase by the Department
of the maximum number of units provided for in , the Agreement and upon
payment of the price limitation hereunder, the.Agreement and all the obligations
of the parties hereunder (except'such .obligations as, ;by the terms of the
Agreement are to be performed after the" end ,'of the teim of this Agreement
and/or survive the termirialion pf the Agreement) shall terminate, providedhowever, that if, upon review pf the Final Expenditure Report the De^'*"""^
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shall disaijpw any expenses claimed by the Cbntractpr as costs hereuhder/the
D'epartmenl shall retain the right, at Its discretion, to deduct the anhbynt of sut^
•expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the ppntractor.

-M.
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Payment Terms

1. This Agreement is funded by:

1.1. 79%'Federal funds, Mental Health Block Grant (MHBG). as awarded on.
iSyi7/2l, by the Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services
Administration, CFOA 93.958, FAIN B09SM085371.

1.2. 21% Federal" funds, ProHeallh NH: New Harripshire Partnerships to
■Improve Health S Wellness for Young People with SEp and SMI. as.
awarded oh-8/10/21. by the U.S. Department of Health and Human
Services, Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Admihistratioh,
CFDA# 93^243, FAIN# H79SM080245.

2. For the purposes Of this Agreement the Department has ideritified:
■2.1 The Contractor as a Contractor, in accordance with 2 CFR'20.0,331.

'* '2.2. The Agreement as NON-RSD, In accordance with 2 CFR §200.332.
3. ' Payment shall be rnade upon completion and approval by the Department of

the deliverables as spddfted in Exhibit C-1, Phase 1. Service System Analyses.
Task peliverabies Budget Worksheet.

4. The .Contractor shall submit an invoice with supporting documentation to the
Department no later than 30 days after completing the deliverables as specified
lr> Exhibit C-T, Phase i, Service System Analyses. Task Deliverables Budget
Worksheet. The Contractor shall ensure each Invoice:
4.4. hcludes 'the Contractor's Vendor Number issued upon registering with

New Hampshire Departmenl of Administrative Services.
4.2; Is submitted in a form that Is provided by or otherwise acceptable lb the

• •Department.
•  4.3. identifies", and requests payment for allowable costs Incurred in the

previous "month.

4.4. Includes supporting documentation of ailowable costs with each invoice
that ■mayjincjude, but are hot limited to. time sheets.- payroll records,
receipts for purchases, and proof of expenditures, as applicable.;

4.'5., Is completed, dated and relumed to the peparimehl with the supporting
dooumentation for allowable expenses to.iniiiate payment.

4^6. ,1s assigried an electronic signature, includes supporting docurnentation.
-and is erhailed to dhhs.dbhlnvoicesmh5@dhhs.nh.qov or mailed to:

Financial Manager ■
Department of Health and Human Services
129.Pleasant Street
Concord. NH 03301

RrP-2O2J-0MHS^i-R^Ol-O1 C-2.0 ContfOCtOf
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5. The Department shall make paiyiments'tp the Contractor within thlrty'(3,0) days
of receipt of each invpjce/and supporting documentation for authorized
expenses, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice.

6. The final invoice and supporting documentation for authorized expenses shall
'be due;to.the Department no later than forty (40) days after the contract
•completion date specified in Form P-37, General Provisions Block 1.7
' Completion Dale.

7. Notwithstanding Paragraph 17 of the General Provisions Form P-37, changes
limited to a'djiistihg amounts within the pnce limitation and adjusting
■encurnbrances between'Staie Fiscal Years and budgel dass lines through the
Budget Office rnay be made by written agreement of both parties, without
obtaining approval of the-Governor and Executive Council, if needed and
justified. "

8. Audits

8.1. The Contractor must email an annual audit to dhhs.act@dhhs.nh.gov If
any of the followlng'isondiliohs exist:
0.T1. Condilioni A • The Contractor expended $750,000 or more in

federal funds received as a sub,recipient pursuant to 2 CFR Part
200. during the most recently completed fiscal year.

j3.1 .'2. Condition B - The Contractor is subject to audit pursuant to the
.requirements of NH.RSA 7:28. Ill-b. pertaining to charitable
organlzatipns receiving support of $1,000,000 or more.

8.1.3. Condlji'on C - The Contractor is a public.company and required
by Security and Exchange Cqrnmission (SEC) regulaitions to"
submit an annual ftnanciai audit.

8.2. :lf :Cohdition A exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual Single
'  Audil perforrned by an independent Certified Public Accountant (CiPA)

to dhhs.act@dhhs.nh.oov' within 120 days after the close of the
Contractor's fiscar year, conducted 'in accordance with "the
requirements .of .2 CFR Part 200i. Subpart F of the Uniform
Administrative Requirements, ' Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal awards.

8.2.1; The Contractor shall submit a copy of any Single Audit findings
and any associated corrective action plans. The Contractor
shall submit quarterly progress reports on the status of
implernenlaiioh of ihecorr'ective action plan.

8.3. Jf Condition B or Cqnditiori G exists, the Contracto.r shajl submit an
annual financial audit performed by an independent CPA within 120
days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal year.

RFP-ZOZJ-eWHS-OI^EADi-Ol -C-2.0 Conlractw
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8.4. in addition to, and not In any way In limitation of-obligations of the.
Contract, it is understood'and agreed by the Contractor that the
Contractor shall be heid liabiefora.ny state or federal audit exceptions
and shall return to the Department "all payrrients made uhdw the
Contract to which exception has been taken, or Which have been
disaliowed because of such'an exception.

/•^O#

l>
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Pha90 1 • Sorvico System Analysss • Tesk Oeltverabie Budget WOfkshe^

Now Hampshire Departmont of Health ahd.Human Services
COMPLETE ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH ElUDGET PERIOD

t  ' - . - . ^

ContractorNamo: Brandois Univeriiiy

Project TItIa: Slate Readiness Assessment for CC8HC

Budget Period: July l. 2022 through June 30; 2023 (SFY2023)

Task Oeiiyerable, ;
Funded by DHHS contract oharo- ■

TImellnorOue Date - •Amount - -

Morilhly Status Reppils. ■ •
Due no later than the 20th day

of e„ach month , $ 7,788.00

Copabiiity Analysis Report
No later than 120 da vs after ■

Contract Effective Date $  15.975.11

Access Analysis Report
Nn later than ISOdavs after '

Contract Effective Dote $  15,975.11

Service Analysis Report
Nnlalerthan IflOdavs after',

the Contract Effective Date $• 15,975.11

**«

Actuariaj Planning Report
Ncilaterthari 180davs after-

the Contract Effective Date $  I5;i 45.00

Data Capacity and IT Analysis Report /
Nn later than 210 davs ■ after .

■the Contract Effective-Date $  5.286.78

Regulalory^Report
Nn later than 240 davs 'after

the Contract Effective Date $  5.286.78

Final Phase 1 Service^ Syslem Analyses
Report

Nn later than 270 davs . after
the Contract Effective Date '$, 15.975:11

■ • • — TOTAL $  97,407.00

BrsndolS Univorslty
;RFP.2023-BMHS:Ol-REAOl-01
Exhibii C- i! Phase .1. SoMco Syslem Ar\alysos -1osk DftiivefaWo Budget Worksheet
Page 1.of i
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Vendpf Wentifjed In Section 1.3 of the Gpnefai Provlsions agrees to cornply with the provisions of^
SectlpnsSISI-Sieb of Ihe'Orug-Free WoflvlaceAclof 19e8(Pub. L. 100^90, Title V. Subtitle 0; 41'
U.S.C." 701 cl seqO; and further agrees to have the Cont/eclor's representative, as tdeniified in Sectlohs
1.11 and 1.l2 oflKp'Genera! Provisions oxeciito the followirvg Certification; :•

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION . CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF. AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This ccnincation Is required'by the regulations implemenling Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug^ree
WofVpl^'/^cl of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690. Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 el eeq.).. The January 31.
1§89 r'egjblions were emended and published es Pert I! of the May 25,1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-2169'l);and require certificolior. by grantees (end by lnfererx:c. sub-grontpos and cub-,
cohtraclors); prlor'to award, that they will maintain a drug-free Workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) thal.is a State,
may elect to maVe orip certincation lo the Department in each federal Hscei year in lieu of certificptcs for :
each grarri durirSg lhe fedori fiscal year covered by the certification. The cortificotc set out below Is a
rrialpflaJ rppreseniaiibn of fact upon which reliarice is placed when the egericy ewards the grant. False
c'crilficatlpn or vi6lati6n;Of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payrnerils. suspension or
termination of giants; or govornmenl wide suspension or .dcba.Tnehl. Contractors using this form should
send ii to:

Com-iiissioner
NH Department of Health end Human Services
129.Ple'asanl.Stfeel.
Concord, NH 03301-6505 ^

1; TKe granlee certifies that it ■will or will continue to provide a drug-freo workplace by:
1.1. publishing a slalement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the graritee's
workplace and specifying the actions lhal will be taken against employeesTor vtolalibn of such

. prohibition;
1.2! Esla"bjlshing af> ongoing drug-free awareness program to Inform employees eboul

i.2.T. Tl^ dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
i";2;2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
i!2!3 Any available drug counseling, rehobiliiation. and employee assistance prograrris; arid"
i!2!4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring in the workplace;
T.3. Making 11 a,reqOirement that each employee to be engaged In the,performance of iho grant bogiven'a copy of the stalement required by paragraph (a);
V.4. Notif^ng the emptoyce in the slalement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condilk^ of

ernploymoril: under (he grant, the employcp will
'i!4.1. Abide by the lerms of the statement; and
V.4.2. Notify the em'ployer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a crirnina) drug

statute occurring in the Workplace no fater than five calendar days after such'
conviction;

T.5; Notifying thb.agency ir^ writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
Subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted empioyees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officisr on whose grpnt'activily the convicted employee was working, unless the Fe'dera^Legency

ExWbil D - Ccflifiwlion fegsfding Drug Free Ver>dQrlnt»ta>^-
WortpTsciRsqulrcmcmi . -8/3/2022
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has designated e'cisntral point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
IdenUrication number(8) of each affeded grant;

i .6. taking one of the follovrlng"actions, wiihln 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subp^agraph 1.4.2, With respect to'any 'crpployec who is so convicted
l.6.l! Taking appropriate personnel action ogolnsl such on cmptoyee, up to and including

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; "or .

V6.2. Roqulring such employee to participate satisfactorily In a drug abuse assistance or
rchsbilitalion program approved for.such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
taw enforcement, or other epproprisle cgency;

1.7, Making a good faith effort, to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implamcnialion of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2,-'1.3, 1.4. V5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the siteCs) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant

Placp of Performance (street.address, cliy. county, slate,' iip code) (list each location)

Check □ If there ore workplaces on flic that are not identified here.

VendofNamciQrandcis university

8/3/2022

Date Nam'?*ii^^J^ft^~Soloinon
Title: CFO

W V

ExhWl 0-CcfilflcJitlonieflaiiJing Drug Free • Vendor Iflliiot*
Workptftca ReQutfementi 8/3/2022
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The VcrKlor identified in Section:1.3 of Iho General Provisipns agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 16M2"1. Gpverrimenl wide Guidance for New Reslriclions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352! and further agrees to have the.Contractor's represenlatrvo. as identified In Sedions 1.11
and 1;12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAJ^ SERVICES • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCAtlON ■ CONTRACTORS-
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE -'•CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate epplicabie program covorod):
•Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
•Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
•^iol Services Block Grant Program urider Title XX
•Medlcaid Pi^ram,under Title XIX
•Community Services Bkxk Grant under, Title VI ;
"Child Cere Development Block Grant under Title IV-

The undersigned certiHes, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that: ^

1. No Federal epprcprialed funds hove been paid or.will be paid by or orj behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or att^pting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress. or ah employee of a Member of Congress in
connccl'ton w^h the awardi^ ol any F^eral contract, coniinualion.'rcnewol. amendment, or
modificilion of any Federal contract, grenl. loan, or cooperalive agreement (and by speclHc mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. 'If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
"influencing or altempting to influence an officer pr ernployee of any agency. a'Member of Congress,
on officer or employee of Congress, or on employee of e Member of Congress in connMtlon with this
Fedcralcontract. grant; loan, or cooperalive agreement (and by specjfic mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor). the undersigned shall complete end submit Standard Forrn LLL. (DiscfosureTorm to
•Report Lobbying, in accordance wiih'Hs instrucilons, attached and Identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall require, lhal the language of this certification be Included In the award
document for sub-awards al'ail tiers (including subcontracts, sub^rohls, and contracts urxJer grants,
loans, and cooperalive agreements) and that all sub-recipients shaSI certify and disclose accordingly.

This ccrtiricolion is a maleriof rcpresenlotloh of fad upon which reliance was placed when ih|s transaction
was made'or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or enlcrlhg Into this

'transaction Imposed by Scclipn 1352, Title 31. U;S. Codc. Any person who fails lo nio the required .
certificolion shall be subject lb a civij penally of.not less,than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure. ®

8/3/20.22

Ogle " 'j sol omon

Vendof.Namei'Brandefs unfvcrsUy

CPO

.Eichlbil e - Cenlftc«i!an negardlng Lot^p Vendw'Wiiab

—o»

8/3/2022
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION

AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor ideniified in Section 1.3 of the Gehool Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions Of
Executive Office of the President. Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Oebarment.
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and .further.agrecs to have the Contractor's .
representative, as ideniifted in Sections i.ll and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute he follov^r^
Certifcatioh:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1.' By signing and submitting this propose) (contract), (he prospective primary participant Is providing (ho
certificailon aet out below. .

2. The.inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction, if nmssary, the pmspective participant shafl submil.an'
explanation of why It cannot provide the ccrtiflcilion. The certification or elrpianatlon wiD be •
considered in connecliort with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (OHHS)
deiermination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospf^ve primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certificailon in this clause Is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when pHHS determined to enter into this transaction, ifil is later delerrnined that the prospective
priTOry participant knowingly render^ ari erroneous certification. In addition to other rcrhedies
avallaMe to the Federal Government. DHHS rnay terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to (he DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) Is submitted if al any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous vrttcn submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms 'covered transaction.* 'dBbarred," •suspended,' •ineligible.' Tower tier covered
Iransecllon,* 'participant.' 'person.* 'primary covered transaclipn.* 'principal.' 'proposal.* ar^'d
'volurttarlly excluded,* as used In this clause, have the rneanlngs set out in iiie Dbfirthions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549:45 CFR Part 76. See the

,  attached definilions. ..

6. The prospective primary participani agrees by submitting ttiis propq^l (cor^Uact) that, should thb
proposed covered transaction be entered into. H ̂ hatl not knowingly enter Into any lower iler covered
transaclipn with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluritarlly excluded
from participolion In this covered Ironsaction. unless eulhorized by DHHS:

7.' Tlie prospective primary participant further agrees by subrnltting this proposal that It wilt include,the
.clause tilled 'Certification Regarding Oebarment. SusperSsion. Ineligibiiity and Voliiri'^ry Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered TransacUons,' provided by OHHS. without modificalion. in all lower tier covered
' transactions sod in oil soDciiations for lower tier covered trbnsdclions.

0. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon o certiflcatiori of a prospective participant in a • .
lower tier covered transadion that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or invbluritarlly excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification Is erroneoys. A participant may_
decide the method and frequency by which it ddermLnes the eligibility of its plincipals. 'Each
participant may, but Is not required to. check the Nonprocuremerit List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be conslaied to require cstabilshmehi of o system of rewrds
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowtedge and

Eihibii F > Cenif^lioft R£0»nfnp OebarmeAt. Siftponsion CoNrBdor
:AndOihcfRespoft4/bfliyMali«ff 8/3/2022
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informatipnofdparticipantisnotreciulredtoexceedihatwhichisnormallypossessedby.aprvdent ^
, parson In the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transoclbns authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions. If a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred. Ineligltilo. or votuntarily excluded from partldpation In this transaction. In .

.addition (obthefrernedies available to the Federal government. OHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or defaulL . - ..

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS .
11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its Knowledgo arid belief, that it and Its

principals: -
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarmenl, declared ineligible, or -

voluniariiy excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or egehcy;
11.2. have not wnthln a three-year period precedir^g this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

aciviljudgmenirenderodagainslthemforcommissionoffraudoracrlminaioffensob •
■connecliori with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal. &tate or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust'
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsifrcation or destruction of '
records, making false statements, Of receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not prcsenUy indicted for otherwise cnminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal. State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (|)(b) *-•' ,
ofthiscer^frcalion; and .

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this oppllcaliorVproposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal. State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant Is unable to certify to any of the statements In this
certification. such prospectivQ participant shall ettach.an explanation to this proposal (contract). ..

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS.
13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as

defined In 45 CFR Part 76. cortifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
13.1. ero not presently debarred, suspended; proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from participation In this transaction by any federal department or agency. '
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant Is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract). '

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that It will
include this clause enlilled •Certification Regarding Debarment. Suspension. lneliglbllily..ond
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,' without modification in ail lower tier covered,
transactions and in all solicitations forlowerliercovered transactions. ,

I  . ■! ■ "*
i  Contractor Name: eraridcis university

• bKutlpAHkr:

8/3/2022

Date —— ^ ^ ^NiS?F59^5T~SoTo(iiorr
■ CO

— 01

,  E*Wbk F - CortificaUon Raflaidlng DcbttfTnont. Suspension Contrtdof IftftliU
.  AftdOihofRojpofi^biliiyMaucft 8/3/2022
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CERTiFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO

FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION: EQUAL TREATMENT OP FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND
. WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Conlraclb'r identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signalure of ihe Contractor's
representative as identified in Secti^s .1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
cenification:'.

Corttractof will comply, and .will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include: ,

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 tJ.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits -
recipients ol federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either In employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenil? Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of (he Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prbhlbited from dtscriminallng. either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

• the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section'2000d. which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance frorn discriminating on the basis of race, color, cr national origin in any program or activity);

• the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Seclion;?94). which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and (he delivery of
services or benefits. In any program or activity;

- the-Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohil>its
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity lor persons with disabilities In employment. Stale and local
government services, public acconvnodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments ol 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681,1683.1665-86). which prohibits
.discfimirialion on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

-the Age Discrimihalion Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits dlscrlminalion on the
basis of.age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not Include
empbymenVdiscrimination; > ' ;

- 28 C.F.R. pi, 31 (U.S. Deparlrnent of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pi. 42
(U.S. Departrr^nl of Justice f=icgulations - fvlondiscriminalion; Equal Emptoymenl Opportuhily; Policies
and Procedure!}); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of (he laws lor faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No, 13559;which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with foilh-basod end neighborhood organizations;

^ 28 C.F.R. pi. 38 (U.S..Department of Justice Regulations - fiqua) Treatment for Faith-Bascd
Orgariizotions): and Whlsllebldwer protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Acl(NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2. 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancemeril of Contracl Employee Whislleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing acllvilles Iri connection with fedoral grants and contracts.

(

The certificate set but below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the gran!. False certificatiori of violation of the certification shall bo grounds for
suspension of payrhents, suspension or termination of grants,, or government wide suspension or
debarmenl.

-ot

Exhibit G
Conlnjctor InWab

Can/caticrt e( CotctoM «th r««AMMnU lo r T>»MnMN ol Fo'tr>-B«i»4 Oc9«itu(jorM
tn4VifitadiCto>w protxdoni

r>
^  8/3/2022
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in the event a Federal or Stale court or Federal or State administrative agency n^akes a finding of
discfimlnalion after a due process hearing on the grounds, of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against d recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable conlraciing agency.or division within the Department of Health and Hurnan Services, and-
to'the Department of Health and Hurnan .Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the fotlowlng
certification:

1. 6y signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Contractor Name: 6rande1s university

8/3/2022

Dale So1 oraoh
Title:

— D>

EKhibilG
Contractor InliUU

t* ^ W t Mnif NW■»«rt«■n•Oo^ E^uil rumvnrt OratrbH,^
VM WtaditiBWW>eiK<«n*

^  8/3/2022
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■CERTIFICATiON REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SfV^OKE
•  » *

Pubfic Law 103-227, Part C - Environmenlal Tobacco Smoke, also known.as the Pro-Children .^l of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor racility owned or leased'or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for iho provision ol'health; day care, education,
or library services to children undc^ the age of 18, If (lie services are furided by Federal programs either
directfy or through State or local governments, by Federal grant,'conuaci. Joan, or loaii guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided In private residences. facifiUes funded solely by
fvledlcare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for iripstient drug or ajcohol treatment. -Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in (he imposition of a civil monetaiv penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imppsiUon of an administrative compliance order oh the responsible entity. .

The Contractor identified in-Section 1.3 of the General. Provisions agrees, by signature of tho Contractor's
representative as IdentiHed in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisionis. to execute the following
certification: ^

1. By signing and subrhiuing this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C. known as the Pro-Chjidren Act of..1994.

Contractor Name: fi randef s unlvorsfty

■  8/3/2022

Date Namct'S^'CeW'SolOrtion
Tllle:- CFO • ^

curt»«Vnciii

Fxhibil'H - Ce/lircatlon Repardiho
EnvtronmcnitlTotMCCo Smbko
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT .
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contraclor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act. Public Law 104-191 and
v^th the'Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information. 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein."'Business
Associate' shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agerits of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this-Agreement and "Covered
Entity' shail mean the Slate of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services. t

(1) Definitlona.

a. 'Breach' shall have the same meaning as the term 'Breach' in seclion 164.402 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.- ,

b. "Business Associate' has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45. Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. 'Covered Entity' has the rheaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45,'
Code of Federal Regulations.

. 'd.' 'Designated Record Set" shail have the same meaning as the term "designated record set"
•  in 45CFR Section 164.501.

e. 'Data AaareQation'' shall have Ihe same meaning as the term "dala aggregation' in 45 CFR
Section 164.SOL

f. • 'Health Care Operations' shall have the same meaning as the term 'health care operations"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. 'HITECH Act' means Ihe Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act. TitleXlll, Subtitle p. Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of .
2009. '

h. "HIPAA' means the Health Insurance Portablll^ and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards"for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiablia Health
Information. 45 CFR Pahs 160. 162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

I. 'Individual' shall have the same meaning as the term 'individual' In 45 CFR Section 160.103
■  •: and shall Include a person who qualifies as a personal .representative In accordance with 45

CFRSeclion-164.5pi(o). ' ' .. .

j. 'Privacy Rule' shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Idenlifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United Slates'
Department of Health and Human Services.

K. 'Protected Health Iriformation" shall have the same meaning as the term 'protected health .
information" in 45 CFR Seclion 160.103. limited to the information created or receiy^>i4^>
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

3/20,< Exhibit I Contfociw Inlilali"
. HoliMn&wsncaPonability Act

eutinessAssocialeAoteeiTtenl ^ 6/3/2022
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I. 'Required bv Law' shall have the same meaning as the term 'required by law* in .45 CFR
Section 164.103. *

m. 'Secretary' shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or '
his/her designee.

n. 'Securitv Rule' shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
. Health Information al 45 CFR Part 164. Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

0. "Unsecured Protecled Health Information' means protected health Information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or Indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is-developed or endorsed by
8' siandards developing organization that is accredited by the American Natiorial Standards
Institute.

p. Other befihitions - Alt terms not olherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45.C.F.R. Parts 160,162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act. ' \ ,
«

(2) Business Asaoclate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information. ,

a. Business Associate shall nofuse, disclose, maintain or-transmit Protecled Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under"
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but hot limited to all
its directors, ofHcers, employees and agents, shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
i. For the proper management and adrninislration of the Business Associale;

•  II. As required by law. pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d, below';- or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

■ Entity.

c.* To the extent Business Associate Is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party. Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such.PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which It was
disclosed to Ifie third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associale. in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy. Security', .and "Breach Notification
.Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach,

d. the Business Associate shall not. unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI In response to a
request for disd'osufe on the basis that it Is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so. that Covered Entity has an opportunlly to object to the disclosure^and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the '

ConUftCtof

HeftlihlnsursAcoPontbiaiyAci '
Business Assodsle Agreement 8/3/2022
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Associate shall refrain from disctosing Ihe PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

f

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to .
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

• . * ♦ • *

(3) ObliQationa and AcUvHIcs of Business Associate. ^

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entityis Privacy Officer Immediately,
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected

' . health information not provided for by the Agreement Including breaches of unsecured
protected health Information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when.it becomes
•  • awareofanyoftheatKjyesiluBllons. The risk assessment shall include. bufnot be

limited to: . • ..

0. The nature and extent of the protected health information involved. Including the
types of identifiers and the. likelihood of re-identification;

0  The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made; ' - ,

o Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
0 The extent to which the risk to the protected health Information has been

mitigated. * .

The Business Associate shall corhplele the risk assessment within 46 hours ofthe
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy. Security, and
Breach Notification Rule. • , •

d. Business Associate shall make avaitable all of Its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for .
purposes of determining Covered Entil/s compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule. '

e.' Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
•access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree In writing to adhere to the same
resificlions and conditions on the use and disclosure ol PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 {!). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party behcnclary of th8 Contraclor"s business'eaggeto
agreements with CpntraclpVs intended business associates, who will be ̂eceivlh^ P^..-

3/2014
I  Contractor Ntial)

Health Insurai^ Portal)iIity Act - ' -
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of ̂
protected health Information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours,at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's-compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual In order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

*0 * *

" h. Wilhin ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendmenfof PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
.Set. the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered-Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its-
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. • Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be riequired for Covered Entity.to. respond to a request by an
individual for an.accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.. " '

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a .
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI. Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity rnay require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528. . . .. .

k. In the evenl any individual requests access to. amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall v4lhin two (2) .
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered.Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request lo Covered Entity would cause Covered Entily or the Buslriess
Assbclale to violate HIPAA-and the Privacy and Security Rule, (he Business Associate
shall Instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable. ;•

I. Wilhin ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associale shall relurn or destroy, as specified by Covered Entjty, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the ••
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. .If relurn or
destruction Is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement. Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to >
purposes that make the relurh or destruction infeasible. for so long as Business

3/20)4 ExWWi I Conlreclw Niinti;
Healih insurant Portability Aci
BujlnoiaAisodaleAcrcefneni 8/3/2022
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI. the Business Associate" shall certify to

' Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed. •

(4) Oblloations of Covered Entity - ' '

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limUation(6) in its -
:  Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals In accordance with 45 CFR Section

164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in. or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI hiay. be.used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Sectiori

.  164.505 or 45 CFR Section 164.506.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45,CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of '
PHI. ' , -

(5) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity rnay Immediately terminate the Agreemeni upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate ^

■: Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide ah opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specllied by Covered Entity. If Covered Eritity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible. Covered Entity shall report the
violalion to the Secrelary.

(6) Miscellaneous

a_ Definitions and Reoulatorv References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, arnerided
from time to time. A reference, in the Agreement, as arncnded.to include this Exhibit I. to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended. * ^ . *

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to lake such action as Is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from tirne to time as Is necessary for Covered

*  . Entity to comply with the changes inihe requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and slate law. .

c. Dflia Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect lo the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The'parties" agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be rpof^d
■  to permit Covered Enlily to comply wilh HIPAA. the Privacy and Security Rule.

3/2014
£,^11 Contrsctor Initials

Health insurance PonahQUy Act
Business Assotiate Agreement 8/3/2022
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e.

I. .
/

Seoreoallon. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
pef9on{8) or circumstance Is held Invalid, such Invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effeci without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable. - •

Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI. return Of .
destruction of PHI. extensions of the protections of the Agreement In section (3) i. the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P'37). shall survive ̂ e termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parlies hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Department of Health and Human Services arandeis university

fey

Uasadadfitte Contractor

Signature of Authorized Represenlativo Sigri^ure of Authorized Represenlalive
Katja S. Fox Sanuel Solomon

Name of Authorized Representative
Director

Name of Authorized Representative

CFO . .

Title of Authorized Representative Title of Authorized'Representative •.

8/3/2022 8/3/2022 '

Dale ! Date
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Ccmractor
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"fiPPTIFlCATtON REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABIUTY AND TRANSPARENCY
^ - ACT(FFATA)CQMPUANCi

Tho FedemI Funding Accountability "pnd Tfan'sparahcy Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of Individual
Federal grants equal to orgrcalef than $25;doo and awarded on or after October. 1.2010. to report on
data roleled to oxocuUve compensation and ossocialed first-tier sub^ranls of $25,000 or more, jt the
Iniiial award Is below' $25.'000 but subsequent grant modifications resuii in a total award equal to or over
$25 000, the'award Is sublacl to the FFATA reporting requirements, os of tho dote of tho cward.
in accomanco vrilh 2 CFR Part 170 tRepdrting Subaward and Exoculi>^ Componsolion InfqrmaUon). the

•Department of Health and Kurnan Services'(DHHS) rnust report the following InformalJon (or Br}y
subav/ard or contract award subject to the FFATA reportirig requirements:
1. Namecfertlity , « ,
2. Amount.ol award
3. Funding agency
4., NAICS code for conUacts / CFDA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Av/ard tlBo descriptive of the pu/pose of the funding action
7. Location of,tho entity
e. Principle place of ̂rfo'rtn'ahce
9. Unique Identifier of the entity .(UEIff)
10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives If;

10.1. More than 60% of annual gross revenues aro from the Federal govemmenL and those
revenues are greater than $25f^ annually and

10.2. Compensation ihformatidn is not olrcody available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant rcdpterits miist submii FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days. In which
tho award or award amendment Is mode. ,
The Contractor idenlified'in Section i.3 of the Gene'ral Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding AccountabDIly end Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Repbriing Subavrard arid ExbcuUve Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have tho Conlrectdr's representative, as Identified in Sections i.ll.and 1.12 of the Genera] Prqvlslons
execute the following Certificalloh:- ^ ^
The below named Contractor agrees to provldo needed information as outlinQd above to the NH
Departrnenl of Health and Human ̂ rylces and to.cdmpJy with all applicable proyisions of the Federal
Financial Accounlabiii^ 'and Transparency Act 'i

CoritractorNome: arandcis university

8/3/2022

'oils = ' :
two: CFO

GrfilM J - CortJftea^ Ripi'fdIftQ Iho Fodeir*! Fundlnp Conlfodof InBiab
AccwnUbOy And Tfi.iifuroftcy Ad (FFATA) CompCanco .8/3/2022
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.  :PORM"A.

AS the Coniraclofidontlli^ In Seciion 1.3 oMhsGenenal Provisions. I certify that the responses lo lhe
betow listed.questions ere true and eccurato.

.  . 'wXLrCAMFEKNS '
1. The U£l (SAM.qov) number for your entity »s:

2. In your business or organlaation's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or orgonbatJon.
receive (t) 60 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contra^s. subcorvtracts.

loans, grants, sub-igrahts. and/or cooperative agreemenli; and (2) $25,000,000 or more In annual

gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subconlracis. loans, grants, subgranis, and/or
coopcfatlve agreements? ■

NO YES

If the answer.to <*2 above is' NO. slop here

•  If Ihe answer to W above Is YES. please answe/ the following:

3. Does the public have access to Information about ihe compensation of the executives in your

'  business or organizalionthrough.periodic reports filed under sectionl3{a) or t5(d) cf'ihe Securities

Exchange Act of 1934 (>5 U.S.C.78m(a),-78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Coda of

1986? .

NO yes • ■

U the answer to #3 above is YES. slop here

If the answer to #3 above Is NO. please answer the following: ,

4. The names and compensalion of Ihe five most highly compensated officers in your.business or
organization are as foDows:

Name:
s-

Na'mc:

Name;.

Name;...

Name:^

Amount,.

"An\ount.

Arn'ouht:.

Amount:

Amount; -

Cuows/nori)

ExMbb J - Conirxiiiilon Regarding l^a Fodaral FuAding
AccountabaJty And Tfinspirency Act (FFATA) Com^anca

Pago 2 of 2

ConlradM tnHUb
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DHHS Information Security Requirements .

A. Definitions

The followInQ terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this docoment:

T  "Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other- than

'  authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiabie
s- information, whether physical or electronic. "With regard to Protected Health

Information." Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section
164.402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations.

2. ■ "Computer Security Incident* shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident* in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Corriputer Security Incident
Handling Guide. National Institule of Standards and Technology, U.S. Departrhenl
ofComtherce. .

3. "Confidential Information' or 'Confidential Data' means all ponfidenlial information
disclosed by one party, to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation, Substance
Abuse Treatment Records. Case Records.. Protected'.Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by '
. the Slate of NH - created, received from or.on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services • of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
stale or federal law or regulation. This information Includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI). Personal information (PI). • personal Financial

• Information (PFI). Federal Tax'Inlormation (FTI), Social Security. Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential,information,'

4. 'End User* means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor..other downstream user, etc') that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terins of this. Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means,the Health Insurance Portabiliiy and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

/

6. "Incident" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which Includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; arid changes to.system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent, incidents Include the loss of data through theft or device rnisplacemenl, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouling of physical or eiectronic

..

vs. LwiupdalottyosnS ErNWiK • Contrtctoflnh»ah^ —
DHHS lnloffn»llc>n

Socw4ty RooUrcmjnH • 8/3/2022
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

mail, all of'which may have the poteniial to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use. disclosure, modincalion or destruction.

7. "Open.Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a neiymrk that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of information
Te<mnology or delegate as a protected • network (designed, tested, artd
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) win be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI. PFI,
pHl orcpnfidentiat DHHS data. « _ ,

8. "Personal Information" (or "PI") means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an indlviduars identity, such as their name, social security rium'ber. persbrial
Information as defined In New Hampshire RSA 359-C:T9, blomeiric records, etc..
alone, or when comtxned with other personal or idenlifying informalioh which is linked
or linkable to a specific Individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden

•  name, etc. • ^ ' " » . ^

'  9. 'Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
- Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the,United
'States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health Information" (or 'PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of "Protected Healih Information" In the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §

"  160.103. . * ' ■

11. "Security Rule' shall mean the'Security Standards for (he Proleclion of Electronic
Protected Health Inforirialion at 45 C.F.R. Part 164. Subparl C. and amendments
thereto.

r  12. "Unsecured Prelected Health Information" means Protected Health Information that Is
not secured by a technology standard thai renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or Indecipherable to unauthorized irtdividuals and Is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that Is accredited by

^  the American National Standards Institute. ■

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A.' Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential lnformatlon.

1. The Contractor rnusl not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential informalioh
except as reasonably .necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Co'nUacldr,

• • Including bill r>ol limited lo all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit RHI in any manner that would constitute a violatipn
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contfactor must no! disclose-any Confidential Information In response (6 a

'  ■ ■ ■ ■ r>
vs. ExMbllK ConlfactorlnltloU^--- ■■ —

OHHS Inlofmailoo

Security Roquirtmonu 8/3/2022
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request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a
subpoena, etc.. without Hrst notifying OHHS ko tt^t DHHS has ar) opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS nolines the Contractor that.DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
reslHctions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to (he Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be .bound by such
additional 'restrictions and must not disclose PHI In violation of such adcfiHonai
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Cohtract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of 'DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with (he terms of this
Contract. • ^ •

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User Is transmitting DHHS data containing.
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have

.  been'evaluated .by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and (hat said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmissior^ via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portatrfe S,lorage Devices.- End User may riot use computer disks
or portable storage devices,-such as a'thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data. ■ . T: .

3. Encrypted Emaih End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is encrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of

• persons authorized to receive such information.

' 4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is erhploying the Web to transmit Conridential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.'

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services.' such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
' Confidehlial Data. *: ■ = '

6. Ground Mall Service. End User rnay only transmit Confidential Data via cerlified ground
mall wilhin the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laplops and PDA. ilf End User is employing portable devices to transmit
. Corifidentlal Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected..

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may nol transmit Confidential Dala via an open

vs. Loslupdato 1<y09/iS EnhlbllK ContrsctorlnIU«b
• ' DHHS Infoirnslion ■ .

r  Sotufily RfiQuirtfflonu 8/3/2022
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wireless network. Er\d User must employ a •virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote tJser Communication, if End tJser is erhploying remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) most be
installed oh trie End tJser's mobile devlce(s) or laptop from which Informalion wlll be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol, if
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent Inappropriate disclosure of
Informalidn. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Conridenlial Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Conndenlial Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of Inforrhation.

III. RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS.

The Contractor will only retain the data and ahy derivative of the data for the duration of this.
Conlroct. After such lime. Ihe Conlraclor wll have 30 days to destroy the data and. any
derivative In whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or- penmiued
under this Contract. To this end. the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or- process data collected In
connection with the services rendered, under this Contract outside of the United
Slates. This physical locailon requlrcrhent shall also apply In the implementation of'
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations. .

2. The Conlraclor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities ere In
place to delect potential security events that can Impact Stale of NH systems
and/or Department confidential Information for contractor provided systems.

*  3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users In support of protecting Department confidential information. ^

4. The Contractor agrees.to retain ail electronic and hard copies of Confidential Oala
in a secure location and identified In section IV. A.2 >

6.. The-"Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a .
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anil-viral, entl-

'  hacker, anti-spam, anli-spyware. and anli-malware utilities. The environment, as a
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■ whole, must have aggressive Iniruslon-deieclion and .firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures Its compleie cooperation with the State's
Chlel information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

B. Disposition '

1. If the Conlraciof will maintain any Confidential information on its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any suljconlractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use, electronic rnedia containing Stale of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
In accordance with Industry-accepted standards.for secure deletion and media
saniilzation, or otherwise physically .destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NIST Special Publicalioh 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines
for Madia Sanltization. National Institute of Standards and Technology. U. $.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and.certify In writing at

'  time of the data destruction, and will.provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The wri.lten certification will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been property destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements Nvill.be Jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prtor to destruction.

..2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination' of this
Contract. Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Coflfidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3! Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV^ PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under-this Conlracl. and any
derivative data or files, as follows: •

. 1. The-Contractor will maintain proper securify conlfdis to protect Department
confidenlial information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored In the delivery
of contracted services. :

2. The Contractor will maintain policies artd procedures, to protect Department
confidenlial information throughout the. informafiori lifecycle. where applicable, (from
creation; transformation, use. storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
mediausedtostorelhedata(l.e..tape. disk, paper, etc.).

■  : «' ['A
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3. the Contractor will maintain appropriate aulhentication and access controls, to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department conndentia) infomniatioh
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security ■monitorinq capabilities are. in place to
detect potential security events that can Impact State of NH systems and/or
DepartmentCOnfidentlallnformationforcorilraclor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for Its End
Users In support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will be sulxoniracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an Internal process .or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match tho.se for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements. •:

7. The Contraclor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and'procedures, systems access forms, arid computer use agreements es part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be
cbmpleled and signed by, the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

•  * t

6. If the Department determines the Contractor Is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible lor maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

•  *

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at Its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Departrnen( and'
Contractor to monitor for any changes In risks, threats, apd vulnerabilities that rnay
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be.completed
annually, or an allernate time frame at (he Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly.or unknowingly, ariy Stale of Now Hampshire
. or Departrnenl data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United Stales unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the information Security' Office
leadership member within the Department. • .

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts lo invesligate ihe causes of the breach, promptly take measures to"
prevent fqlure breach and rnlnlmize any damage or loss fesuliing from the breach.
The Stale shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from
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the breach, includjf>9 but not limited to: credit monUoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone cat! center services necessary due to
the brwch^

12. Goriiractor must, comply with all applicable statutes end regulations regarding the
privacy and'security of Confidential Information', and must in atf other respects
maintain the .privacy arid security of PI and PHI at a lave! and scop© that Is not less

*  than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal-agencies! including,
but not limited to. provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a). DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations',(45 C.F.R, .§5b). HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Paris 160 and 164) that govern protections for Individually identlRable health
information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and mainl'a'm appropriate administrative, technical, and
' • physical safeguards to, protect the conndenllaliiy of the Confidential Data and to

prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements .
established by the State of New Hampshire. Oepartmeni of Infonmation Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://wwM'.nh.gov/doit/vendor/index.hlm

"  for the Department of information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

■ 14. Contractor agrees to rriainlain a documented brea'ch notification and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy. Officer and the
State's Security Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses
provided in Section VI. this includes a confidenlial Information breach, computer
security incident, or suspected breach syhich affects or includes any Stale of New
Hampshire systems that connecfto the State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this
Contracl to only those aulhorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their'official duties In connection with purposes idenlified in this G^ontracl.

16. The Conlractor must ensure that all End Users:

a.; comply v^lh • such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Conndenllal information that Is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or Inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this Informailon at all times.
t  c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI, a •

PFI are encrypted and password-protected.
d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrypted and being

sent to and being received by email addresses of persons aulhorized to
receive such Information.
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e. limit disclosure of the Cpnndenllai !nforma1lor> to the extent permitted by law.

f  Confidential Information received under this Contract and Individually
identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and lechnqlogicany secure'ffom eccess by uneuihorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g.. door locks, -card keys,
blometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Dala, Including any
derivative files containing perspnally identifiable Information, and in all cases.

'  such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
,  stored on portable media as required In seclion IV above.

h. In ail other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

■  i. understand that their user, credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or Indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor Is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsile inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract..including"the privacy and security requirements provided in herein. HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Dala
Is disposed of In accordance vwlh this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the Stale's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
. Security Incidents and Breaches Immediately, el the email addresses provided In

Section VI. . ^

The Contractor must further handle and reporl Incidents and Breaches Involving PHI In ■
accordance with .the agency's documented incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and In accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and
notvsriihstanding. Contractor's cdmpllahce with all applicable obligations and procedures.
Contractor's procedures must also address how Iho Contractor will:

1.. Identify Incidents: . .

2. Determine if personally Idenllfiable information Is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

.4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
arid determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and

(>
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5. Determine whether Breach notification is: required, and, if so. Identify appropriate
Breach nolificalion methods, timing, source, and contents, from among different
options, ervj t>ear costs associated with the Breach notice as vyelj as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that Im'plicele PI must be addressed ..;and reported, as
applicable, In accordance vfllh NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT , ' '

A. DHHS Privacy Officer:

DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

■ B. DHHS Security Officer:

OHHSInformalionSecurllyOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

'• i-
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